Ci

ty of Kingsville, Texas

l. Pre

OPEN MEETING

APPRQVE
INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - (Mayor Fugate) //}
| ‘2.

AGENDA

CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2024
REGULAR MEETING
CITY HALL
HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM
400 WEST KING AVENUE
5:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting
Live Videostream: https://www.facebook.com/cityofkingsvilletx

liminary Proceedings.

2t

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) —
Mark Mclaugpit’
Regular Meeting — November 12, 2024 City Manager

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1

. Public Hearing to consider the advisability of the creation of Reinvestment Zone Number

Three, City of Kingsville, Texas for Tax Increment Financing Purposes pursuant to Chapter
311, Texas Tax Code. (Economic Development Director).

Ill. Reports from Commission & Staff.2

‘At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staffreports include the following: Building & Development, Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial Services - Information,
Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire
Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports; Street Updates; Public Works-
Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update,
miscellaneous park projects, Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements,
Public Information, Hotel Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor, Water And Wastewater Rate Study Presentation. No formal action can
be taken on these items at this time.”

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items.?

1.

Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Consent Agenda

Pagelof4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
November 25, 2024



V.

Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions, and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Budget to accept and expend donations from Linebarger, Goggan, Blair and
Sampson, and Vishal Raju Bhagat Foundation for the Parks Department Healthy
Family Events. (Parks Director).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Budget to appropriate funding for emergency Fire Department vehicle repairs.
(Fire Chief).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

3. Consider introduction of an ordinance of the City Commission of the City of Kingsville,
Texas, pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, creating Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas. (Economic Development
Director).

4. Consideration and approval of: 1) Application Affidavit TWDB-0201, 2) Application
Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution TWDB-0201A, and 3) Application
Resolution-Certificate of Secretary TWDB-0201B, for the 2024-2025 Economically
Distressed Areas Program (EDAP) for funding by the Texas Water Development Board
(TWDB) for the City of Kingsville proposed Wastewater Utilities near Sage Rd.-Abridged
Application No. 16037. (City Engineer).

5. Consideration and approval of Change Order No.1 CO-1 for Bid No. 24-04 for the GLO
CDBG-MIT Contract No. 22-082-016-D218 Project 6: 10" Street Sanitary Sewer
Improvements Project. (City Engineer).

6. Consideration and approval of awarding Bid No. 25-05 for 23-24 Citywide
Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements Phase 3, as per staff
recommendation. (City Engineer).

7. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Standard
Form of Agreement Between City and Contractor, Donald Hubert Construction Co., for City-
wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements Phase 3. (Bid No. 25-05
awarded 11/25/24). (City Engineer).

8. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the Award of
Administrative/Project Delivery Service Provider Contract(s) for the 2025-2026 Texas
Community Development Block Grant Fund Program. (awarding RFP#25-07 for Grant

Page 2 of4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
November 25, 2024



Administrative Services, as per the evaluation committee recommendation). (City
Engineer).

9. Consideration and approval a resolution authorizing the submission of a Texas
Community Block Development Grant Program application to the Texas Department of
Agriculture for the Community Development Fund, and authorizing the Mayor to act as the
City’s Executive Officer and the City Manager to act as the City's Authorized
Representative in all matters pertaining to the City’s participation in the Texas Community
Development Block Grant Program; repealing all conflicting resolutions and providing for
an effective date. (City Engineer).

10. Consideration and approval of awarding RFQ No. 25-01 for Professional Engineering
Services for Low Water Crossing Project on West Avenue D, as per the evaluation
committee recommendation. (City Engineer).

11. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
setup budget for rolled over purchase orders. (Finance Director).

12. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
appropriate funding received on the sale of the Old Hospital Property. (in the 400 Block of
West Caesar Ave.; sale was approved on 10/28/24 via Resolution #2024-88). (Finance
Director).

13. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
appropriate funding for emergency plumbing repairs to Fire Station #2. (Purchasing
Manager).

14. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
accept and expend the Border Zone Fire Department Grant Award #5106101 for Fire
Rescue Equipment. (Fire Chief).

15. Consideration and approval of the purchase of SCBA units and SCBA Cascade System
for the Fire Department from Municipal Emergency Services via BuyBoard Purchasing
Cooperative, as per staff recommendation. (Fire Chief).

16. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
appropriate funding for the purchase of IBC Books for the Planning Department. (Director
of Planning & Development Services).

17. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
appropriate funding for the inspection work by Bureau Veritas for the Planning Department.
(Director of Planning & Development Services).

18. Consider a resolution-authorizing the City to submit an application to the Ed Rachal
Foundation for grant funds for Park recreational program funding and Thompson Park
basketball court lighting improvements. (Parks Director). )

19. Consideration and approval of a resolution accepting SECO Grant award and
authorizing the City Manager to act on the City’s behalf with such program. ($25,000 award
for Park Rec Hall Lighting Project). (Parks Director).

20. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
accept and expend the OGG Grant Award for the Body Worn Camera Grant Program
#5094901. (Police Chief).

21. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
accept and expend the Local Border Security Program Grant Award #2994110 for Police
overtime. (Police Chief).

22. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
accept and expend the Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Grant Program. (Police Chief).

Page 3 of 4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
November 25, 2024



23. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget to
accept and expend the Operation Lone Star Grant Award #4385703 for various Police
Department expenditures. (Police Chief).

24. Consider authorizing use of Tourism Fund Balance and Tourism ARP Funds for the
Tourism parking lot overlay project. (Tourism Director).

25. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the sale of the City’s real
property located at 811 East Vela Street, Kingsville, Texas, also known as Sims 2, Block 4,
Lot 1-3,S/2 4 & S % 5. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

26. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an EPA
Community Change Grant Statutory Partner Agreement between Water Finance Exchange
and the City of Kingsville. (City Engineer).

VII. Adjournment.

- No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.

2 No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.
Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with 5 affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address. ‘

4 Items being considered by the Commission for action except citizen’s comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this point without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Commission Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible
parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must
be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office at
361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595-8024 or E-Mail mvalenzuela@cityofkingsville.com for further
information. Braille Is Not Available. The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn
into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of
the matters listed above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073
Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551-074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities:
Competitive Matters), and 551-087 (Economic Development) .

|, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin
board at City Hall, City of Kingsville, 400 West King Avenue, Kingsville, Texas, a place convenient
and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the
following date and time:

November 21, 2024, at 3:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours
proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting.

SN Notwuragpe e
Mary Valen“zuela, TRMC, City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time:

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page 4 of 4
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
November 25, 2024




'MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETING(S) '



NOVEMBER 12, 2024

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS HELD ON
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2024, IN THE HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM,
400 WEST KING AVENUE, KINGSVILLE, TEXAS AT 5:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

Edna Lopez, Commissioner

Norma N. Alvarez, Commissioner

Hector Hinojosa, Commissioner (Hinojosa leaves meeting at 5:58 p.m.)
Leo Alarcon, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

Derek Williams, Systems Administrator

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Rudy Mora, City Engineer

Erik Spitzer, Director of Economic & Development Services
Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief

Diana Gonzalez, Human Resources Director
Janine Reyes, Tourism Director

Susan lvy, Park Director

Bill Donnell, Public Works Director

Deborah Balli, Finance Director

Bradley Lile, KPD Commander

Joseph Ramirez, Engineer Assistant

Manny Salazar, Director of Economic Development

. Preliminary Proceedings.

OPEN MEETING
Mayor Fugate opened the meeting at 5:00 p.m. WIth all five commission members present.

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — (Mayor Fugate)
The invocation was delivered by Ms. Courtney Alvarez, Clty Attorney, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
Reqular Meeting — October 28, 2024

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the minutes of October 28, 2024,
as presented, seconded by Commissioner Alarcon. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Lopez, Alvarez, Hinojosa, Alarcon, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

ll. Public Hearing - (Required by Law)."

1.Conduct a Public Hearing regarding the advisability of the improvements to be
financed by for the Somerset at Kingsville Public Improvement District No. 1. (City

Attorney).

Mayor Fugate opened this public hearing at 5:02 p.m. He further announced that this is a
public hearing and if anyone would like to speak on behalf of this item they may do so now
with a five-minute limit. The City Commission cannot extend additional time.

Page 1 of 8 - November 12, 2024



Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, stated that the city commission approved a resolution
on October 15, 2024. In that resolution, it had several exhibits attached and talked about
the potential types of public improvements, if this PID was created, that the funds could be
used for. Notice was published in the newspaper.

There being no comments or further discussion, Mayor Fugate closed this public hearing
at 5:03 p.m.

2. Conduct a Public Hearing requesting approval of the final plat of a 14.27 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,
recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas
(west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as
Somerset at Kingsville Unit 2B. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Mayor Fugate opened this public hearing at 5:03 p.m. He further announced that this is a
public hearing and if anyone would like to speak on behalf of this item they may do so now
with a five-minute limit. The City Commission cannot extend additional time.

Mr. Erik Spitzer, Director of Planning and Development Services, stated that the next three
agendas will sound similar to each other as they are the final three plats that remain in the
future Somerset Subdivision. Urban Engineering approached city staff in October and held
a Planning & Zoning Commission meeting last Wednesday, where all six members of the
Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously approved to support this endeavor. This will
be known at Unit 2B out of the 54.53-acre tract. Mr. Spitzer further displayed a map showing
the preliminary plat. Mr. Spitzer further stated that the notices were mailed, and staff
received no feedback from those noticed.

Commissioner Alarcon asked if the individuals from Chandler Acres were notified. Mr.
Spitzer responded that those within the 200-foot buffer were mailed a notice. Addresses
for those notices were received from the Engineering Department.

Ms. Alvarez commented that only those individuals within the 200-foot buffer would have
received a notice.

Mayor Fugate commented that everyohe should already be aware of this, as it has been in
the talks for quite some time.

There being no comments or further discussion, Mayor Fugate closed this public hearing
at 5:07 p.m.

3. Conduct a Public Hearing requesting approval of the final plat of a 9.539 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,
recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas
(west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as
Somerset at Kingsville Unit 3. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Mayor Fugate opened this public hearing at 5:07 p.m. He further announced that this is a
public hearing and if anyone would like to speak on behalf of this item they may do so now
with a five-minute limit. The City Commission cannot extend additional time.

Mr. Spitzer stated that this is similar to the item above, the only difference is the size of
parcels that are different.

Commissioner Hinojosa asked if this tract was 54.43 acres, has the commission already
approved all of them with tonight’s? Mr. Spitzer responded yes and further displayed a map
showing each unit.

There being no comments or further discussion, Mayor Fugate closed this public hearing
at 5:09 p.m.

4. Conduct a Public Hearing requesting approval of the final plat of a 17.23 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,

Page 2 of 8 - November 12, 2024



recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas,
all of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 2, Burris Acres, a Map recorded in Volume 2, Page
45, Map Records of Kieberg County, Texas as described in a General Warranty Deed
with Mineral Reservation, recorded in Document Number 332182, Official Records of
Kleberg County, Texas, (west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This
tract to be known as Somerset at Kingsville Unit 4. (Director of Planning and
Development Services).

Mayor Fugate opened this public hearing at 5:09 p.m. He further announced that this is a
public hearing and if anyone would like to speak on behalf of this item they may do so now
with a five-minute limit. The City Commission cannot extend additional time.

Mr. Spitzer stated that this is the final plat. The Planning and Zoning Commission met and
unanimously approved. Staff received no feedback from those individuals who were
noticed within the 200-foot buffer.

There being no comments or further discussion, Mayor Fugate closed this public hearing
at 5:11 p.m.

lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.?

‘At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development, Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial Services - Information,
Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports; Police & Fire
Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports;, Street Updates; Public Works-
Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park Services - grant(s) update,
miscellaneous park projects, Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements,
Public Information, Hotel Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor, Water And Wastewater Rate Study Presentation. No formal action can
be taken on these items at this time.”

Mr. Mark McLaughlin, City Manager, reported that he will be attending a meeting for the
South Texas Military Task Force tomorrow morning in Corpus Christi. He further
announced that commission members and staff will be attending TAMUK State of the
University event tomorrow at 11:00 a.m. Mr. McLaughlin further announced that NAS
Kingsville Fire Station will hold a groundbreaking on Thursday, November 14, 2024. He A
brief update was given on streets.

Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, reported that the next commission meeting is
scheduled for November 25, 2024. The deadline for staff to submit their agenda items for
this meeting is Friday, November 15, 2024.

Commissioner Alvarez announced that she will not be present for the meeting on
November 25, 2024.

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Iltems.?
1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Mrs. Vicki Benys, 1914 Martin commented that she would like to explain what 81’s Heroes
stands for and what it does to give back. She stated that this organization assists in

providing meals for the Kingsville Police Department and Kleberg County Sheriff's during
Page 3 of 8 - November 12, 2024



National Police Week. The organization also provided meals on November 4% in honor of
Sherman Otto Benys Day. The organization not only provides meals but also provides
training equipment. Just recently the organization assisted in purchasing batteries for
Kleberg County Fire Truck. This organization assists in areas where grants aren't able to
be used. Mrs. Benys further mentioned that on November 1%, there was a Blood Drive at
the Kingsville Police Department in memory of Officer Sherman Otto Benys as well as a
Memory Walk of 3 miles. On September 14" a two-day golf tournament took place which
brought in 32 teams of 4 members. Mrs. Benys commented that for the next year, they
would like to concentrate on memberships for the organization.

Ms. Janine Reyes, Tourism Director, made several announcements regarding the
upcoming events regarding Wine Walk, Ranch Hand Festival and breakfast.

Mrs. Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary, read the following public comments on behalf of the
foliowing residents: Lisa Zavala, Heather Galvan, and Rolando Galvan.

Lisa Zavala, 301 Lemonwood Dr., Kingsville, TX: “Our animal control is full” is what | keep
hearing whenever | call them out for a stray. This means I'm unable to do my job without
the city doing its own. Those who habitually have their dog unsecure not only prevent me
from delivering their mail, but their neighbors as well. | understand nobody wants to kill any
animal, but my colleagues and | are getting injured out here due to irresponsible pet owners
and a city that does nothing to enforce rules it already has. Euthanize and enforce the leash
law so that we all don’t have to fear being bit in the streets.

Heather Galvan, 421 Nelda Dr., Kingsville, TX: Leash law. Too many strays, pound is not
coming out when called. My husband is a mailman and everyday he deals with the same
dogs and owners that do not obey the leash laws. He is constantly getting attacked by
these dogs and when he tries to call the pound the pound will not come out.

Rolando Galvan, Nelda Dr., Kingsville, TX: The city has a really bad dog problem. Strays
tend to run wild all over town and when animal controlled is called they usually just do a
drive by, if they even show up at all. This is not acceptable and turning a blind eye to this
problem that has run rampant is just going to get more and more people injured every year.

Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been .
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions, and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the consent agenda as presented,
seconded by Commissioner Alvarez. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Alvarez, Hinojosa, Alarcon, Lopez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Bu Budget to accept and expend donations for the Parks Department Healthy
Family Events. (Parks Director).

Page 4 of 8 - November 12, 2024




VL.

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the City of Kingsville
Code of Ordinances Chapter V, Article 3, Water, providing for an increase in certain
irrigation water rates. (Finance Director).

3. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Budget to appropriate funding for emergency repairs on the City Hall air
conditioning unit. (Purchasing Manager).

REGULAR AGENDA _
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

4. Consideration and approval of the final plat of a 14.27 acre tract of land out of a
54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien, recorded in
Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas (west of South
Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as Somerset at
Kingsville Unit 2B. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Mayor Fugate asked if there were no objections from the City Commission, he would like
to move agenda items # 14 & 15 before item #4, as a commissioner will need to leave the
meeting early. There were no objections from the commission.

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the final plat of a 14.27 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,
recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kieberg County, Texas
(west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as
Somerset at Kingsville Unit 2B, seconded by Commissioner Alarcon. The motion
was passed and approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alarcon, Lopez, Alvarez,
Fugate voting “FOR”.

Commissioner Hinojosa leaves the meeting at 5:58 p.m.

5. Consideration and approval of the final plat of a 9.539 acre tract of land out of a
54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien, recorded in
Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas (west of South
Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as Somerset at
Kingsville Unit 3. (Director of Planning and Development Services).

Motion made by Commissioner Alarcon to approve the final plat of a 9.539 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,
recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas
(west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This tract to be known as
Somerset at Kingsville Unit 3, seconded by Commissioner Lopez. The motion was
passed and approved by the following vote: Alarcon, Lopez, Alvarez, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

6. Consideration and approval of the final plat of a 17.23 acre tract of land out of a
54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien, recorded in
Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas, all of Lot 1
and a portion of Lot 2, Burris Acres, a Map recorded in Volume 2, Page 45, Map
Records of Kleberg County, Texas as described in a General Warranty Deed with
Mineral Reservation, recorded in Document Number 332182, Official Records of
Kieberg County, Texas, (west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This
tract to be known as Somerset at Kingsville Unit 4. (Director of Planning and
Development Services).

Page 5 of 8 - November 12, 2024



Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the final plat of a 17.23 acre tract
of land out of a 54.43 acre tract, as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien,
recorded in Document Number 331247, Official Records of Kleberg County, Texas,
all of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 2, Burris Acres, a Map recorded in Volume 2, Page
45, Map Records of Kleberg County, Texas as described in a General Warranty Deed
with Mineral Reservation, recorded in Document Number 332182, Official Records of
Kleberg County, Texas, (west of South Brahma Blvd. and north of Trant Road). This
tract to be known as Somerset at Kingsville Unit 4, seconded by Commissioner
Alvarez and Commissioner Alarcon. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Lopez, Alvarez, Alarcon, Fugate voting “FOR”.

7. Consider accepting additional donations for the Parks Department Healthy
Family Events. (Parks Director).

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to accept additional donations for the Parks
Department Healthy Family Events, seconded by Commissioner Lopez and
Commissioner Alarcon. The motion was passed and approved by the following vote:
Alvarez, Alarcon, Lopez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

8. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025
Budget to accept and expend donations from Linebarger, Goggan, Blair_and
Sampson, and Vishal Raju Bhagat Foundation for the Parks Department Healthy
Family Events. (Parks Director).

Introduction item.

9. Consider_introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2024-2025
Budget to appropriate funding for emergency Fire Department vehicle repairs. (Fire

Chief).

Introduction item.

10. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the City to submit an
application to the ASPCA 2024 for the National Shelter Grant Initiative Grants:
Access To Veterinary Care Grant Program with no cash match required; authorizing
the City Manager to submit the grant and the City Health Director as the grant official
to act on the City’s behalf with such grant program. (Health Director).

Motion made by Commissioner Alarcon to approve the resolution authorizing the
City to submit an application to the ASPCA 2024 for the National Shelter Grant
Initiative Grants: Access To Veterinary Care Grant Program with no cash match
required; authorizing the City Manager to submit the grant and the City Health
Director as the grant official to act on the City’s behalf with such grant program,
seconded by Commissioner Lopez. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Alarcon, Lopez, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

11. Consideration_and approval of a resolution adopting the City of Kingsville
Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual Policy 780.10-Mental Health Leave.
(Human Resources Director).

Mrs. Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director stated that this is a new policy titled
Mental Health Leave. The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance regarding the use
of paid mental health leave for eligible employees. Mental health is another resource
designed to assist eligible employees who experience a traumatic event in the scope of city
employment. A traumatic event is an event, series of events, incident or set of
circumstances experienced by the employee, during the scope of employment, as
physically harmful, emotionally harmful, or life-threatening. The event has the potential to
cause lasting adverse effects on the employee's mental, physical, social, or emotional well-
being. Eligible full-time and part-time employees may receive up to forty (40) consecutive

Page 6 of 8 - November 12, 2024



work hours of paid mental health leave per calendar year. Employee’s leave balance will
not be reduced while employees are on approved mental health leave. Request to utilize
mental health leave and any information related to mental health leave under this policy
are confidential. The is no financial impact on the city as work hours have already been
budgeted for the year.

Commissioner Lopez asked how this leave will be tracked. Mrs. Gonzales responded that
each individual utilizing this policy will need to submit a request to their supervisor, then the
supervisor will contact the Human Resources office which will then determine the length
for this type of leave. This will be determined as per the situation. Commissioner Lopez
further asked if this leave would also be available to Police Officers and Firefighters. Mrs.
Gonzales responded that this policy will be for all city employees.

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the resolution adopting the City of
Kingsville Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual Policy 780.10-Mental
Health Leave, seconded by Commissioner Alvarez. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Alarcon, Lopez, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

12. Consideration and approval of a resolution amending the City of Kingsville
Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual for Policy 731-Flex Leave. (Human
Resources Director).

Mrs. Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director, stated that the revision to Policy 731
Flex Leave is to provide clarification and to re-establish expiration dates to flex leave hours.
Policy 731 was first adopted in November 2016 and subsequently revised in October 2021.
The original policy included an expiration for flex leave hours if not used by October 315t as
each employee would have a different expiration date for their birthday hours. The city has
developed a process to maintain flex hours and maintain a schedule for removing the
expired hours from the employee’s leave bank. The eight hours of flex leave provided in
December of each year for non-civil service employees will have an expiration date of
December 31% of the following year. To implement this revision, employees with existing
flex leave balances will have until November 30, 2025 to utilize the accrued leave or it will
be forfeited without pay. Any future granted flex leave will have a set expiration date. There
is no financial impact to the city, as flex leave hours are incorporated into each employee’s
annually budgeted hours.

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve the resolution amending the City
of Kingsville Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual for Policy 731-Flex
Leave, seconded by Commissioner Lopez. The motion was passed and approved by
the following vote: Lopez, Alvarez, Alarcon, Fugate voting “FOR”.

13. Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.087, Texas Government Code,
Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations Exception, the City
Commission shall convene in executive session to deliberate the offer of a financial
or other incentive to a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with
which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations.
(City Manager).

Mayor Fugate announced this executive session and convened the meeting into close
session at 6:11 p.m.

Mayor Fugate reconvened the meeting into open session at 6:40 p.m.

Page 7 of 8 - November 12, 2024



14. Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.074, of the Texas Open Meetings Act,
the City Commission shall convene in executive session to deliberate the evaluation
& duties of the City Manager. (Mayor Fugate).

Mayor Fugate announced this executive session at 5:26 p.m. and convened the meeting
into closed session.

Mayor Fugate reconvened the meeting into an open session at 5:55 p.m.
15. Consideration and approval of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Employment Agreement for the position of City Manager with Mark McLaughlin.
(Mayor Fugate).

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute an Employment Agreement for the position of City Manager with
Mark McLaughlin, seconded by Mayor Fugate. The motion failed by a 3-2 vote: Lopez
and Fugate voting “FOR”. Alvarez, Hinojosa, Alarcon voting “AGAINST”.

VI. Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:41 p.m.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Page 8 of 8 - November 12, 2024



PUBLIC HEARING(S)



PUBLIC HEARING #1



Prb. o

Public Notices

Originally published at caller.com on 11/15/2024

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE .

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS TO CONSIDER THE ADVISABILITY OF THE CREATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE
NUMBER THREE, CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
PURPOSES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311, TEXAS TAX CODE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas (the
“City”), pursuant to Chapter 311.003 Texas Tax Code, as amended, (the “Act”), will hold a
public hearing at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, November 25, 2024, at City Hall, 400 W. King
Avenue, Kingsville, Texas 78363, for the purpose of considering the creation of
Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, located within the boundaries
of the City and the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction.

All persons are invited to attend the hearing and speak for or agamst the creation of Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, the proposed
boundaries, or the concept of tax increment financing. Written or oral statements will be
considered. The proposed boundaries are non-contiguous and consist of approximately
200 acres within two areas. Area #1 is generally located west and east of US Highway 77,
south of E General Cavazos Boulevard, west of Brahma Boulevard, and north of FM 1717.
Area #2 consists of Property ID 16494, legally described as KT & | CO, BLOCK 30, LOT PT
5. A more detailed legal description and boundary map of the proposed Reinvestment
Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, are on file and open for public inspection in
the office of the City Secretary at City Hall, 400 W. King Avenue, Kingsville, Texas 78363.
Questions or requests for additional information may be directed to Natalie Moore, Dav1d
Pettit Economic Development, LLC, nmoore@dpedilc.com; 817-439-9515,



L‘aqnssunyjo Ayy

2U07 Jud 1S9AUIY

Xe] pasod

oJ]

d




,g%%«.._W.,__,w___
mo_Em e Z -
C# U007 E@Epmwé_@m E@E@\_u:_ xﬁ _o@mogoi .

Emucou wc_ucmc_ u_ E@E@bc__,xm H. -

R —d
g
QU
g
L
g
\Y]
Q
8
g
S
g
S
o

DAVID PETTIT

um‘mm Nd




mEm @Emcw_m% e B \@@cm
bcm E@E@uﬁ_uxw wc:@_ _ocm E@c:m@é_ EB__G& E@E._o_@>mb

M3U 1oeJ1E ___>> uﬁ_ om @coN m ul EC@E@Z:QE_ Lou_ >mg B _QB

m_£ SN uUed ‘syun meE Eﬁo E:s QEEmctg ur.Jo @co_m m@;_u

-
<
T
g
S
g
Q)
Q
9
&
Qo
S
o

DAVID PETTIT

P,

sexa| JO 21815 ay) c _ _o.@pm@b cm@.o_ @>m; mNm_ il U_o_mcmk_bc:I,

T1T€ Egmsu PO Xm.r \6 U@Em>ow

(Z3d11) suoz E@E#m@é_@m E@E@bc_ xm% e c_£_>> E@EQo_m>mU..

DILIOUOD3 m@N_>:,cmuc__pm£_ _.oB m.m_ E_b.w:_ucmc_u_x E,@E@L_uc_h ‘me

© ONIONVNIZ INIWFHONI XYL

’ ’\l=



ea) a5eg)

o paeudisagsuoz

- bzcm 3uixe} a3 0) m>>oc
| mn_m> \a‘_mao‘a _mmc ;mm\A mmmg m% co xm,h

Aus
3uIxe)
0l
SMOJ
Xel Y

(¢) ém“'?/\i"“?d}"*d??!qéx.éig;;; e

| L c_S_>>
uﬁC@C\_QO_®>®_u MalU EO\_L Umuﬁmgmcww Xmuﬁ U—O CO:LOQ e mubwk___umw_ 0
| | Eman_m>wU.co Xel >>mc_*,._ﬂ_m 10N o

¢. b ~ ONIDNVNIH LNIWIRIONI XVL

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development




L | @coN @£ wc;c@cwo_ $193[C !@_ &_@5@ _.
Gmm ‘_@Bmguv mEmeeLa E@EQo_@>@@ u_Eocouw . |
e T EC@EQSEE_ u__pso_ .

@;Busbmmtc_ .,._
SU_ >mg cmu Nm_h <

A | o k_suuo @m_\émfo 6:
>mE %E eaJe ojul Emcbmmé_ _@cm mk_@@_o_@>@@ _m;cmubo_ mubmbz

E@E@CE L@mL_m_,m 91eJouUa3 B..Nm _F
2U3 ulyim Aliadoud @_o_mxB.Eot SONUIA3J @Mmk_@\/@_ 01 >,H__,__Q<f

A113ua uixel Sunedidiied gum@ JoJ SONUIAIL puny _mL@cmm Jo
Junoude 1uatind ayl mc;umge_ pzo£_>> 92IN0S wc__@cE e m@_o_>oi

Economic Development
. K

DAVID PETTIT

eole _o@pmcw_m@@
e ulylim k_suuo_,ouﬁ _o@ub@@_xw \ﬁ_>:bm E@EQQ_,@E_D 8«2&

(73 F<,m_k<u6\yz>>




sued mc_ucmc_u_ Ucm ub@ﬂok_a e _n_ m£ uoneald 74| L ;ouyY Q

,_,q:co:ﬁmg_u;\_mn_ A11D (¢ ‘pieog ZdIL (€ ‘wJs F (2 \Cm_ocsom Q

g
= £
- S

(Y]
w o
o Q
o g
VO
< S
o0&

P,

B_u @5 Um>9@_o_< AN

ucmc_Eo 3888 \6 __ucz
1L @E \5 U@_@c@EEouQ

pue Emom

cm_m_ wc_ucmci Ucm ub@ﬁoki Eci

ueld mc_ucmc_u_ _Dcm ubmﬁoi \CBSE:EQ (S _@cm

:SIUDWIDIR Ay @>c Saysl|ge)sa @ucmc__SO co:mwk_u

ueld wc_ucmci _Qcm ub@ﬁei Nm_k Fa
@ucmc_P_O uonea.d ﬁ._

m#cwc\_suo@, urew O>>F 7L e wc_cc@Em pue
3uneald Joj mmk_j_o@uo\_o_ snoLieA s} m@c__ubow:.m .\_@Emcu

: mmm_UOW_n_ZO_ ._.<,m_ N_U Zdll



DAVID PETTIT

Economic Development

oty N 3

LTI

ZERIT WA

IPYIIRET IR

X L)

PAIR SOTTATY JRMD 3 |

PR CPIPUNDAY e e

TpH e

LLbk0S BEaY AU H

(AR
£

£
T sieley T
5
&
=
T
H
B

e apaNesz Al

g
5
2
»
3 ;
Pt
B
E g F
= X &
T e
- . "
Yam aprgiep . 5
T,
LR
2
H
=2
L g L
& ia

Luen

PA|g SOZBABD) |BJaUaD) ]

T F

R A

2




DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

; e RN e #C@E@bc_ 51_@&05
_m@L m uﬁ_ U_o o\oomlo Bmk_ m uﬁm m#ma_u_tma \ﬁ_u @f %% wc_mo@_oi .

AmeN T \_@QEBQQm \5 U@ubm__oU
9q 0} X€] S JBDA |eULl YlIM) vmom ‘I¢ L@QE@U@D uiie} JesA-og = =

202 ‘T \Cm:cmﬁ Jo se @Q_ DINOM ,@3_m> mmm@@fﬁ .
(Snongipuoouou) m@bm 00¢ >_BmE_xo\_Q@_m U_o ﬂm_mcou "

mco;u_nm_\_z mc_xﬂ __m, 0} @3cm>@L xB _mco;_%mi
DISIA [IM 18] E@E\Qo_@im_o Bm>:g @wmk_:oucw 0] S| |eOC)



4o
<
[
&
Q
o
Q
[
Q
&
&
o
<
S
Ly

DAVID PETTIT

000'082't
~Joooroog’t
~Jooooosz
000'0%0'e
000016
000'v6E'Z -
000°682°S
000000
0002252
000°000'
000°L22'€
000'0¥L'}
000°€2t'1
000°000'
000'000'
000°000'}
000°00%'%

A I N R R R S R N R RN A ] |
L T T A I T 7 o oy SRy S Y. Y Y Y

o000t
000'228'L

600'000'Z
0002282
000'000°Z
000'222'€
000°0%L'L -
000°EL¥'ZL .
000'000°S -
000'000°G -
000000’}

Ve ‘ Jueineisey
280z . jueineisay

‘Ew._:..w.,u./mwm
Jemeisey|
eyl

e :
o swren
7oL 000%0k
0982}
-000°0L
see'l
00z’
9e'29
000'6Z
00062
000'
00022

BD B BN B DR R .

’  eiey
ooy
Ieley
rejoy|

peioy|
ey
1e1ey
- tiejey
ey

B B BB B e e Eee e e ele

& N &

A A R N A

J4e3s A3ID wody Induy pue quauidojpaap pauueld

000°00¥'¢

S# ZuiL

UMOUD ‘SpUa.]} 39XJew UO Paseq ‘Zy|L 3yl 4o o4 ay3 Suunp

JN220 P|Nod 1uswdojanap

230y pue |e1a4 Jeu s3aafoud g3dq =

Juswdojaraq patedpIUY - £# 2411 AISOdOY




w&@@:n, .
SYETEILIS.

m&mw
xm h Ao:m%uuo 1910H
AthE& “mmm

o M.w._,,_. | @ m:o_ﬁ_um_s_. mc_xﬁ

| Corene

€EV'e66 15

628'962'2v$
¥S6'v10°2E$
£6v'518'65%

DTN

_muo.r

SYE'2Te9'LLS

EEV'E66'1S
628'96.LCY$
V56'v10°2€$
8E8'L6V°LLS

bcoE:< ._Qm>> mmxm Iy E:om
asl m__SmmEv_,.

| as,ao biagapy
___lasBunyjo Ao

Wouog 19N

uonedidieg
ML

pojeiouds)

: mno_ﬁnuw_.:.ru_wm:__,xmk ‘“.

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

oL

saxe] [ejo}

EK_E Lm@\» 0

@£ JOAO ‘S3S07) 109f0ud mﬁ _ccE B m:cm>m~_Nm=._. ul co_____>_
/' TT$ 21eJauas 0] _Q@ub@g@_ S| E@Eo_o_@>@D ,@Emg_u;c< @ch_

35eq {7707 & 2A0Qe @conS c_£_>> JuswaJoul >t@@_ol_@__ _m@L

o4 JO

905 2INCLIUOD PINoM BJIASBUI JO AUD 9 Buisodold

uopedpiiec

e# 7311 03SOdOYd




DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

LL

>mE E@u, mc__ mco Eot mw:_>mm _omm_>8 m@_ >mE U m mBmE_uﬂmm Em _Qmem:___ ﬂmoU mﬁ_w

. , . c@;Em_o_wcou JoJ __ucsou \ﬁ_u @cm Lmo@_ Nm_H @5.
8 _Sm>>k_ou_ Em:oa_ _@cm @>@o_m _QEm__ m@:ommpmu mﬁ £_>> E@ m_mCOU m_mmg osed Ag ased.

mm@bc_ u,mou e 8 _o@__o_o_m 2g.

i mW_Do xmh mmxm_. @E U_o NQ@ :m co:b@m :m EEEU
| E_uc: @_Q_w__@ &um:oé_ I @_os_uc_ B Em@E aJe m>oO_m @_Q_S m£ ur _oBm__ mm:ommﬁmu |yl

Toreess z

%00T S | _ﬂﬁ
%0'€ ov'ose  § $350) dANRASIUIWPY
%0¢ €0L'vOS'E m sjuesn Eman_gmo u_Eo:Sw
-t ﬂcmsgo.a&. ucm wm_u___umu_ u_zsm .ﬂ:m&go.as_ ,
%01 vECEITY ; ,w u:m sapjoe4 :o:mw..umx _u_._m v_..ma_ r&mam :mno

oua|liadxa uplysapad mﬁ mu:uc:m DY) SANUWD Eso n:c ta EB:q \mS,E@ mncumﬁmmbm

%Cl 188'TOV’ ﬂ S S ﬂcmeucm.._:u :m:umwvma |
%ST TSETSL'T $ mEmEgEnE_ UOII5IU] pUE J93A15| -
%ST seesL't 8 ‘sj)uawanoidwi Jisues | pue Suppeq|

. sjuawanolduy pup Salij1304 1230

wiojs &SE%E&E\ b:c mmaiucm gm\smm \cEEcm acmEm\.o‘iE\ pup sanop4 1230p4|

.x.m.n

¢SETSLT

8

sanlnn Ajqnd

ma Nx_._. - m«wou 13f0ad pasodouid

mu,mou ubm&o‘_n_ m# Nw_w_._. m_m_mOn_Om_n_




ucmc_?_o Em\_mgmm \6_ __ucsou B_ @5 cmﬁ
5| om NW_:. @5 \6 _.@>9@_._m sl mcm_a mc_ucmci

@ oi _mc_ NNE co% mmom mc:o_m

- i i :m_a wc_uc mc_ n_ @cm pumﬁ oi A mc_E__m:m_ .,,__,

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

cl

_ocm co;mg_u_tma AlDw

Uk_mom Nm_k.
BN U Y
Zm_oc:om_ .

1SIUSUIS|D A AL} m@gm__@_Bm@ @ucmc_?_o co;mEu .,
co:EmU_mcou pue mc_nmmw_ EN :& Lmo_Emumm_

| | mucmc_VEO
uolI1eaJD) SuliesH u__msn_ _Ucm mc_nmmw_ u,& £mN JOQUIBAON =

maEmbmz d3SOd0O¥d



CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 24-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311 OF THE TEXAS TAX
CODE, CREATING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE
NUMBER THREE, CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville, Texas (the “City”), pursuant to Chapter 311
of the Texas Tax Code, as amended (the “Act”), may designate a geographic
area within the City as a tax increment reinvestment zone if the area satisfies
the requirements of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the governing body of a municipality by
ordinance may designate a contiguous or noncontiguous geographic area that
is in the corporate limits of the municipality or the extraterritorial jurisdiction
(the “ETJ”) of the municipality to be a reinvestment zone if the governing
body determines that development or redevelopment would not occur solely
through private investment in the reasonably foreseeable future; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to promote the development of a
certain contiguous geographic area in the City and the City’s ETJ, which is more
specifically described in Exhibits "A" and “B” of this Ordinance (the "Zone"),
through the creation of a reinvestment zone as authorized by and in accordance
with the Tax Increment Financing Act, codified at Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax
Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and as required by the Act, the City has prepared a
Preliminary  Reinvestment Zone Project Plan and Financing Plan for
Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, attached as Exhibit C
(hereinafter referred to as the “Preliminary Project and Finance Plan”) for a
proposed tax increment reinvestment zone containing the real property within the
Zone; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the creation of the proposed
zone was published in a newspaper having general circulation in the City on
November 15, 2024, which date is before the seventh (7th) day before the public
hearing held on November 25, 2024; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearing on November 25, 2024, interested persons
were allowed to speak for or against the creation of the Zone, the boundaries of
the Zone, and the concept of tax increment financing, and owners of property
in the proposed Zone were given a reasonable opportunity to protest the
inclusion of their property in the Zone; the public hearing was held in full
accordance with Section 311.003(c) of the Act; and



WHEREAS, evidence was received and presented at the public hearing on
November 25, 2024, and in favor of the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, after all comments and evidence, both written and oral, were
received by the City Commission, the public hearing was closed on November
25,2024; and

WHEREAS, the City has taken all actions required to create the Zone including,
but not limited to, all actions required by the home-rule Charter of the City,
the Act, the Texas Open Meetings Act (defined herein), and all other laws
applicable to the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, the percentage of the property in the proposed zone, excluding
property that is public owned, that is used for residential purposes is less than
thirty percent; and

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Project and Finance plan has been prepared for the
proposed reinvestment zone.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. RECITALS INCORPORATED.

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby
found and declared to be true and correct.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS.

That the City Commission, after conducting the above described hearing and having
heard the evidence and testimony presented at the hearing, has made the following
findings and determined based on the evidence and testimony presented to it:

(a) That the public hearing on the creation of the reinvestment zone has been
properly called, held, and conducted and that notice of such hearing has been
published as required by law; and

(b) That the creation of the proposed reinvestment zone with boundaries as described
and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B” will result in benefits to the City, its residents
and property owners, in general, and to the property, residents, and property owners
in the reinvestment zone; and

(c) That the proposed reinvestment zone, as defined in Exhibits “4” and “B”, meets
the criteria for the creation of a reinvestment zone set forth in the Act in that:

1. It is a geographic area located within the City limits of the City and the City’s
ETJ; and '
2



2. That the City Commission further finds and declares that the proposed zone
meets the criteria and requirements of Section 311.005 of the Texas Tax Code
because the proposed zone is predominantly open and, because of obsolete platting,
deterioration of structures or site improvements, or other factors, substantially
impair or arrest the sound growth of the City or county.

- (d) That 30 percent or less of the property in the proposed reinvestment zone,
excluding property dedicated to public use, is currently used for residential
purposes; and

(¢) That the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the proposed
reinvestment zone according to the most recent appraisal rolls of the City, together
with the total appraised value of taxable real property in all other existing
reinvestment zones within the City, according to the most recent appraisal rolls
of the City, does not exceed 50 percent of the current total appraised value of
taxable real property in the City and in the industrial districts created by the City,
if any; and ‘

(f) That the improvements in the proposed reinvestment zone will significantly
enhance the value of all taxable real property in the proposed reinvestment zone
and will be of general benefit to the City or county; and

(g) That the development or redevelopment of the property in the proposed
reinvestment zone will not occur solely through private investment in the
reasonable foreseeable future.

SEC-TION 3. DESIGNATION AND NAME OF THE ZONE.

Pursuant to the authority of, and in accordance with the requirements of the Act, the
City Commission hereby designates the area described and depicted in Exhibits “A”
and “B” hereto as a tax increment reinvestment zone. The name assigned to the zone
for identification is Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas
(hereinafter referred to as the “Zone”).

SECTION 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

That a board of directors for the Zone (“Board”) is hereby created. The Board shall
consist of five (5) members comprised of four (4) City Commission members and the
Mayor.

The Mayor shall serve as chairman of the Board and the Board may elect a vice
chairman and such other officers as the Board sees fit. Additionally, éach taxing unit
that levies taxes within the Zone and chooses to contribute all or part of the tax
increment produced by the unit into the tax increment fund may appoint one member
of the board. The number of directors on the Board of Directors shall be increased by
one for each taxing unit that appoints a director to the board; provided, that the
maximum number of directors shall not exceed fifteen (15).

3



The Board shall make recommendations to the City Commission concerning the
administration, management, and operation of the Zone. The Board shall prepare and
adopt a project plan and a reinvestment zone financing plan for the Zone and submit
such plans to the City Commission for its approval. The Board shall perform all duties
imposed upon it by Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code and all other applicable laws.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Board shall not be authorized to
(1) issues bonds; (ii) impose taxes or fees; (iii) exercise the power of eminent domain,
or (iv) give final approval to the Zone’s project plan and financing plan.

Pursuant to Section 311.010(h) of the Act and Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas
Constitution, the City Commission hereby authorizes the Board, as necessary or
convenient to implement the Project and Finance Plan and achieve its purposes, to
establish and provide for the administration of one or more programs for the public
purposes of developing and diversifying the economy of the Zone, eliminating
unemployment and underemployment in the Zone, and developing or expanding
transportation, business, and commercial activity in the Zone, including programs to
make grants of land and buildings and make grants from the Tax Increment Fund for
activities that benefit the Zone and stimulate business and commercial activity in the
Zone. In addition, the City Commission hereby authorizes the Board to exercise all of
the powers of the City under Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, as amended.

SECTION 5. DURATION OF THE ZONE.

That the Zone shall take effect immediately upon the passage and approval of this
Ordinance, consistent with Section 311.004(a)(3) of the Act, and termination of the
Zone shall occur upon any of the following: (i) on December 31, 2054 (with the
final year’s tax increment to be collected by September 1, 2055); (ii) at an earlier time
designated by subsequent ordinance; (iii) at such time, subsequent to the issuance of
tax increment bonds, if any, that all project costs, tax increment bonds, notes and
other obligations of the Zone, and the interest thereon, have been paid in full, in
accordance with Section 311.017 of the Act.

SECTION 6. TAX INCREMENT BASE AND TAX INCREMENT.

That the tax increment base for the Zone, as defined by Section 311.012(c) of the Texas
Tax Code, shall be the total appraised value of all real property in the Zone taxable by
a taxing unit, determined as of January 1, 2024, which is the year in which the Zone was
designated as a reinvestment zone. '

The TIF Fund shall consist of (i) the percentage of the tax increment, as defined by
Section 311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, that each taxing unit which levies real
property taxes in the Zone, other than the City, has elected to dedicate to the TIF Fund
under an agreement with the City authorized by Section 311.013(f) of the Texas Tax
Code, and (ii) fifty percent (50%) of the City’s tax increment, as defined by section
311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, subject to any binding agreement executed at any

4



time by the City that pledges a portion of such tax increment or an amount of other
legally available funds whose calculation is based on receipt of any portion of such tax
increment.

SECTION 7. TAX INCREMENT FUND.

That there is hereby created and established a “Tax Increment Fund” for the Zone
which may be divided into such subaccounts as may be authorized by subsequent
ordinance, into which all tax increments of the City, as such increments are
described in the final project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and may
include administration costs, less any of the amounts not required to be paid into the
Tax Increment Fund pursuant to the Act, are to be deposited. The Tax Increment Fund
and any subaccounts are to be maintained in an account at the affiliated depository
bank of the City and shall be secured in the manner prescribed by law for funds of
Texas cities. In addition, all revenues from (i) the sale of any obligations hereafier
issued by the City and secured in whole or in part from the tax increments; (ii) the sale
of any property acquired as part of a tax increment financing plan adopted by the Board;
and (iii) other revenues dedicated to and used in the Zone shall be deposited into the
TIF Fund. Prior to the termination of the Zone, money shall be disbursed from the Tax
Increment Fund only to pay project costs, as defined by the Texas Tax Code, for the
Zone, to satisfy the claims of holders of tax increments bonds or notes issued for the
Zone, or to pay obligations incurred pursuant to agreements entered into to implement
the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and achieve their purpose
pursuant to Section 311.010(b), Texas Tax Code.

SECTION 8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a’ court of competent jurisdiction, it is
expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect. The City hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof irrespective
of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid. '

SECTION 9. OPEN MEETINGS.

It is hereby found, determined, and declared that sufficient written notice of the date,
hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Commission at which this Ordinance
was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the
general public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law preceding its
meeting, as required by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, and that this
meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which this
Ordinance and the subject matter hereof has been discussed, considered and formally
acted upon. The City Commission further ratifies, approves and confirms such written
notice and the contents and posting thereof.

5



SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and publication in
accordance with and as provided by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25" day of November, 2024.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _12" day of December, 2024.

Effective Date:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela
City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez
City Attorney



EXHIBIT A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The TIRZ is non-contiguous and consists of two areas, further described below.
Area #1

Beginning at the point where the eastern right of way boundary of Highway 77 meets the
northwest corner of Property ID 33335, thence

East along the northern boundary of Property ID 33335, continuing south and then west along the
boundary of Property ID 33335 to the point where the southeast corner of Property ID 10621
meets the northeast corner of Property ID 22312, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 22312 to the point it meets the northeast corner
of Property ID 12190, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 12190 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of Trant Road, thence

South across Trant Road to the southern right of way boundary of Trant Road, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of Trant Road to the point it meets the northeast
corner of Property ID 42561, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 42561, continuing west along the southern
boundary of Property ID 42561 to the point it meets the southeast corner of Property ID 17015,
thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 17015 to the point it meets the eastern right of
way boundary of FM 1717, thence

North along the eastern right of way of FM 1717/Brahma Boulevard to the point it meets the |
northwest comner of Property ID 13841, thence

West along the northern boundary of Property ID 13841 to the point it meets the southwest
corner of 30949, thence

North along the western boundary of Property ID 30949 to the point it meets the southern
boundary of Property ID 19114, thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 19114, continuing along the boundary of
Property ID 19114 to the point it meets the southern boundary of Property ID 10621, thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 10621, continuing along the boundary of
Property ID 10621to the point it meets the northwest corner of Property ID 46276, thence



East along the northern boundary of Property ID 46276 to the point the northeast corner of
Property ID 46276 meets the western right of way boundary of Highway 77, thence

East across Highway 77 to the point where the eastern right of way boundary of Highway 77
meets the northwest corner of Property ID 33335, which is the point of beginning.

EXHIBIT A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED)
Area #2 .

Consisting of Property ID 16494, legally described as K T & I CO, BLOCK 30, LOT PT 5.



EXHIBIT B
‘BOUNDARY MAP

£
v
R

s

2
NGy
e ey

! - TIRZ Boundary '




EXHIBIT C
PRELIMINARY PROJECT PLAN AND FINANCE PLAN

10



JAAOPAA OU0IT
L1113d QiAva

S# ZulL ‘veld m:_ocmc_“_, pue Josfoid Em:._E__En._

TPRET A

SSTTIRTIG

sexal ‘@||IASBUIY JO A1)
¥20Z ¥3gN303a -# BUOZ JUBWI]SaAUIY JudWaIou] Xe|

NYTd ONIONVNI4 ANV LO3rodd AHYNINITIdd



WAA0RA3E NUWIOU0IT
L11l13d diAva

Ema
us1eaq syl Jo uoisinoxe sjgensiioun ue Aofud pue
suonorIe [290] J0 ‘slusae pauueld Sunioxs ‘swnasnw
au0sIy AU INO JO SUO N0 *BMije Sjedo| pue SIoUSIA
10§ S1USWIYS]eISD [Iejol pue ‘sjueinelsal ‘sopanoe
100pPINO JO UONDDISS BSIBAIP B SI9R0 Aipnoxd ajiasgury

“Hodily Auno) B1eqa)y ot
Ay nok usym a|qissenoe A@1eIpowwi osje §| alIAsBuIy
*'ssu Pajun pue ISaMUINOg ‘udusily AQ paales §]
pue ‘Hodiy [euopewisiu] nsuy) sndiog Jo IsemyInos
sojiw 8¢ Pa1ed0] ! 3|AsBuly *peolyeY oyloed uouf
au1 Aq s9)ues [1ed BuloBIN0 pue SUIWOoU] UM pares
osle s| A119 ayL jons} Aq SjjIASBUY O} JUSJUSAUOD BB
UOISNOH pue I Uy9.sndio) Jo suod oy wolp pue o}
sjuswdyg "sejjeq pue uoISnoH .o_:o~:< ues wouy sauy
Sunosuuod ysnoyy eopmses punogino pue punoqui
opinoid sIspIRY MONN [BUONBU PUB [220] LI0g "pEOI
Asnq e s} 4011102 69-] 5111 Jo Led e SWo0Sq 0} U0oS *J 7
KemysiH -0oIXeA 01 Sex] 04} JOP1LI00 JOfBW e S| Yoiui
‘14 RemuBiH "S- 4o Isnf sus Ao ay) Miunwwod
199415 UlBA v, Se Jiesy sejowoid Jey) Aunwiwos siyy
Jog snjd e 51 skemysiy Jofew oy Auwixoid s ByIAsBuY

*Sa|uedwod [elISNpU) 00G SUNO [BI9ASS pue cozmum
Iy [eAeN e ‘gjjiasdury INRY sexa), ‘fus1aaun ssmome
algnd Suipes| e 0} swoy os[e s1 pue sjdoad 000" Gz
Keau 0y stuoy s| sllAsSury “1som auy uo Anunog ysnig
BU} pue Ises ay] UO ISE0D JND SEXSL 9y} Ussmieq
pauoiisod s1 ‘AJunod Brega|y up payeno] ‘X1 ‘o|iiAsSuip

€4# ZHIL ‘ueld m:_ucmc_u_ u:m —ummohn_ Em:.E__mE

et aq Aew SoouBIBYIP B Pue ‘pajoadya se ngge
0U, 0p Apuenbai} SIOUBISWINOAD PUB SJBAe 9SNEBISY SYNSAI Jenioe pue
peloafoid usamisq saduaiaip aq Ajfenst ((im sioy) *ABojoyaksd jesew pue
Jawnsuod SuiBueyd o} 103fgns se [lom se ‘ealfofo eq ues sjexiew Suisnoy
pue Awouose auyi 1eyy ueng Apenopued 4oipaid oy AnoYNp St ainng sy,

*paunsnl s a1e Aoyl jeyy ainsus o} Aljeoipoyad suondunsse
J08f01d A3y USIAGE O) pue ‘fsnonunuoo layiew sleise |gat pue Awouoss
aUt Jonuowi 0} jeanud §| ) ‘feaioko ale sieyJeil 2181sa {ees pue sfueyo
UEJ SUORIPUCD OfOUSD JBUY USAID 7evlelu e1elss [eas pue fwouoss
|eo0] Jo/pue ‘jeuongu oyy Jo eouewiouad pejadya iy pue Ssuon|plicd
19)%iBWl JUALNY UO PIsEq I8 SUORBPUSWOD3L PUB SUOISNIOU0D INQ

HIWIVIISIa

or v xipuaddy il

ST suonipuog pue suus) i

sisfjeuy Agiseay [epueu)y i

9 s1s09 1afoid Ml

1uswdojaraq pasodosd [l

suoppuog jusuny i

frepunog zuil Wl

- N M, 0

uoptonposu; [l

SIUBUOY J0 Bjge]

pIomai04



Juawdoersg Juiouodg
11113d GIAVG

T
£# ZHIL ‘Ue]d Supueul puE 10801y

Ayjjed unw sy} Jo cesam punos sy} w__maE_ 0} maczcoo pinom Ausdoud voc_ommm a1 ‘zy1L )
40 uopEusWaldwy By INOUIM "ajiAsBuly Jo A9 2y3 Suipniou ‘suonoipsunf Buixey s(qiSe Jo uopedionued waoler pe ygnoiy) Siuswanodw] 3s3Y) puny ued ZjL aY] "s)uesg Juswdojorsp oiuIouoos pue ‘3unysi| 1ea.3s pue seminn
‘sspilioey sied pue soeds usdo *s)uswancidul UORDaSISIUL Pue3sans se jjom se ‘sayjioe) Jerem wiols pue 4omas Aieyues ‘19)em 0] paieje) spuawaoiduy oygnd uy SE'289'TT$ Jo Buipuny syy seuipno ueid Sulousuy pue 30sfosd syt

) *suonolpsunf Buixe) teso] j1e 01 3NuUaNSLXe} [RUORIPPE PIOIA M Jeu} uswwidojersp ayeaud sfeinoous o} pue aimonasenyu) gnd

Papaau 0 UORINASUOD BY3 puny o} si (S# 74 1) €4 auoz JuswisaAulay Juswsiou| Xet Jo1eos 8] "sexal ‘sjas3uiy 40 A9 ‘ealy ) Jaquinp auoz lusunssauiey se ra.mavco;o_nm_\_:__m._._og._\_wumbxm s A0 81 Jo sy QYT UM pue sy
AD ayd ulyum ease oydesSoeg snongpuod e Sujjeudisep souruipio ue 1apisuoa jiim ‘ape) xel sexal sy} Jo TLg Jaideys o) Juensind ‘(.UoISS{UI0Y, B} sexs] ‘s|AsSuly 40 R1D 8y 4o uOISSILIWIOY M) B4 HZOT ‘6 Jequistsg ug
) ] *(Zu11) suoz EmEuwm\E_m.m_ juswaiou] xm..F. eseeale o_:mm‘_momw 813 o udljeuBIsap S} 10} 1hq IN950 JoU pinom
ey Juawdojenapal pue Juawidojeisp msu 10} paysgie) ease alydeifoss e aleusisap Aew Ao y “eale 9(ydei30s3 payloads e uyum Jiswdojeispal pue judidojedsp mau Yloq ei0wod o) pash 100% e ] (J11) Surdueurd swalou) XeL

s[lInsBUN JO A3 ‘4 QUOZ JUDLIISOAUISY IUSLUBIOU] XeL

uononpou|



JawdeAq NWOUeIT 4 2 [4
11L13d QlAva

| Buuuigeg
J01ujod

gtary

'S
1d 107°0€ Y0074 ‘00 |8 1) se paquosap AjjeSs| pue ‘13 S,A1D 21 UM *6H9T a] Aledold jo Bunsisuo)
C# ealy

.m:_c:_mm.n_ 01utod ayy s yolym ‘segee q Ausdoid jo Jaul09 3samyniou
ay3 s108W /2 AemyBiH Jo Aiepunog Aem Jo JUS) Wisisea oy a1aum Jujod oy} 01 /2 femyBiH ssoioe iseq

2ous\y 2, AemyS)H Jo Alepunoq fem JO 1B UISISIM By} S1eoW 99t
al Ausdoid 4o JeuI00 JseayLIOU By Juiod ayy 0 9129¥ af Ausdold 4o fuepunog useyuou i Buoe jsex

£# ZH11 ‘ueld u:_ocms.._ pue 109foid Em:_E__mE

AR T oA SIS

8%ua} ‘9229 Q1 Auadoid 40 JoUl0d 1SaMULIOU U} S1eaW 3 Julod a3 0)TZ90T
Q) Auedoyd Jo Arepunog ay3 Buoje Buinupuod ‘F290T Q| Auedold Jo Arepunog useyinos ayy Buoje 1sam

sousyl 'TZo0T Al »tuaem 40 A1lepunoqg wisynos syl s1vaw 3 Juiod ay3 0}
YTT6T dlAuadoid Jo Aepunoq auy Suoje Bumunuos ‘4T T6T Al Rusdoid Jo Mrepunog uiayinos syy Suoje 15oM

80uay} ‘TTET A} Auedord
4o Asepunog waynos sy s1eaw 3 Julod sy} 0} 660 Q) Auadoly J0 Aiepunoq uisisem ayy Suoje YUoN

souey)
6Y60E 40 J9U109 ISBMYINOS 8y} S199W 3 Juiod oY} 0} THSST ] Ausdold Jo Arepunog wisyyou sy Suoje 1som

8ousul ‘By8ET QI Anedold jo
481100 1s8MYLIOU SU) S}93W U Wlod 8] 0} PIRASINOg BWIYRIA/JTLT INJ 10 fem 0 3y Wisises sl SUOJE yuoN

_ _ ©0UBYY *ATLT WA JO
Arepunoq Aem 0 JUBH useIses sy} speew ) uiod 8Y101 60T A | Ausdold J0 K1epunog uIaYINos syl Fuoje 1sopm

93usY) *GTOLT QI Ausdoid JO iBUI09 1Se3YINOS JY) S}9aw 11 Juiod S} 6} T9G¢Y ql Auedold
Jo Arepunog uiayinos ayy uoje 1sem SUINURUOCY ‘TOCZY at Apadoid jo Arepunog uiaises sy} Buoje YInos

20UBYY 'TOGTY i MJedold
40 J5U109 JsRAYMOU By} SIEAW I Julod ayd 0} PEOY R JO Klepunog Aem 40 31 wisyInos ay} Suoe 1S9

3ousLy ‘peoy Juel) Jo A1lepunog Aem JO JYSU UISYINOS BY) O} PEOY JUBI] SSOIO8 YINOS

sousy) ‘peoy juel) jo Lrepunoq
Kem jo JyBu ussyuoU a1 sioaw Y Juod BU 01 OBTCT Qi Ausdold Jo Liepunog wisises ayy Suoje INog

S3UBY} ‘06TZT Al
Apedoid Jo Jou100 1SeslLIoU B S1esUW itod 8431 01.2TE2Z Al Auadold Jo Aiepunog uis)ses ay3 suole yinosg

sousll ‘ZTECT Q) Anadold Jo Joui0d
1SBaYLIoU 8y} 5199w TZ90T @] A4sdold 10 JBUI0D ISeayINoS 8y} alsym julod oy 01 mwmmm @l Auadoig jo
Aiepunog ay) Buoje 1sem U] pue LINOS BUINURUOD ‘GEEEE Al Ausdoid JO Alepunog wayuou ay) Suoje 1seq

82UaUY *'GEEEE QI Ausdold jo
42100 IsamyLiou syy syesw £/ AemuBiH jo Aiepunoq Aem o JyBi uisises oyl alaym juiod ay) 18 Buuuigeg

T# ealy
€4 ZYIL uonduasag |efa]

13 844D Y3 WIyIM Pa1eao] S| Z# ealy Pue ‘syull| AID BY1 UIYNIM PEIRIC] S] T4 BAIY "MO[S] PoqLIsap J8yIng ‘seaie oM} JO SISISUOD pUB SNONBIU0I-UOU Si ZH|L Y1 "S810€ O0Z Ajstewxoidde 4o SISISU0D £ Zu(L

uondussaqg Arepunog

Arepunog ZyiL



Wawdoprag Rwoudg
i1iL13d dlava

€
€# Z411. ‘ueld Supueuld pue jaford Aeupujoid

R D e e S R A RS

*Zd11 94} JO }nsal & Se seoueuIPIO [ediojunw Jaylo Jo SuoRe(ngal pue sajn
uoISINpAnNs ‘sapod Bulpjing ‘ueld Jsiseus ‘oouruIpIo BUIUOZ S{IIASBU Jo A1) oY) 0} SeBueyo Aue o 1M asay) pajedionue Jou st )] Juswdojaasp a1mny Aue s1epowiosse 0} PaLU0zal 9 0} psau few Auadoid ayy ‘pauocz jou sifig
B3 Ul s11ey) ZHIL 943 uiyim puel ay) <(uea)B ul papeus) Jouisid IIswog ) PUE (pal Ul papeys) J0LISIA JiEeY 12D (Mofjak Ul papeys) 101IsIq [eINYNoLSY DY PauDZ st ST AID SUL UILUM S| 1eY) ZHL SUD UIYM pue| 8y

Suuoz
*sesodind Jenuspisel Jol pasn s| ‘paumo Aoignd st yeys Auadoud Suipnioxe ‘suoz sy u) Auadold sy
Jo1usaiad Og Ueyl s87 “Jueld JSIBM S)SEM B Y)iM POACIOWY S| Z# BaIY OU0Z L Ujm Aadosd 1910 € osfe s} a10y] Jusiudojersp ainny 1oy pauonisod |[am S| Jey) pue| Jueden Alliewiid STeU02 U3 JO T# Baly UM puE| ay),

asf) pue

SUOIIPUGY JUBLIND



JuadopAsg IOU0IZ : . k.
1iL13d alAva o £# ZH1L ‘veld Supueury pue 109fo1d Aieupwiisig

R A R T

¥ Xipuaddy ass zy)1. mﬁ UIy3im pOPNIoUl S{9ased 10 S{1EISP JaUUNY 104 *9IqEIIEAE B1E SIN[eA SjqexE] 20T leul ay) Usym JoL3sIq [esteiddy
Aunog B1aqsiy Aq payueA aq 0} pasu (i Snjea sseq $Z0g oYL YOV YETYS St ZUIL 9U) uium Aadod auy 0 anfen oseq a|qexe) PelRWIISS By "E# BUOZ JUSUISIAUIOY JUBLBIOU] XB] UMM S[edled 9T, ARUSLING Ble sioy]
diysisumo juaung

"ZLL 541 Jo uopeusws|dul SU3 JO JINSal Se Paleoojs] 8q 0} pasU 0 padeldsip ag jMm suosiad Aue 1ey: paredionue J0u s |
paoeldsiq 29 0} SUoSISY SUNEaojoY JO Poulel

SUONIPUOY JualIN)



Juawdejanag Jwonog
11L13d diava

S
£# Nm_.—., ‘ueld mc_ocm:_n_ pue 393{oid bﬂ:_r:_._w._n_

B A B T R,

: '9 852 UD PAUIANO $1500 308[04d B4 PUNY 0} ANUBASY ZHLL U] GE'T8O'TTS SIeioues
01 payoafoud s) ustudofaasg paredionuy syl Juswidojenag perediopuy sy JO onjeA 8jqexe] 70z parewss syl ww.cmm.&qﬂ 000°200°89%x

000'000° ¢ | ooo'odo'e $ 00z $ 000°0¢ 0£02 [EEN]
- $ ) 000°009's $ 000'0L $ 08 0€02 19j0H
000'501°L $ | coo'soL’L $ o0z $ §26's ¥£02 einejsey
000'22¢") $ | 000'zze"t ¢ 002 $ Geg'9 ze02 jueinejsoy
000082 $ | oco'osz’y $ o0z $ 00%'9 002 juBinejsay
000'00g'} $ ] ooo'oog’y $ o002 $ 005'9 8202 JueInejsaYy
000'006'2 $ ] 0000062 $ 00z $ 0057l ¥£02 ey
000'0+0'¢ $ | 0o0'ovo's $ o00C $ 00zZ's) 2e0z SN
000016 $ | 000'0L6 $ 00z $ 0587 oeoz ey
000'76€'Z $ | ooo'veez $ 002 $ 0/6'LL 8202 rejey
000'682'¢ $ | ooo's82'e $ 00z $ Svy'ol 820C ey
000°000'2 $ | ooo'o00'z $ 00z $ 000'0} 820T trered|
000262 $ ] ooo'zis'T $ 002 $ 098zl 8202 - ey
000'000'C $ | 000'000'2 $ 002 $ 000'0L 8202 ey
000'222'e $| oo0'222'¢ $ o0z $ g8eol 8202 lieyey
000'0¥1 $ ] o0o'ovlLL ¢ 002 $ 00.'s 820Z ey
000'sLt'z) $| oov'ezv'et $ ooz $ 59¢°29 8coe. ey
000°000'g $ | ooo‘000's $ o0z $ 0005 8e0z ey
000'000'S $ | 000'000's $ 002 $ 000'sZ . 8202 leoy
000'000°L $ | 000'000'L $ ooz $ 000'G 8202 lleoy
00000V $ | 000'00'y $ o002 $ 00022 8202 ey

. ) ) ZY1L 9yl ulyim
pajesouagd xey Auadoud jeas [ejuawaloul Aq 1ed ul u.ou:mcc 8( PIN093 ZyiL sUl UIYUM SIN920 ey uswdofeasp sy eyl pajediojjue S| I ‘ueIs A9 woiy indu) pue quswdojeasp pauued UMOUY ‘spuaJy 1syiew Lo paseq ‘Zy1L auy
40 a1 3uy Buunp 1nooo pincs syosfoid qadd 18yl JuswidojeAsp [efueiod Jo Buiwmn pue odods 83 JO MIINIBAO Ue saplroid Mofaq sjqe; ay | “Juduidojanspal pue uaudojanap 24Ny 10§ pauoisod [jom S| SU0Z aUY UIGYM Pue] Sy,

juawidojansg patedionuy

uswdojorag pesodold



Juatdopnsg Ruwou0d

9
11L13d aiava

auoz
841 Jo4 suejd 10afo1d 83 Jo uonBjUBWS|AW! SY3 03 40 SUOZ U} JO UOHESID D] O JUBJLSAUOD JO Klessagau spuy
Apoqg 3uluisacd ay) ey Ainod 1o Alfediolunw sy} Jo %on Buiuwisnog ey 10 uons.osIp ayy Hm spew syuswfed (7)

pue ‘a1els S|y} Jo UoISINPANS feamjod JoLo 1o “JOUISIP 959109 AUNLILIOS JOLISIP JOOYDS B O Jleyaq uo 1o Aq
PaUMO SBUIP|ING JaUY0 JO ‘salyilioe) [eUOIeONPS JBINO SBUIPING EUO/IEANPS JALI0 ‘SBUIP(INg JO0Y9S JO S1S00 8l (¥)

fueqd 10sfoid ayy “_o :o_uﬂ:msw_n_s_
83 10} aNUDASI [43USE W0 AUNOD J0 AYedisunu 8y} A SPEW SUONNYLIIUCY AU JO JUNoWe ayl (N

'sayl1oe) Y08fo1d pue auoz JUIWIISSAUIRI 8y} Buljelado Jo umoo an ()

umN__Samc
10U 40 JayIBYM ¢ :o:osbm:oo 0 uoha|dwod Jeyie Jeak SUo Jo) PUB LORONASUOD Sulnp ucm a105a0 3524031 (H)

‘suoz ayJoy uejd y0efosd auyy Sunuawaldui o 102 ay) pue ‘au0z au} 4o uofieasn ay} Suiziolgnd jo
uwoo O3 'S3IPN]S JAY10 10 SSIPNIS J0BdW] [EJUSWUOLAUS Bunonpuoo 4o s1so9 ay3 Suipnjou ‘s1s00 _mco_uwu_:mm‘_o (o)

151500 :o_umoo._ﬁ [&)]

tuejd 308fo1d & Jo uonEBIUBWLIALLI BYY YIM UORIBULOS U} AUNOS JO b__ma_o_::E
au) Jo saafojdwe Aq Juads awp ayy 10} soRIRYD SjgeUoSEal w:_n:_c:_ 51509 oAREASIUIIpE um«:aE_ ()]

‘sa0|Al8E puB
29JApE {eg9] pue ‘BunsauBus .m:.::m_a 1e4N10SYUDIE IO} PoLINOUL SSOYY BUIPNIoul ‘S}S09 80IAISS JeuoIssaoid (q)

51500 apEmmmm Auedod ear (D)

funiew m‘_ouan mco_umm__n_o auyljo :o_uaEqu
ay} jo asnessq m:o_umm__no mﬁ 0 unowe |edioupid ay) Jeno pred winjwaid Aue pue 51509 399f01d Joy Ked o nm:wm_
SUOHEFIIGO 1S40 10 SSBUPSIGEPUI JO SSOUBPING 4o s1epjoy 01 pred Jsaseul Jje Buipnjoul ‘s1so0 Suloueuy (g)

puey o Buipess pue m::mm_o ayy pue uawdinba pue puey Jo uorysinboe sy} JO $1S00 _mEom mﬁ

pue .ww:_u__zn ayeaud Jo o..n:n jo :oE_oEmu ayy 4051509 _maom ayy .wc_u__sa aeaud Jjo o__n_a e Jo apede} mS 0
uonenssaid au3 o S1S00 [enjoe aul ‘s8uipjing Jo puey areaud Jo oljgnd S3eUIWIEIU0S 1Y) SUONIPUCS JO HoNeIpoal
9Y3 JO S1$09 [enj0e By} salnixy pue ‘sainlonans .mw..__u_sn_ BUNISIX® JO UONONASU0DA) 10 “reday ‘Suepowas
‘uopessie ‘uohijouiap ‘Uotisinboe By} 10 SIS0 [ENIOE BY] iSBIMXY pue ‘oINS ‘STUIpIig MaU ‘Suswranosdw
algnd ‘sxpiom a1gnd JO UCHONASUI0D PUE UOISINDIE BY} JO §1500 [BNJoE B1Y) wc_us_us $1509 jeydes (y)

:apnfoul ,$1509 199[04d;, "SUOREBIIIO pue sainypusdxe mmoﬁ O} [2)UapIaUI S1S00 JaYlo

snid ‘suoz sy Funysusq s10af0sd Jato Jo ‘swesFoid ‘syuswaroidwl ajgnd ‘sxiom u__n:u 10 51500 SE uejd y0efoud
SU1 ui pas]| ale Jey) SUOZ JUSWISSAUPRI B SuieuFisep Qunod 1o Ajjedidtunul 8y3 AY Painoul 8y 0] PaEWNSS JO
paLInou) suonesijqo Alelsuow pue speul a9 0y PoleWNSS 10 dpew saInyipuadxe auyy suesw 1500 3foud,, (T)

'¢00°TTE "08S
apoY Xe| sexal ayy Jo TTE Jordeyn

e Nm_._. ueld mc_ocmc_u_ pue jo0foid Aeugwitosd

"UOREISPISUCD 10 J19UN0Y AD PUE PIEOE ZXIL SYI 0 PiemIo)

INoIq pue ‘g00"TTE UOR0SS “TTE 1910ByD UM WASISUOD SISE 9SBO-AQ-0SET B L0 PAIen|eAs oq
llim 51509 08f01d ZHIL [ERPIAIRUL BY) 18U} pajedionue §] 3] “SUCHIPUOS ISyIBW Ao AP Jusludojorsp
1o} puewsap 01 303fqns ‘ZY11 BUY3 40 WIS} AY) JaA0 PaLINaU] g 0} peredionue ale s3s0d Joafoid Bl

*3U0Z 8} U] AUAIOR [BIOIOWIUIOD pUB $S2UISN] V)ENIUNS PUB JUOZ BY} Jysuag

ey} SalIARO. J0J. SUOZ 9} 10} PUN) JUSWSIU] XE} Y3 01Ul pred pue Ajediounw a3 Aq pasnpoid
JuBLULIOU XE) JO JUNOWe S} PSIX 0} 10U Jundwe s1efaisse suy suwy| pue ueid Buioueuy
pue10afoid e ulyum O8E Jidey) Jo Auone sy sjtelap 8pog xel. sexa] au1 Jo (4} 0TO TTE
uooag .Em.Eno_w>mu 3JWOU0I2 a1enuins o3 spuny ollgnd Jo sueo] pue sjuess 3o 0y Aoune
ay3 sexa) u) sepe nw syues§ 8P0Y JUSWIIAA0D) 2207 BUL JO 08E Jaidey) qusuidojersp
Q1end pue aijqnd 1o} S89IAISS pue *sueo] ‘siuels aphjoul Aeul sjuels) Jusiudojessq JIWOU0o

*ue|d Bupoueuy pue
10801d 3y 03 Juswpuswe Ue InoulMm papasoxa a4 10u |feys 12y saimypuadxe uo dea e paispisuod
aq fjeys JunoLe (301 1500 Josfoid GHE'Z8O TTS SYL "WaH aulf JSLIOUE U] 9SESI9UI 1509 & 0 psijdde

20 Aews woy duj] duO WOl SBUIARS "PISIAGI aq el pUE SBBLIISS BIe SA0qE PESH S1S09 10afoid
81 "8po) Xel sexal 83 J0 Z00TTE Uonoas ‘TT¢ J8idey) Jspun sjqisys syosfoid jje dpnjoul 0}
ueaW Ste pue 'sjuswiancidwl o1gnd SNOLEA SUIINO SA0TE BJqB) BYY. Ul PalS]] SIL0Fe180 By |

%0E
%0E__ | €0L%05E

$150) SAlensIUIWpY
sjuelo juawdojanaq J1wouody

sjuswianoldwy pue safiijpey algnd ‘syuawanosdwy)

4, &
%01 vez'aats $ puE soj[19e UOJIE3IIRY pue yled ‘Dreds uadp

20u3Nadxa UpLIS3aPad ay) FIUDYUS 1Y) SAHUSWD JOYI0 pUD LD 23:& ‘bupyby ‘adpasipans

%eT 188‘TOV'T $
%ST TSETSLT $
%ST CSE'CSL'T $

SjusWwIUBYUT UBLIISIPRg
sjuawwanosdwi} UoIBSIBIU[ pUB J3NS
SIUSWaA0IdLY) JISUEl] pUE Sunpied

" spuawanodwi pup sagfiang 1330/
WU03S ‘sjuawianoldu] pup sajliond 1amas AIDIuDS ‘SJUaWaN0IALL| pup S0 210/
.x.m.n TSETSLT 8 wm_a__;: u__a_:n_

"ZHIL 8U3 uyum palessual xe) Ausdoid [eal [ejuswalou) Aq ed u Aq peoueuy
90 {IIM 12U} S# SUOZ JUSWISIAUDY JUBWSIOU| XEL UIYIIM SIUSWSAOICU] JO JSqUINU & Bie 310U,

auoZ ay} Jo s1s09 j0afo1d

$1509) 199[0id



Juawdofanag Auou033
11113d aiava

L

bowmumo siy3 ul uwu:_oc_ ale yuawdinba pue wm._zu_v:maxm Bunsaw

.mmw:mnxm JuswsFeue A1) sy} Jo sasy Buninsuos pue ssay [ege 5i u:_u:_ sosuadxs m>ambm_=_8nm pejejal lsyo
‘ue|d Supueuld pue 195014 U3 JO uonejuswa|dul ayy YIM UO[I0BULIOD U) pUE SI010911q JO preog du3 Ag _m>oaam
uodn ‘53509 J98foid sE JUsWSSINGUIIS: 10} S|GIBIS 54 JIIM ZY11 SY UIIM uonejuawis|dwl Yum isisse o0} ‘A1D ayy

J0 soafojdws Aq Juads awi 8U3 Jo) SaF1eyo s|geuoseal SuIpnjoul ‘SIS0 SARRISIUUIPY S)S0) SAIRNSIUILIPY

*2U0Z S} Uf AIAIIOR [2[0ISWIIOS PUB SS3UISNG S1BINWILS

Ppue 2U0Z B4} WSUSY Jey) SANAIE J0) BUOZ DY) 40} PUNS JUSWIDIOU] XE) BUY o pred pue Ayjediolunw syl Ag
paonpoid JUBWaIoU] e} JO JUNOWE Jif} ummoxm 0} 30U Junowe ayegaigse oyl suwy pue ugid Suloueuy pue Hooaoa

© uyum 08¢ Ja1deys J0 AoYIne sy} Sjielop apoy XeL Sexal sui 10 (U) OTO TTE Uonoas UsWdojaAep d|WoU0ss
ajenuins 0} Spuny alfgnd o sueoj pue sjuess 190 03 ALIOHINE SY) SEXa) U) SeNediojuNiu SjuIS 8pOD JUSLUUISACY)
8007 343 40 08 Jeydeyd *siue.d swdo[eASp SILWOUCOS PUB UONEIPIUISS [EIUSIUONAUS ‘Uonjowap ‘uonialasald
du01sfy anjonu} Jey) sjosfoid apnjoul osie Afew pue sasn oljgnd o3 palit jou ase si§00 10afoud ZHIL SjaiBIT
"uswidojorsp a3eaud pue olgnd 10} S9IIALSS puk ‘sueo] ‘sjueig apnjoul Lewl SiU| isjuein) Juauidojeraq d1niouoss

*A10831e0 S|y} WOl Papuny aq ues pue sasuadxs a|qiSIe ZyIL

ale uopstnboe pue| pue ‘syuswsacdw] ‘USISSP JO S1S0J SJUsWeAOIdWI DlgNd JOYI0 IO SSYS 10 ‘SaI[IoR} ‘SHIoM
aignd [|e3sul 40 4ONSUCIAL “JONIISUCD ‘aanboe 03 Pasn oq Aew spuny ZHIL {g)800"TTE 995 UNM 8ouURPIoIIR
u| :spudwanoidwi] pue sapjjioed dlland ‘suswancidwif pue saniioe] Uopesinay pue ied ‘aceds uadg

S# ZuIL .:m_n_ Sutoueuld u:m 109f01d Aeupueid

aoulisdxe eMisapad sy} 9ouByUS Jey] SaljULWE ISYI0 pue Me dljgnd sapnjoul
sty ‘Sunysy| uelnsapad pue syoel SHiq ‘aunuing 19aNs ueplsepad ‘sisjueld ‘syuswarcidw 19a13s ‘sBufume

‘(Autqissaooe A<n_$ 19y SOl _nmm_n_ yuMm ueaLISUIY) ajng \G:ww‘_wEw pue cm_bmmumn_ SY[EMSS0IQ uell1sapad
.wc_tha _um_w:m pue _m__mhma .Am_o\a_n pue snq "8°9) ssue] joaen paleys .mx_m>>mu_w .mmmano:m Aew yojym
sjuawisaoIdwi Butpping Gy Buipling 8ui &pn)oul $19aNs S191dW0Y JO SIUSLUSIT “JIBWISSAU) PUe JusWdoAsp
MU Jo Kauen apim e sa8einosus pue suoddns wieai oyqnd Buises|d e Sufjesl?) “SI0USIA pue sjuspisal
10} 392135 SuniAul pue ‘ajes ‘Buises|d-Afjeanayisee ‘pajusiio-uellsepad {euonaunE-iNW JO UOHINASUOD

" 8Y3 99e1n0sUS [|IM ZHIL SY L [SIUSWISIUBLUT URHISIPA PUB SIUSLLISACIIL] UO0N03SISIU] PUE J931IS

o8P

s u) awidoerepal pue Juswdojeaep jeuonIppe Inds 0} 1sAje1e0 e se 108 pue aduelua 0} sjuswdojsrsp
pasojuss-uelisapad ‘sigeyiem ‘Joedwlod 91esid 0} S| [e0F oy 'suonels Sulgieys [2o199[0 pue SHSo
/siv1ui Bupfied ‘Buipundem pue adeusis Supiled Bunysy Supyed :Buppied sdeuns isogeled Supjied ‘o}
PadwW| I0U S1 3N *sepnjaul Suiied ‘siustudojeasp palusiIo-Usies 10 8sh-paxilil sanny 1 slustudojersp
l1e121 pue ‘[euapisal ‘|elISWod 0] SS890E oljqnd Hoddns pue juswidojersp Jasuap s3eINoous 03 paziin
a0 Aew ‘Bunsixe 10 PSJONISUCD AMaU JBUIDUM ‘saimonns Fupiled sjuswsrcidw] Jisuel) pue Suppied

*JS]EMWLIO]S [OLUOD SSIMISLIOC 10 UfRISP 10341p ‘ALIed

01 PopUBIUI IO PBUBISOP SSOIASP JOYIO0 JO SBOJASP UORUSISP ‘Sadid ‘SB[EMS ‘SaUOYP ‘S[BUUBYD ‘SINPUOD pue
$21N1E3) [RINTRU SPNJOUL} UBD SWSISAS/SOMIioe, "My JO alel ayi o1ejngoi pue |OAU00 0} pue UcHEIuslIpas
pUB UOISOIS SAISSO0XS 3pNnjoaId 0] Liouns Ja1emuwiI0ls siejngal pue siepowuodae o} suoisiaold jeoisAyd syl
sassedwooue egeujelp AN ugjd 198foid sy 4o Jusuodinod Jueuodwi ue sFeuiesp AQin Jodoid Supjew
‘a1monaselul Fuige ue saey ZHLL 943 UIYNM seale Auel SIuswanoldwf pue sapi|ioe] 19)eMm Lol

*swa)sAs [esodsip pue sjuejd Wuswieai} ‘si0)dsolalul ‘sulew Yuni) Sapnjoul pue ‘agemss Jo jesodsip Jo
USRS} ‘UCISSIWISURIY ‘UOI}09]|02 B} 10} PaUSISOp SWSISAS 10 S2INJONJS JO UOIONIISU0D pue Bulissuifus
‘uBisop Joy sesmupuadxe a|qiBie ZyIL sepnjoul L108eed siyy sjuswenoidw] pue mm_«___om.._, 1omag Aeyues

*Z411 81 Jo swdojsrepal
pue Juswdojaiap ay) Hoddns 1y} sJuswaacidwl pue Sailljioe] Jajem JO UOHONIISUOY pue Sunaauigus
‘ugisep Jo} sainlipuadxe a|qIBIe ZYi1 Sopnjou; £10851e0 SIY | ssiuswanoLdul] pue sajioed Jotem

10} PaILUL 10U S| Ing SIPN[OUI SORINN MaNd

51509 199[0.d



wawidoprag Rwouodg
L1113d dlAva

0000000°0

8
£# ZuIL ‘vueld wc_ocmc_u pue uuw?..n_ bm:_E__mE

0000000°0 Ajunog Biagapy
00000000 ajsbuny 10 Ao
o Xej, sa|eg

0000000070
0000000°0
0000000'0
0000000°0
0000000°0

RGN JOIEN, Sexe L tanos

asi sbupi]

Ainog Biagapy|

Sfiiasbury) jo D

xe) Apadold [euosiad|.

0000058¢°0
00000000
00000000
00000000
000058€°0

Aouiny sejep sexay uinog|

asi sipasbury

Aunon Biagsp)

lisbuny Jo 4D

:o_uma_u_tmn_

812 $20T - Xe) Apadoid jeay| e ZuIL

"uoneuBsWRldW
S1 INOYNM ANIT0 J0U PINOM JEU] SIIBUSY IUGUCD YYM SUCHIIPSHNT BuiXeY 1830 PuB KI5 Bty apiioid (M pue
S|disea) Alfealwounds S| Zy|L 9U1 18y} PUNOY SBY 03dQ ‘APMIS ANIGISESY SI Ul pauinno uoneunolul eyl Suiziin

Ve uo._mu
pue Suloueuy J0 POYISW BU) SE [[om SE SUOROIPSHNS FUIXE} [B30] Y3 JO YIEBS O} BUOZ U1 JO SISUS] 1OU Sy pue
20UBISIXa S} J0 Jeak yoes Buynp suoz sy} Jo anjeA pasteidde painides pajewiiss sy3 moys sefed Bumoljos BYL

*saged w:_\so__o.,p
8} U0 punoy aq ueo 1004 aenbs Jad anjeA sjqexe} pajedionue sy} pue 100} aienbs Jod soles u&mn_o_ucm
a1 ‘sa9e100) a1enbs Juswdojarsp pajedionuUE BU} JO MBIAIBAC AIBLILINS Y *SIUSUIHO[aASP PaUIINo Aisnojaaud
BY} UO paseq aA19031 PINom ZH|1 Syl anusAsd Xe) Paloadxa sy paujiexs Aphls ayy J0afoid auy Jo Aljiqises)
2{WOU023 Y} auluisiep 03 Ueld Bujoueuy pue 193foid sy Jo Led se padojansp sem sisAjeue shjea sjgexel v

Apmis Auligisead o)uouooy

*sSeupalqapul papuod Aue Jnaul [jim Zy11 SY3 12U} Swin s1u} Je pajedionue 10U i )

RS IGag

*au0Z 9y} UIyMm Juawaloul Ausdold (el
2U3 JO %0G SINQUIUD |[IM w___>mm=_x 40 A9 auy) *eBed snoraid ayy uo paulino susweaoidw Sljgnd s puny o

Supueud Jo poylal

sisAjeuy Ayjiqisesd |eloueuld



6
g8 NE ‘ueld mc_aac_u_ pueafoid Kieujwiiard

Wadoprsg JwWowoIz
liLead atava

+ = FIEOINY 91ERA sExaL HINGS|
= + + STL888 Y = TR asjSeugy|
1ZgTes el + - + S0TIBTE = USTE : j inog BIsga]
©e90BL0P ¢ * < Y SSeICLE S = —%SEe SIASBUDI 16 Ato)]
gﬁwgmg A 1 dOW S N Q S S| e S OM A TV AN e ]| ﬁ@#ﬁwﬂxn R B e e P D e S P FE g
%0008
SSB'GLELL
SBELT 2
%ET3
s EEATIAT) 3 20008
s . - GLEIEEL = %y HOUINY JojEM SEXOL [arios]
= 3 + - + 0L 899 1Y = 233 aSTo)IASEIn)|
VS E68 Ch s ¥ - + 90051822 = ST Runo) BED]
£93°0B20% s + - B + [ = %EW 3[AsBUD] 10 K1)
RSSO YN S U SR s [ RO R S ] @F#._.Eg B A s e e AN AT KT SV 1O
5 . indino «
“HoLoves = - “owoes = muoa
0000007 S o000z |- S|~ $ ] 0600009 S| o000z ___§[0000e 0802
° = s - §| - S| - § | 00070055 H EO A T 0207
0I0TOrT $ | 0b00c ST~ S| - §] 0005017 S| o000 s |9 [ve0e
[ $) 0000z $~ i Sjomnieet S| 0000z s | ¢ TE0z
000062 % $ | o000z S|~ 1 - S| oo00sz L §| o000z s{00v9 (B3 T
[oo000es $ 100008 S - §1 - [ 000TaT T §$ o000z 50089 820z
GU0006 € S | ou60E S| - S|~ $ | w0000 $] 0000 S| 009wE. 3
000°0P0°E $ | 00’00 $ = - $ | oco'oro'e $ | 00002 $ | 00z'51 ZE0Z.
000016 $ | 007002 - - - | 000016 $ | o000z $ | 0S5 0202
To0TEET S| ovene HEs T § 1 on0vEcE XI5 8207
. 000GE2E S| ooom “§| - = $ | 0006 S| 0000 §{ st B
(000000 S | 60002 S|~ - $[ 0000002 S| 00002 § 0000F (2
0007152 $ | o000z $ - - 3 75 00'00Z L 8Z0Z:
GI0000% $ | ootz S < $] 000°000°Z OUG0Z___$ | 0000F 8202
00T | 00062 S|~ = $ | 000ZIZE 05002 § | 5eESE 8202
[ 5 | oog0z - I 5 | 00Ot 00002 | 0029 502
[000'EIres § o0z 5] - §1 - . § | 000€L¥2r [ B ETic 80T
| 0060009 LT S|~ 5] - $ | 0000008 T § | 0002 B0
(0000009 $ | 000z 3) .- S| = 3 s
[00'0087_ § | G000z < s~ $ s
00000V Y H X S| - S| - s s

X IIVAXY LERdS1
£ B

& Y 55

RN

Ko BRGD]
STIRSEUDH 70 Ko

XV1 A14308d TUNOSYAg|

zo:.<a_u_._.¢<m

T

(00000000 }E40E: .\.o.n\ﬁhmu ORI TeIEM 5eX91 WS
00000000 [ TS1SIFsBuD]
CITCCT O AASS BRaa0E
oov0seE0  [ERERR 0 X SURSTURI 16 1D
NOUVdioLve - - XV ALS3d0Nd v

%00 wtﬁﬁ.vwvw! B ._.zbouﬂn_
ENT ZD_._.ﬁn_z—_

ANdNI <

ndu| Juawdojanaq - sisAjeuy Aujigisead [1oueuty



Jwadopnag JHUOU0T : : oT
11i13d aiAva .. ! ©# ZHIL ‘ueld Supueuld pue 39afoid freujwijeid

T e R L TS

aos
Aoy eSSy oS

e ower

necissy ovary  pny Ly eztey mEms cornes

uon ) cosis s oews orzus ws s storer wrur s s oz ssivo nezer ztowe g socazs s it wsize srrosz arm sroz e - - . . o
2 H 7 = K] . " 4 . < v o " " . p H 4 4 . 7 H " = " . : : . : Koo msnteas @es
- N M < z : < N z : . : M : . : < - : : : . . . N - . : : - Saviein
. N M . . M N : - - H < - M N - M < - - - M M . N z : . - : [ e

nons s casies rvny ares onrzss wng nris siwar aruy sivesr s oot ssvory oy e s e woreer tsvuce i o et neoe nyme . - - - B bk

. xvmns
M . z : . M : z - M : M . : . . : : . : . : : M . . : < . 2 Lo
< : N M M Z . . M Z . : z N - N < < M - 2 2 . < 2 - . . 2 . nyd

HINODL NI BERNSD KCNSTO GCOMOD LSONSN RSSO TS COVRWE  MEDITE G0N NI OGN0l GOMENL  COWDI GMON SCRSM rUen Gfucm Kttt OTIOM MO MTEYS RONDE SIS - - - - - xvisTs

. . . - - « . - . . - . . . - . . . . - . . - . -

: N . : . : . : M : : : . - : . : - M < M : : - . : : - . N E Kotk ey

- . < N M . - N - : : : . - M . < Z M : < : : : . : 2 - < 2 ‘o et

: : : : M H : : < : - : 2 - . : : . M : : z : . : : . . : - iones Bagnt

N . < : : . : : : : M 2 . M : : : : 2 < . : M : . . : - < . S

- - . - - . - - . . . - . . - . - - - - . - . - - - - - - - gt T

aue noss eosies. ] oz oy suvs o sdier oz siwwr s orar ssvor sz v s tocse ouc i nostee 3 acue ntaz P . . - - . a0t
" H H 7 ] < “ 2 < v < " H 4 “ 7 % % 7 A 7 " < H 2 . . : . . Koy ez oo

: : N M M : : . : : : M . : . - M . : : : : z < . M : : . < ‘05 epdont

N < : : < 2 < : N N N : . - 2 < - M - N N . <. N z . . - . . Ryres b

avas s s oo orezs wons nvies st oy sivesr s oeczer ssvoer sy ] wene ot wroe ssr sovize v ez rseoz wne - . - - . Lrery)
WS BEUCDL GTHTI WSUDNG SWTNG  SRTISHN LO00RE SOTHS BNUUSI GOT HOIOWE TR0l e uSuMG SR RV NIGON  GOMEtS MPOSYL | DO NCOIS a6 e . B - . prer e

oMt ewIST WSuCt st vy ssensy sy sswry wsiuy sy WS pTey  Seysy  owsuy  [spsy  eSny  pzwey  SIeosY oSy o0z e ‘ - - - oot
SBES0L. P irces o5cse ozes e sarse e s wn s s sers e %0595 s ey eater aose e - . - - - Sy LGRS
otarz  asmiz vz loceres wacary oIy orencs yeenvt Ty oy SismrL i agies ZorTey ncur otreis forrsy s, nsen .- - - - - QR st
sscur’s RANEL it aciory pite Saccovt soprssy vy seosy urny sorezzL P sy orssy SRS osTR ucm perd oarsie - - . - - Kyneo Gay
uvoe  ererce 2 Pt ooz ewiare st winre Lrure  swere sfen  orit i Ry seress Pty wor severy . - - - - wpuBpashia
. . - Prents

3 3 23 £33 3 3 I3 253 ot 3 o £33 (3 3 23 3 3 =3 3 3 Tz 23 (23 3 war - 3 3 3 B3 23
woee ooogr pomT o pswee ssecr omsre T suyur  sumer  memor myes pni ez osey s ooy vy sewes swars . 3 moi
soeser Hsciz oes'ses, b s s serzss, s, astss 4 Ftd i . s L)

4 4 3 . oo

smrasEEeL

rizsseys

suclsafold anuaasy xeL

199yUssiopm awdojana(] - sishieuy Aljigiseed feloueul



Juawdaanag o037 1T
11113d diava €# ZUIL ‘ueld Suipueuly pue josford Aeupuiiald
7 S A R B e B o A e S ASI SS

Gleoo8 ¢ eei'eel & Gee'6S. ¢ 108EL  § TLE'SL.  $ evb'se9  $ E6L'G/0  $ JZ5'SS9  § pEV'OEO & /6919 S 0D06'66S $ /Zb'ZeS § cov'ses ¢ ces'ehs §  £00°€ES $ eI §
660°C/E  § 192198 T & 6ELOSE  § ¥e§O0pE  § S090sc  § o/60ee  § Leoble  § 16scos  $ 6€L'e6c - § €8l'S8C  $ 1/8'9.C § cCL8eoc  § €8609¢ ¢ c¢ecese  $ L00SvE & oeseec  §
oLL'vEy  § T'ler ¢ 96160 ¢ 8l2'6E  $ 90/'6eE  § TWMIE  $ S95'eoe ¢ ol6'Tse & see’Tve ¢ vlizee  $.ez0'sce § Glo'le  § osy'voe . ¢ 2lo'oeg ¢ 200482 § zve'sle  §
969'002'9 $ S20°120'9 $ Gso'sy8's $ £68'6/9'C & 160°0LS'S  § COU'SYE'S  § 68LS6L'S $ PISE0'S $§ hhO'ses’  § ESO'SSLt 8 vlobio $ soz'osk'y ¢ oll'eve'y $ 9geo'secy ¢ G20'00L'P  $ Z09'08s'E  $
€0E $ g62 $ - 982 $ 8¢ $ 0.2 § 29z $ v5¢ $ e $ ove. § €eC $ 9cC $ 6le $ €T § 0T $ 10C $ S6L $
opb'0Z. obb'0g ovr'oz ovr'oz orp'0Z orpoz 0¥p'0z ovi'oz orb'og o¥b'0z orr'oz orr'oz obi'0Z ory'oz ovy'0z obr'oz
002’62 002'62 00e'sz 002'6T 002'62 00z'6T 002'62 ooz'se 002'62 002's2 00Z'6Z 002'62 ' 00z'6T 002'62 00262 002'62
%0L %0L %0L %0L %0L %0L %0L %0, %0L . %0L %02 %0L %0L %0L %0L - %0L
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 - 08 08

Wwoz . ooz

L 9} .

99s'eLy ose'sey

0v'208 § elr'igy  § $ €.'65y ¢ zoe'ory  $ $ gosozy . ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
08g’léz § ozL'Sec  § 6998l § €0Zch  § c¢c0o0c  § ©¢e000z & 9ebpek  § - $ - [ $ - 3 - § - § - $ - $ %9 ejey xel olgls
les'ole § Lv9'eee $ /68'WST $ 0.8'2bT ¢ eseove $ ese'sez § zes'ete ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ %L sjey xel Ao
199'v98's  $ v0L'ZSL't_ $ 6Le'Zye't ¢ 8LL'9SS'S ¢ 90s'eEv'S  $ Geo'tee’s § 8eS'oEdE & - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § - $ - $ enusAsy ajgexel, [enuuy|
68l $ ¥8l $ 8l $ €Ll $ 891 $ €9l EED § v5t $ &bl $ Svi [ $ JE1L $ egl $ 621 $ 62l $ ajey Alleq sbeleny
ovb'oe orp'oz ov¥'oe [s12474 ovv'oz ovi'oe obr'0Z ] 0 3} 0 0 - - - swooy pardnooQ Jo #
002'62 ooz'se 002'62 00262 002'62 002's2 ooz'sz - - - - - - - - SWooy ejqelieny o #
xe) fouednsoQ {ajoH

%0. %0L %0L %02 %04 %04 %0L - %0 %0 %0 . %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 : fouednaoo
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 (] 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 SWooy [230H

9202 ST0Z deaj, anusAsy|

4 1

- e

xe] AouednooQ [810H - sisAjeuy Aljiqisead |eloueud



JuadoeAaq JM0U03
11113d dlava

eT

E# Nm:. ue|d mc_ocmc_.._ pue uom_.o..n. Emc_E__m._n_

WD OISUHE  OWTEL | DOV LR Emr  eerl w 30 “r

s - s - s - s - 5 - s - s - s - 5 - s RO A ST WS
. 8- s - $ - 5 - 5 - s - $ - s - $ - $ a1 spstut

s - $ - $ . $ - s - 5 - s - s - $ - $ Rpnog Brogang
wowe§ mvwe § owse § owwz § meoc § imuor §ows § ot §oee wr H ool kD

TR TR P LA S TSR TS

° ] ]
ag1oipabuoy ° ] o 0
Ao Brogod Q 0 o
oppsbupi jofiy 3.52 Vooesse oLty 10588 651

TR LD SEE I Ieees

LR e e A SR THR AT

TEETTm

sLBsy

s

oarzsy

FoU BTV EE (LA Lav e a0 VeV BOTTs OvL SVE SN COT oVt O SIE Ty L0V Ao E0 G

wewy

T S SRE oS AL P VB L 00 B S T ERV S

Lot

:ﬂsg@s% saﬁﬁm N &g&m@@%@%«w@wﬁsﬁ%% s

£ TET TRE oL 523 2 "RESE T S0E T

BY ROV LY LR tIEGE B2t 1B 67y 0T Il D A R T

TS T2 ArMAAT (4
0 [ o o [ [ [ 0 [ 0 [} e 0 Koy saman seca) wnog
0 o ] 2 o ] 1 0 o o o @ [ a1 opaston
0 9 0 0 [ [} 13 o 0 13 0 o Anas Togant
TEWE ORI OWEE WSS RS MO cem fsto siswe o o o o smrstiniioied
= o
R

T P
OO0 0 b a0 By R e

TIETIOITIIORaE amzﬁ_mﬁ

eI R | Sl

»_.mp.mﬁz

[ [ [l ] o ] [ [ a [] ] [ 9 Apogrry s 5wy, s
° o I 1] 1 1 0 2 g ] o 0 ] 9 0 a o o H g ] a1 oprstu
Ano3 Eraqup] a o M o ° [ ° ° I3 1 [3 [ [ 3 0 Q ° o o [3 ° o ° a Q Aazog Bregany
obielD  6LNTOE BT e sz ary's e our'ze orr'el r'sh TS reveL s OB L1y Teeor 280 C WL ure e "y ey 0y 659 BT ST5T 66 sy &8 oy Jemsbuntiodun
HLMOED VA VXYL
Vg
SIE006S  LISNOS  NGPMILS  SICENT swmsy 0y esTSHY  ASSWLE R X 1562018 covoss  zovzow SO woa Aoy s swag unos
SI0069  LLSTOIE  IGRIZTS  aus'shs STy OSUUZY  GSTsaY  L6SALT WIRET  SIeesT 4200t so0ss  zorzow Qs oz st apsbon
$IEWEY L9099 LERICS  SICENS SIVITSY  OSUOLZY  GSTSIOY  LSSIRLS YHST  SUEEIT 15620 s0r0ss  zocon BISE  beONn Ao Bragany
SINEY 198095 LGNEES  SICENS SWTSY  0S00ZY  WEROY  LeSert RNIRST  Sit'GEST isseolt  sOY0ss  Toczom ST 0T asuot 104D
INWTON| BT TTRVXYL
SUTIE  BE9IEY 180TEL WML GWEREE  WINIOL  EsECyy SIS SIATZS G0 SICSEeY STy Sereszy gy somsy sezag e
SUTIE  EYTOlER 10TEL WELYL  WORGHEL MWL GEYCEND ISEVEED  SWIZI  GWIWE  SoLSCTY CST;CY  EYISTY as) eqasbunt
Bases  GrEaiew snoTEL CLVE  SOUMIEL  WNOL  BOIECYS SSTECY  SIPLS SIS SILOGY Tary  avesce [funco Bieawy
SNEIE  GHUBIES [ e WS w0 sTevs SSVESE  SIVIELS  6TYWS  servcer CSTHTY  SeresTY s 1940
ANATIBVXVL
vy WY pSrYENY Yy sorYery oYLy [ Aorgory stz s o
iy ALY ISy vy FOVIELY vty st epastuny
rarvELy Ty pviLy SOUVLY  harrEy YOOYELY vorvyy  |fanoofacy
rorVELY RS paEY  pavyoky YR bR vy YLy vty |epafioioko
WaAzsva
swioL  rse 50z 50z 10z osoz (3 a0z or oz sz oz ooz 2z ez etoz o0z seoz otz 23 sz oz szaz szz 20T YV SNIATY
o k3 2 @ 2 E ” < [ @ @ & " o . i L
%003 21V 1NN0I510
%a0% HIMOUO WIA IvE STEVXYL,

NOWYIOLNYd nmwou_omn_ NO @3sva IAMLNIONI ‘SINNIATY XYL ANV SNTYA ALYTJOUd GISOJONd 40 LOVIINI TYHINTO 40 FLYNLEST

anuaasy ZyI1 paredionuy - sisfleuy Al|qisead [eoueuld



Juawdepnag JuidtoIg > H €T
11113d AiAva @, : €4 Nm_._. ‘ueld m:_ocm:_.._ pue j105fosd bm:__.c__m._n_

6STIZI®  OBIMERL  gseuvw  sowizrl

v TIPUEES  TCTISLY  SNOORE'D - SELYDCY  GOUSEIY  CINWMOD  LOFICNS  ISEESES 23,} OSEVICY | KOLILY  DISTIOY  MITYINY  TAOENYY  OOONICY  CLLBOST  OGTLSY  MIKIUT  BMIEST  Mevsh st (13 g
iz 995200 5 Zores

"
]
"

- 7 ' GIU06 5 YSU§9 S NSO S IB9TU S OWCDR S NGLL § GIOSL S SICRL  § TAL MEW S COFDD 5 GSND S /9079 5 LoV S EWE § HESE $ WE  § T s s 54w s WY IO STX0L 605
SIIERT § LAITT § LOSSELT § 10T § GEIEL § 16TIVL § SOSYWL § SICDLY § DSUGILL § SWEITL § TUVLESL 8 OIRRCSL § LBUSRYL § DTWVE D Sevenv) & oieaw s s & DENOLS L0 $ LGESL § BT § s § isse  § 6 s astomstopt
009561 3 SOVESTL § ZERLNTL & Sicues) § TIZITL $ UIOLTL S GNNSL § GSTUOL $ TOVIEYD § WMZLYL § COZYONS § wCDICL § sSUNTEL & SSCTZL § SOWMTL § SSESOZL & LFOLL § YELSOG § ILKZOL S €018 § SO0y S ST & €961 $ /8 & Aenoo Bagan)
ROOGLE § YOLUTC § OLTOLEE § HOLSINE § VEISTE § GOEIN'C § COUSIOT S CVRST § GOTISNT § MOWVT 3 ISVRLT § LCOWST & SSUST S ISURHT § DV & SIFEICE § COYORLE 3 amesens f05955' § WOTL S WTHTI S KEE  $ THC S EEL  § 556 s Bl 940

70T E3 oL 3 T T 0L THT 3 THE Tor £3 THE (=3 [373 r= T =3 VoT =3 T TEoE T 3 VT TTE =3 £

BT K

SIMBOLRAD  SISTSTL @YY TNy SEVR. WTISC  SOUSW  TINMS  GISESE 9ISRSE ST GHUT WU SNt WNC AYHT HOWE DSWUZ ZPMT LYW MR- oSBT GUOE  GSCRZ - B 0 o ] _e 0 ) 0 omstupi jo A

ERNIERT IR

TS R

) B S L A A R A e B L L A BT T B 2 e L e L A S Y A o BT o T B e e R R A T
SRS

Meneolaqt  \ZSeoveh  MSPISL  MESSEL WESL C onnss  zww  EGSy  GOrws  memle | leiss  Lvow  otes  ssis  6ies orsls | sdws | owem  wEwy  wize  fswver Doy i mow  oszms  wrmt  lruz  swsz o o o [ | fnod Bacan)
ISBoioAD  CSORLO G GSSSITE - WIIWT  OSEIOT  JLWMOT  S(6ESSl  mEwE  WYIW  WSSLE BN GORTL | Smnsh  metest W sort  Demn  Geth Bt ot mre Hea' oot eIt wEss  onane  segisc o K ] K ot 1040

EEpE

e e R A T e L AP B A T T L e U 3 L T T Tl e e A A e e T T T T EEFRATEI

AWIAMNAILGTS  GIFLIEE  BYER0L SESDL  BIZZOL WZER ostss ngeE | ozwos vw sos'se By 290 wes [ o o569 wss aw'sy 5969 " 099

gsiemebol  SEZWRTNY  SSLAZCT  ENOOSTZ  CLSWELT  SESORLZ  GISUI0Z  GGZOO0T  GLGNSY  BODET  OLVIOWL  OKCYMLL  e9ZELE  EESNEYR ESISY UGS LSCYEL  TROR'L  SISWONS  RKSlsth ALl gmeeins e et wouL  mss. o Q ] 0
MmooBesiy  00SISE  ZUWZL  @OUZS  ZETL  ZOSSUL  OS0TEKL  RIOGGD)  $0USD  SEGECO  ZWSGOL  GIGWG  vi0GYS  GoMOLE RIS [ETE LU [ESTSL  MGOLLC  GYOM ®SOIL | 4i6Cs ooUEee LASE Iy sZow ¢ ] Q Q
ASHOIOKD  TELZESIT  SWOMTI SNt LT ML OUEINL  SUSSTL - MOrMSTL GO0t QICNOL WM LS . 0Zes @Ees T LTON SLeSlY WOTSL COOSIL  SO9ONL GSBVEL | torZes esies  owtes BOSNZY el o ) ° °

T

It w@%%a@sﬂu% e, iﬁmaad o Sy voeoel R e A e %ﬁai.?% mqﬁxmm% B O AT A ey qsﬂ%wwm, ﬁﬁﬁw&%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%&gegu%%%@@g 5

Ay seILES  HIELS  UET [ (523 bee e 1182 o9z [exd W oz [ ] oz el i o8 g weL wz ssin ” e s sz ) sty e 3 s w gy A 231 U0
OstopulaX  eOR0st  LTTER soveL zise siziL s iares swoy s ores 99108 souzy scatr sssor 6305 TSt seoze osvs 73 ave sozz SOz g55'5H sores g seL s s 74 st stpsBunt
Aoofnenl Lz SrSsy zezey ocy s aees so5e BSETC ouoge TR oz s 09T we e 9628} o7l f5E8 e 25558 s sisol  see cise L oS Fod s6z By 5% Koo agens
SsBIRAD 1S8R0 Jever e ooty aze'ee et 12eve 6197¢ ¥e6'08 sz wtz 19952 ez Wz "oz wZel L8 see BEYE yeest Wz 6950 tol'6 <6re L HO'% 6T 68T 2% 558 oRastun 10 A0
HIMOYD ANWVA TRVXVL
¥ aaanT
S96008'5 WAV SICENS SISy oSOy eSZSWY  LSALC  LSUSSSS  BOOTECT TUNOET SIS LOOST  SWSOTT  MIBHT sszosct TN sovoss  wews  uiguss wgon et vow Koy 1oy sexoy o
$I055 1697208 SIS0 STy 0SU0ITY  GSZSOY  LSIT  Ivemc  emzer TNSZ UGS LENOOST  SEVRCE  WTEuT 52090k 620Nl svOSs  Zzoczos  misess UTEIE ST HOW g5y o
SIE005% STIETS  SLCE0S SUTEY  OOWTY BTNV L6TILE  LAWSSE  wewzeet WLMST  SIESZ  IVOOSE  BEWSOTT  WZSMT 6z0LL 1S520ML  SOMOSS  ZocZO¢  GISESS TSNS C BMUDE G MOID Ao Eragarg
SB0ES [ET e SWTSY  OSUUTY  GSESOY  LGFIMT SV Wt THGT  SIVGST  MVOSE  SEISIET  WZEMT €szooss OISIIYL  KIOUSTS  ASETOSL  SONOSE  Z0CTOr LIS DEWS  SIC0  GWNSE WO sSont o k>
. R . INZNTUSHIINVASIBVRVL
avsioon SIS GETERLS Goegs  vSYNs TS IOTWEL WISVl WEINL  RWGKEL  OOUOZ  GISTINS  MS)SY  GEINY  BOOES  009N09  MSCYUS  SSONZUS  MEOSSS SSheCs  SIUEES  GWIAOS  pUWEY  LGTECY  OCCsSY  OWLSY  oSTey  ssrusy fwogmy som swxoy unos
&yt SSUESYS  GLETES DTS NSHrs TSy I0WEL  WZLIEVL  WSUOL GOWITL  MOWR0Z  GI9OWY  OSVDS  OCHMS  QITSEY MO LSUVN9  SIOSIUS  MESTD  GICYSEd  SLUEYS  GOVNNUS  SOLOSY  LIGTSCY  SLCTSY OIS  GSEMeY  Sevvees st trsint
azyseoos sstesy's  etetas Q9598 MKV meGend  S0TSL  eiev:  TOCLSNL  WOWONTL  DWAEOL  GUNTSOD  loSYi9S  cotims  WZISCD  MOTIM00  L90v083  SWOUELS  WESSSS WSS SIILCS  GOFVIOY  SOLUCEY  LIGTACY  SiVeiar  OVrAler  tocorty  seveecr s trwanny
GIFSEDOL  SEL'CILE ST’ 6LWEVS GUSSTE  WISKNR  ZISHW  lUmEL ISl WCIYL  BPETL  MOWOL  6CSTOES  oYeRs  0CIMY  WSES  0OFIOY  LSCYONS  S0CELS  MMCUSYS SCSWES  SIWUES  BWrUS  sluigh  LISPSEY  SFRY  onley  meeter  Gereiey st oA wAsEn
(A ] VLY ALY YOYYCLY  wevhosy YUY YRty b sy Kty omn se) oS
YRSy rEresy Y ey YTy KLY VIVPESY  VOrRELY  bervery varvery st einsdoy
YEISLY  ROYIELY WEELY BRI YLy MY HERLY PRy YORELY feryy Knes Brageny
YVEY  YevELY RSY rany ey RSy ysevely YOYYERY bRy ververy vorveey  [omstuxiofn v
swiol  wer 507 S0z 150z usoz [ o ¥z avor sz oz oz [ 1z oz scoz oz [23 oz [d oz swe Fad oo R IWIATY
o L 3 z © st ” 2z z [ oz o " s " st L s s v meaes T W 36VE XV,
ossessve
Aoy s L oS
oSt owstunt
a0 osaaaDk
LD 0N
%009 24w pnodsK
%ort HLMOS ¥Y3A 3570 EVCYL.

NOLLYdISLLYYd QISOd0¥d NO 43SV SALLNIONI '$3NNTATY XV.L ANV SIATVA ALNTJOUd GISOdONd 40 LOVIWI TYHINIO 40 SLYILLST

pajelausl) anusAsy [Iy - SISAjeuy AulIqisesd |eroueur]



Juaidofnsg 2WoU033
11L13d QIAvVa

T

_ bSEBI0ZES.

EEV'E66'TS

Aoy

e sexsLyInos g Auoyiny sa3ep 5EX31 YINOS |

as ajassun i asi ajmssun @

SE'YT0LE:

Auno) Slagap g

Auno) S13qapi B R 2 5 % 628'96LTWS
i .
SEVEGE'T
. €66'LS a|sSun Jo Ay @ SE'LEV LS
apjns3uny) Jo A e .
ASELD) 3 1jauag 1aN paleIaUDLY) SaXe] [e10L
0% ssjes
0% xe| AouednasQ jsjoH
GHE'289'LLS Apsdold feay
SyeCeg’tlS S|[IASBUD] 10 AID
uopedioiied suopoipsunp Buxe)
5802029013 [ SrEe89 LS 12301
e j 0% RICGNY JSIBM SEXSL Gnog
0% asl sjasbuny
0% Auno) Blagapy
Y] sheTeo'tls afinsBuny jo 10
| uenedippiEd suonaIpsunp Buxey
2L o
Aiewuing snusasy

Alewwng - sisAjeuy Ajigises [eiousuly



Juandopag RWOL0IT = ST
L1L13d n_ IAVa

“ueld Buloueui u:.m yoefold s,9U07 2yl 0} _m>9%m euy dA18
Jo tujewop uauIwe Jo Jomod By} asioiexe
1598} 10 soxe} asodun
‘spuoq ansst
10} pazuouine
8¢ 10U jjeyS pieog 8y, "apo) JUBWIUIBA0Y [2007 ‘08¢ Ja1deyd
Japun Ayfedidjiunw e jo siemod Suipnjdul ‘epo) Xer sexal suy}
10 T1€ 191deys Aq 1 03 pajueid siamod jje aaey __m:m _uh.mqm ayl
1510)0941Q JO pAeOg JO SAaNN( puk Siomod

(G50 ‘T Jequiaides Aq pajos)jos
a0 0} JUBWIBIOU] XB} S JBdA [eul sy} Yim) 502 ‘1€ Jaquisgeq
UO pu? 0} PaNPayos Si PUB W) Jesk OE & sey Zy|L 94,

'SIeap Ul g4 ZHIL 40 YBua]

SUoNIPUOY PUE SWissl



ARG MHOUIT
11113d dlAva

ot R
€# ZHI, ‘veld Suoueul pue 1aaford Aleupeld

ovL'es $ - 8PITSIYIV ‘€ LOTTND074 ‘O-g-Hva HITHIN TTId 8rT'T AL1SYINLHYd SOINYS 30 SOZvHg 9/79%
- $ 920°0 STHOY (AINO O4NI HO4) ‘(MOY) “ST-2T Ld 101 220019 ‘0013 L[ 9200 NOLLYLIHOdSNYYL 40 143G SYXaAL S62SY
- $ 968°€ SFHIV ‘(AINO O4NI HOH) “(MOY) ‘ST-TT 1d ‘9 1d ‘€ Id 1012210078 ‘00 178 L) 968°¢| NOILYLHO4SNYY L 40 1d3a Svxal 691SP
0vTvL $ £€°07 SOV ¥T ‘IT 1d 101220078 ‘00 1R L) ee'oy OT1IHINYNVHd 1952y
¥97'669 $ 6£25°€ SFHIV “(NNISLHOINM) ‘T 10T (Ly1d3Y GIANIWY) T Ndvd NI OONIFY 6L25°€ OT1ALNYLIdSOH WYTONYI YLLYa 8zTIy
085°985'T $ T70L°G STHOV ‘(NUVd AY ££ 8 dO1S INO ££ AMH) ‘T LOT (L1434 GIANIWY) T NHVd GNI OONIEY Tv0L'S ALTINHSHV] LTTTY
056 $ 978" STHOV ‘T 1d ‘T 1d 107220019 ‘0D 1R L) 918'Ct{  OTIINIWISIANI ITUASONIN AISSINNIH qgeee|
0TL'1Ee $ 659G STUOV ‘2107 ‘IA0D SHALNNMH 659°G AL ITIASOND NYIISIM 67608
0158C $ €79°9 SIYOY ‘0 1Ld 40 SOV £¥9'9 107 ‘2T 0019 ‘0D 13 L) £79'9 ANVAWOO HIMYE 1 ( T18TC
0zs’s $ 662'6 STHOV ‘TT 1d 101220018 ‘00 [ L) 6626 _ OT1$31143d0dd IHOLS SYXAL €912
0zes $ T0'2T SOV ‘95 1d 10722 M0019 ‘0018 L) 10°Z¢ lsnyrywl Y1167
ov6°C $ 9€'7Z SIHOV ‘€T-2T 1d L0 ‘22 N0019 ‘00 1B L) 9e've OT1S31HAd0YUd FHOLS NYXEL GT0LT
- $ (LNV1d HINOS Y3LVMILSYM) (Ld W3 X3) 'S Ld 107080018 ‘00 13 L] S ITUASONIN 20 ALID| vevor
0T2'929°1 $ 0£5°82 STYOY ‘€T-2T 1d L0122 N0019 ‘0018 LI} £5'82 . 07153143d0Yd IHOLS NYXaL T¥8eT
0/8'9 $ . 66T STHOV (029X O¥T 0D 3/S) 9 Id LOT 2200718 ‘00 19 LY 66'T ONI NYAITINS B HLIWS 06121
00T°IT $ T9E'6 STHOY ‘v ‘€ 1d 101 ‘222079 ‘0218 L) 19262 WINYd 1SIM 12901

dIHSHINMO ALHIdOHd INFHHND - V XIANTddY



CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #1



Budedr fwven .

Kingsville Parks & Recreation - » For Information on events and facilities
400 W. King (mailing) : www. cntvofkmg&ﬂe codeegartment[garks
501 Santiago Park Lane (physical) : Email:
Kingsville, Texas 78363 _ sivy@cityofkingsville.com -

or follow us on Facebook

361-221-8705
Kingsville Parks and Recreation

Susan lvy, Director
361-219:9125

To: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

From: Susan lvy, Parks Director

Date: November 4, 2024

Re: City Comrﬁission Ageﬁda Request Receipt of Donations from Healthy Fami‘I;[ Sbonsoré

Summary - We are requesting Commission approve the receipt of donations for Parks Department Healthy Family
Events.

History — Parks Department started this initiative in 2015 to supplement the need for additional funds in our

recreation programming budget due to increased involvement in festivals and special events and the need to offer -

more programming to our community that focuses on drug/alcohol/bully free and active lifestyles.
New Partners include: Linebarger, Goggan, Blair'and Sampson $ 250.00 - -
Vishal Raju Bhagat Foundation ~ $1,500.00

Total Donations are $1,750.00.

Financial Impact — These Healthy Family donations will increase our recreational programming budget by $1,750.00.
We ask that $1, 750.00 be coded to Recreational programs 001—5-4513-31499.

Recommendatlon We ask that you: 1) approve the receipt of these donat:ons and authorize the expenditure of these
funds for the purpose for which they were donated, and 2) approve the associated budget amendment

M




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND DONATIONS FROM LINEBARGER, GOGGAN, BLAIR AND SAMPSON, AND
VISHAL RAJU BHAGAT FOUNDATION FOR THE PARKS DEPARTMENT HEALTHY
FAMILY EVENTS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year. :

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#7

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account | Budget Budget
N ‘

Revenues -4
4513 | Recreation Parks Donations

Expenditures - 5
4513 | Recreation Recreational Programs 31499 $1,750

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend donations from
Linebarger, Gogan, Blair and Sampson and Vishal Raju Bhagat Foundation for the Parks
Department Healthy Family Events. Funding will come from the donations received for the

purpose as stated.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,

1




phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adopﬁon and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 12th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




AGENDA ITEM #2



City of Kingsville
Department Name

TO: 'Mayor and City Commissioners
cc: Mark MCLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief
DATE: October 31, 2024

SUBJECT: Fire Department Budget Amendment

Summary:
The Kingsville Fire Department has experienced numerous equipment problems. These problems

mainly included an engine replacement, and repairs to the department ladder truck.

Background:
The fire department budgeted $35,000 vehicle maintenance for FY 24/25. These funds have been

expended. Additional funding is requested to complete outstanding repairs preventative
maintenance (PM’s).

- Financial Impact:
The fire department is requesting a budget amendment in the amount of $78,000 to complete

the necessary repairs and maintenance to fire department equipment.

Recommendation:
The fire department.recommends a budget amendment in the amount of $78,000.00 from Fund

097, the Vehicle Replacement Fund.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-_

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR EMERGENCY FIRE DEPARTMENT VEHICLE REPAIRS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#6

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account | Budget Budget
No Number | Increase | Decrease

EXﬁZenditures - 5
2200 | Fire Vehicle Maintenance 41100 $78,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to appropriate funding for emergency repairs
for Fire Department vehicles. Funding will come from the unappropriated fund balance of the
Vehicle Replacement-Fire Fund 097. Current fund balance is $214,361.01.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.




THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 12th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney




REGULAR AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #3



Public Notices

~ Originally published at caller.com on 11/15/2024

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE :
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,

TEXAS TO CONSIDER THE ADVISABILITY OF THE CREATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE
NUMBER THREE, CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
PURPOSES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311, TEXAS TAX CODE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas (the
“City”), pursuant to Chapter 311.003 Texas Tax Code, as amended, (the “Act”), will hold a
public hearing at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, November 25, 2024, at City Hall, 400 W. King
Avenue, Kingsville, Texas 78363, for the purpose of considering the creation of
Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, located within the boundaries
of the City and the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. _

All persons are invited to attend the hearing and speak for or against the creation of Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, the proposed
boundaries, or the concept of tax increment financing. Written or oral statements will be
considered. The proposed boundaries are non-contiguous and consist of approximately
200 acres within two areas. Area #1 is generally located west and east of US Highway 77,
south of E General Cavazos Boulevard, west of Brahma Boulevard, and north of FM 1717.
Area #2 consists of Property ID 16494, legally described as KT & | CO, BLOCK 30, LOT PT
5. A more detailed legal description and boundary map of the proposed Reinvestment
Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas, are on file and open for public inspection in
the office of the City Secretary at City Hall, 400 W. King Avenue, Kingsville, Texas 78363.
Questions or requests for additional information may be directed to Natalie Moore, David
Pettit Economic Development, LLC, nmoore@dpedllc.com; 817-439-9515. | o



aWwdojarag duwiotiody  MP
- Lili3d aiava Qg

PZ0T ‘STHITNIAON
X1 ~w=_>mw:_v_ Jo >H_U

€ 9UOZ JUBWIISIAUIRY _ |
JUdwaduj xe] pasodoad



~suonsan) =
| sdo1S IXON =
C# 2UO7 JUDWISIAUIRY JUSLIIOU| xe| pasodoid =

1doou0D) SuIdURUIY JUSWUDU| XB|

DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

350d¥Nd



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

mEm @Bmcm_m@_@ e 0] >wk_@cm
pue E@Emuﬁ_uxm mc:g _@cm E@E#mwé_ EB__D& E@cao_m>%
M3U ]0BJ1)E ||IM 1] Om mch e ul ﬁcmE@>ok_QE_ J0J Aed 8 _oB

m:r 9SN UBD 'SIun BUIXb] Jay30 yim QE&mctsQ ul 4o mc@_m ‘Sann
Sexa | JO 93e3s ayy Ul U.Bm@b uaag @>m; S7¥|L 10 spaipuny
TT¢ J91deyDd ©poD) xe| Ag paulsnon)

(Z¥]1) suo7 E@cbm@é_@m E@Embc_ Xe] e EE__>> JuswdojaAap

DIWIOUOD3 SIZIAIJUSDUI 18] [001 B SI (4]]) 3ujdueUl{ JusWwaIdu| Xe | ,

~ ONIDNVNI ININTHONI XYL



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

Cmm> mmmmv

bscm mc,xﬁ wE 01 m>>o:
wz_ms \Atwqoa _mmg me\ﬂ mmmp mE co xm_\

XEHV

v

SR Nm_k c._£_>> .
EmEQo_@>@U>>@c Eot _oBEmcwm xmu:_o co_too_ mﬂu@t@@m o

EmEQo_m>ovco Xe} MaU B 10N

OZ_UZ<Z_u_,v,,_._.Zm_ _\/_m_w_uz_ XV1



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

~ duoz @£ wc:ﬁc@cmo_ mub@ﬁok_@_ JOY10 =
Aomm Egmguv mESon E@Ego_mi_o DIWOUODD m
ﬂcmEm>oEE_ o1gNd =

Eﬁusbmmtc_ .

Lou_ Aed Ued 73|l V

JN220 a9SIMUaY]0o 10U
>mE eyl ealde OlUl uﬂC@Euﬂm®>C_ pue m\_GQO_®>®U _m:ﬁcwuﬂOQ S1oei1ly

JUSWJOUl Jo3Je| B 31eJoua3d 01 73| L
S ulyim Apiadoud a)gexe; wod) SonuaAal 298etoA3| 01 All|Igy

A11uUd Suixe]l uijedpiyied yoes 4o SonuaAJ puny |eJauas Jo
JUNOowWe JusJind a3y} Suidedwi INOYIM 224N0S SUIpuny B SOPIACIJ

ea.e pajeusisap
e UIY}IM JN220 01 pa12adxa AJIAII0E JUBWdO[RAID 91BALI]

(711 Y 3LVIID AHM



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

@ucmc__ck_o Bm(_mgmm \6 __uczou B_U m£ bm>8o_g< (C -

pue _Emom NN__F ay1 Ag U@UC@EEOUE
S| cm_a wc_ucmci pue 309f04d |eul 9U] UoIeaId 7| | Joy Q

‘ue|d Supueul4 pue ub@ﬁoi jpul «

ueld wc_ucmci pue ﬁﬂo& Adpuiwiijaid (S pue

| ,,,,co;mo__u_tma AD (1 ‘pieog Zy|L (€ ‘Wi (g ‘Adepunog (T -

SlUsW9|o >®v_ IALL Saysl|gelss @ucmc:uu_o COE@@;U_ .

ue|d Suldueuld pue 103lodd 78|l 2
90UBUIPJIO) UO[REaS) T

”mE@E:uo_Qc_mE OM] 73|l e Sulpusauwe pue
3ul1eaJd JoJ Sa4npadoad SNoLIeA 2yl SauljIno TTE Ja1deyn) -

$S300¥d NOILYIYD ZdIL



DAVID PETTIT

Economic Development

R = X R TR [

st bl rerearp 0 3

[/ AMH

|

L RFRE ety MmN T

. g
- AT 4GB

i ARy

L wiropAussaza T e b

3 s apee

Geyen.

S R U

Y n itz

i

e

A i £,

peoy el 3 |

e

Y

i . . e e s
@

SR
CTURRE LA RIS

PAIH SOZeARD) [RJaU29) J |

|

i

|t , g o P

saliepunog - g# |1 @350d0ud




DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

B EmE@bc_ >t@@_9@_
_mmt s 31 JO 9%06 Jo EE e uﬁm m#mg_u_tmg_ b_u a2y ey mc_moqoi .

(S50Z T Egﬁ%m 3 Bﬁ@__ou
@o_ 0] Xe] S JEaA |eul) Yiim) #m@m ‘T€ \_mo_E@umﬂ wi9) 1edA-0g =

20¢ ‘T Alenuer JO se aq p|nom ms_m> mmmo_ mﬁ "
(Snongipuoouou) mmbm 007 23«8205% ile) ﬂm_mcou .

mco:b__@m_x_z mc_xﬁ ||E O} SNUBA3. Xe) _mco;__o_om |
PISIA {lim Jey) E@Eo_o_@>@_o Bm>:g @%E:Oucw 03} Sl [eOD) =

| MIINBAQ - £# Z31L A3SOdOYd



DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

1000°20¢'29 1000°200'! Y =10

( o - $]000°000'9 08 002§ - Hejey

) R 2 -] ooo'oog's - ¢ oooor - § N 00T o 1eoH

3 glooo'sort g 00z L§ e WEINE|S3Y

‘ 1 B & 4] ov0'zze't - s S o T ee0e weinelsey

© oo |oootoge s s ooooszrt 8 g . 080T wenesoy
~ o | ooot00e"t $ ¢oooooet 5 § ~8z02. wengsey

i 0000067 $ - ¢ oo0'006' $ $ 373 V.02 eyl
000'0¥0' $ g oo0ov0e - § 8 ooZsh 2602 ey
000016 $ “g|oooote s $ . 05e '0£02 - heey

000'v68C $ “$|ooovese § $ o 8202 Heioy

000'682'€ $ 00z 8| oo0'esee $ 002 8 e 8202 - reley

000000 $ 0oz ¢ do0'000'z’ $00z ¢ 00001 8202 - lerey

000'2L5°T $ ooz $|oooasz - s ooz $ 098'l 8202 re10y

000'000' $ oz - $|oo000e $ 00z - $ 0000} 8202 neley

000°L22'€ $ oz  $jooouzze ¢ o0z K cge'gl 8202 ey

000°0%1'L $ 00z $ | ooo'ovt't g0z $ oor's 8202 ey

000'€LV'CL ¢ o0z $ | 000'eL¥ NF $ 00z $ S9£'29 8202 ey

000'000'S $ 00z $ | ooo‘000's $ o0z 8 000'sZ 8202 - ey

000°000' $ 00z $ | ooo‘coo's $ 00z $ 000'6Z 820z ey

000°000° $ o0z s | ooo'000'L $ o0z $ 000' 8202 Heiy

000'00%'% $ 002 s | ooo‘oor'y $ 002 $ 00022 9202 ey

_ T eHZulL

Jjeis A0 Eot pj@_c_ pue ﬁc,@EQo_m@U _omccm_o_
UMOU ‘'SpuaJ] 1a34ew Uo paseq ‘7|l 243 40 a4 sy} wc_k_sb
1N220 p|nod JuswdojeAap _Bos pue |le1aJ 1eyr mub@_ok_g A3dq =

Juswdojana pajedidipuy

£# 7411 43S0dOdd



oF i xm..... hu:mnzuun. jIOH
mvﬁ €89 Em. R  Apedoi jpay

BIASBU 10

ol
suopaipsiny Bupxe)

0L 020 LIS CS0COCESIS

———mer
EEVEGE |5 T EEV'E6E 1S — RUTLINY JSIEj SExS | (pnog.
62896 2F$ 628'962Zv% | | asi syiasbury
¥S6'rLOZES ¥56'FLOZES | Apumog Blaga]y
£67'518'65¢ GFE'Z89’ :w BER'J6Y LIS - __asBuny jo Ao
Eﬂ:mm 19N :nm#HnuWumm m_ummMM._..m_.HM_. m;ﬂ.ﬁim...;... mzﬁm il
uJa? me> 0g
= 91 JDA0 ‘$1S07D) 193[0Ud 9y punj 01 SNUSASY Z¥|L Ul UOH||IA
[l : :
58 L'TT$ 21eJauas 03 pajoafold s juswdojpas _oEmQ_u_E,Q oY e
o g
mm 9Seq $¢0¢ B 9A0QE QUo7 2y} UIYIM _E@E@bc_ >tmgok_o_ |eaJ

B 943 JO %0G 9INQLIIUOD PINOM B||IASSUIY| JO B_U 93 3UIsododd

oL

uoedioed - £# 2411 4ISOdONd




‘ | cozﬁm_@_mcou 10} __uc:ou \ﬁ_u pue pJeoq Nm_h aun
01 Emzcou_ Ew:ob _ocm @>ogm Pa3s!] S21408918D 3yl YJIM JUSISISUOD ‘SIS 35eD AQ 258D
e uo _o@uﬂmz_mi @@_ ___>> SUOI3BD0||e 150D Bm_oa ZdlL _m3U_>__oc_ ay3 1ey3 _oBmQ_u_Em S 7]

wayl sul| JAU0UR Ul 95e2.0U| 3502 e 0} _Dm__ggm 3
Aew EB_ mc__ mco Eot mmc_>mm U@m_>@k_ 3¢ Aeul pue satewnsa 2Je pajesisn||l s1s02 ay |

'9p0D) Xe| $exa] 3Y} 4O ZOO'TTE Uondes TTe Jeydeyd

Japun @_o__m__@ s393f04d |[e 9pN|oUl 03 WUBAW S48 DAOUE 3|qE) SU Ul pa3s]| so1i0893e ay |

BT B el
%0°€E 0Lt'0S€ S $150) dARSIUIWPY|
%0E £0£'p0S'E $ | ~ sjueipjuawidojeAsg 21woucd3

. suswanodw ue sap|vES J1jqNd ﬂ:mEmao.aE_
%0T  |vez'sorT  $ FPUE SSRIEL

puE 59131984 UOEAIIDY w:m jed mumnm .._mno

uaiadxa uplsapad ayl 33unyua 1y} mwaEmEn .aﬁo puo ‘Lo uﬁza .mnccm: m%ummmtw

= m %LT 188TOV'T  $ SjUBWRdURYUF UeLISIPad
m m %ST ZSETSLT S ﬂcwEw:EnE_ UoII3SIDU| pue 393N
p ,Dm %ST TSE'TSLT S S3uBIBACIdW 3iSUBIL PUE Suppied
m g sjua E%EQE pup SalIp204 1330M
[a g

WLI0}S ﬁEmEszug puD S311}1204 Jam3g EEE&. m:mEmsEaE\ PUD S3NNID4 1330/

%ST

ZSETSLT

$

saniAN Aqnd

m# ZYlL - ﬂwou 19(o14 pasodoad

LL

mymou Ubwﬁogn_ m# Zdl1 d350d0dd




DAVID PETTIT
Economic Development

P,

zL

L @ucmc__o\_o Bmk_mo_@m AQ __uczou B_U @E uauys
pue pieog 7¥|1 a4yl Ag _@@>8o_a_m SI sue|q suloueul

. : ,Ucm 109[0.4d |eul @5 Uoi3eaud 2411 coo_D mNON wc:am ._.

ue|d wc_ucmci pue ub@ﬁoi \Cmc_cc__@i .
pue ‘uoljedidijed AlD =

‘pieog 7|1 =
(WIS | m

“\Cm_cczom .
:SJUSWISlD Ay oAl mwsm_EBm@ 20UBRUIPJIO UOIIea)") =

UOIeJapISU0D) pue SUIPey pug ‘16 JoquIada(] =

| 32URUIPIO
uolleal) SulieaH 2lignd pue wc__umm/n._ 1sT 211G T JOQUISAON =

Sd3LS 1X3IN A3SOdO¥d



CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 24-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311 OF THE TEXAS TAX
CODE, CREATING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE
NUMBER THREE, CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville, Texas (the “City”), pursuant to Chapter 311
of the Texas Tax Code, as amended (the “Act”), may designate a geographic
area within the City as a tax increment reinvestment zone if the area satisfies
the requirements of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the governing body of a municipality by
ordinance may designate a contiguous or noncontiguous geographic area that
is in the corporate limits of the municipality or the extraterritorial jurisdiction
(the “ETJ”) of the municipality to be a reinvestment zone if the governing
body determines that development or redevelopment would not occur solely
through private investment in the reasonably foreseeable future; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to promote the development of a
certain contiguous geographic area in the City and the City’s ETJ, which is more
specifically described in Exhibits "A" and “B” of this Ordinance (the "Zone"),
through the creation of a reinvestment zone as authorized by and in accordance
with the Tax Increment Financing Act, codified at Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax
Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and as required by the Act, the City has prepared a
Preliminary  Reinvestment Zone Project Plan and Financing Plan for
Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, attached as Exhibit C
(hereinafter referred to as the “Preliminary Project and Finance Plan™) for a
proposed tax increment reinvestment zone containing the real property within the
Zone; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the creation of the proposed
zone was published in a newspaper having general circulation in the City on
November 15, 2024, which date is before the seventh (7th) day before the public
hearing held on November 25, 2024; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearing on November 25, 2024, interested persons
were allowed to speak for or against the creation of the Zone, the boundaries of
the Zone, and the concept of tax increment financing, and owners of property
in the proposed Zone were given a reasonable opportunity to protest the
inclusion of their property in the Zone; the public hearing was held in full
accordance with Section 311.003(c) of the Act; and



WHEREAS, evidence was received and presented at the public hearing on
November 25, 2024, and in favor of the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, after all comments and evidence, both written and oral, were
received by the City Commission, the public hearing was closed on November
25, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the City has taken all actions required to create the Zone including,
but not limited to, all actions required by the home-rule Charter of the City,
the Act, the Texas Open Meetings Act (defined herein), and all other laws
applicable to the creation of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, the percentage of the property in the proposed zone, excluding
property that is public owned, that is used for residential purposes is less than
thirty percent; and

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Project and Finance plan has been prepared for the
proposed reinvestment zone.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. RECITALS INCORPORATED.

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby
found and declared to be true and correct.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS.

That the City Commission, after conducting the above described hearing and having
heard the evidence and testimony presented at the hearing, has made the following
findings and determined based on the evidence and testimony presented to it:

(a) That the public hearing on the creation of the reinvestment zone has been
properly called, held, and conducted and that notice of such hearing has been
published as required by law; and

(b) That the creation of the proposed reinvestment zone with boundaries as described
and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B” will result in benefits to the City, its residents
and property owners, in general, and to the property, residents, and property owners
in the reinvestment zone; and

(c) That the proposed reinvestment zone, as defined in Exhibits “A” and “B”, meets
the criteria for the creation of a reinvestment zone set forth in the Act in that:

1. It is a geographic area located within the City limits of the City and the City’s
ETJ; and '
2



2. That the City Commission further finds and declares that the proposed zone
meets the criteria and requirements of Section 311.005 of the Texas Tax Code
because the proposed zone is predominantly open and, because of obsolete platting,
deterioration of structures or site improvements, or other factors, substantially
impair or arrest the sound growth of the City or county.

- (d) That 30 percent or less of the property in the proposed reinvestment zone,
excluding property dedicated to public use, is currently used for residential
purposes; and

(e) That the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the proposed
reinvestment zone according to the most recent appraisal rolls of the City, together
with the total appraised value of taxable real property in all other existing
reinvestment zones within the City, according to the most recent appraisal rolls
of the City, does not exceed 50 percent of the current total appraised value of
taxable real property in the City and in the industrial districts created by the City,
if any; and

(f) That the improvements in the proposed reinvestment zone will significantly
enhance the value of all taxable real property in the proposed reinvestment zone
and will be of general benefit to the City or county; and

(g) That the development or redevelopment of the property in the proposed
reinvestment zone will not occur solely through private investment in the
reasonable foreseeable future.

SECTION 3. DESIGNATION AND NAME OF THE ZONE.

Pursuant to the authority of, and in accordance with the requirements of the Act, the
City Commission hereby designates the area described and depicted in Exhibits “A”
and “B” hereto as a tax increment reinvestment zone. The name assigned to the zone
for identification is Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Kingsville, Texas
(hereinafter referred to as the “Zone”).

SECTION 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

That a board of directors for the Zone (“Board”) is hereby created. The Board shall
consist of five (5) members comprised of four (4) City Commission members and the
Mayor.

The Mayor shall serve as chairman of the Board and the Board may elect a vice
chairman and such other officers as the Board sees fit. Additionally, each taxing unit
that levies taxes within the Zone and chooses to contribute all or part of the tax
increment produced by the unit into the tax increment fund may appoint one member
of the board. The number of directors on the Board of Directors shall be increased by
one for each taxing unit that appoints a director to the board; provided, that the
maximum number of directors shall not exceed fifteen (15).

3



The Board shall make recommendations to the City Commission concerning the
administration, management, and operation of the Zone. The Board shall prepare and
adopt a project plan and a reinvestment zone financing plan for the Zone and submit
such plans to the City Commission for its approval. The Board shall perform all duties
imposed upon it by Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code and all other applicable laws.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Board shall not be authorized to
(i) issues bonds; (ii) impose taxes or fees; (iii) exercise the power of eminent domain,
or (iv) give final approval to the Zone’s project plan and financing plan.

Pursuant to Section 311.010(h) of the Act and Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas
Constitution, the City Commission hereby authorizes the Board, as necessary or
convenient to implement the Project and Finance Plan and achieve its purposes, to
establish and provide for the administration of one or more programs for the public
purposes of developing and diversifying the economy of the Zone, eliminating
unemployment and underemployment in the Zone, and developing or expanding
transportation, business, and commercial activity in the Zone, including programs to
make grants of land and buildings and make grants from the Tax Increment Fund for
activities that benefit the Zone and stimulate business and commercial activity in the
Zone. In addition, the City Commission hereby authorizes the Board to exercise all of
the powers of the City under Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, as amended.

SECTION 5. DURATION OF THE ZONE.

That the Zone shall take effect immediately upon the passage and approval of this
Ordinance, consistent with Section 311.004(a)(3) of the Act, and termination of the
Zone shall occur upon any of the following: (i) on December 31, 2054 (with the
final year’s tax increment to be collected by September 1, 2055); (ii) at an earlier time
designated by subsequent ordinance; (iii) at such time, subsequent to the issuance of
tax increment bonds, if any, that all project costs, tax increment bonds, notes and
other obligations of the Zone, and the interest thereon, have been paid in full, in
accordance with Section 311.017 of the Act.

SECTION 6. TAX INCREMENT BASE AND TAX INCREMENT.

That the tax increment base for the Zone, as defined by Section 311.012(c) of the Texas
Tax Code, shall be the total appraised value of all real property in the Zone taxable by
a taxing unit, determined as of January 1, 2024, which is the year in which the Zone was
designated as a reinvestment zone.

The TIF Fund shall consist of (i) the percentage of the tax increment, as defined by
Section 311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, that each taxing unit which levies real
property taxes in the Zone, other than the City, has elected to dedicate to the TIF Fund
under an agreement with the City authorized by Section 311.013(f) of the Texas Tax
Code, and (ii) fifty percent (50%) of the City’s tax increment, as defined by section
311.012(a) of the Texas Tax Code, subject to any binding agreement executed at any

4



time by the City that pledges a portion of such tax increment or an amount of other
legally available funds whose calculation is based on receipt of any portion of such tax
increment.

SECTION 7. TAX INCREMENT FUND.

That there is hereby created and established a “Tax Increment Fund” for the Zone
which may be divided into such subaccounts as may be authorized by subsequent
ordinance, into which all tax increments of the City, as such increments are
described in the final project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and may
include administration costs, less any of the amounts not required to be paid into the
Tax Increment Fund pursuant to the Act, are to be deposited. The Tax Increment Fund
and any subaccounts are to be maintained in an account at the affiliated depository
bank of the City and shall be secured in the manner prescribed by law for funds of
Texas cities. In addition, all revenues from (i) the sale of any obligations hereafter
issued by the City and secured in whole or in part from the tax increments; (ii) the sale
of any property acquired as part of a tax increment financing plan adopted by the Board;
and (iii) other revenues dedicated to and used in the Zone shall be deposited into the
TIF Fund. Prior to the termination of the Zone, money shall be disbursed from the Tax
Increment Fund only to pay project costs, as defined by the Texas Tax Code, for the
Zone, to satisfy the claims of holders of tax increments bonds or notes issued for the
Zone, or to pay obligations incurred pursuant to agreements entered into to implement
the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan and achieve their purpose
pursuant to Section 311.010(b), Texas Tax Code.

SECTION 8. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is
expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect. The City hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof irrespective
of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid. '

SECTION 9. OPEN MEETINGS.

It is hereby found, determined, and declared that sufficient written notice of the date,
hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Commission at which this Ordinance
was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the
general public at the City Hall of the City for the time required by law preceding its
meeting, as required by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, and that this
meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which this
Ordinance and the subject matter hereof has been discussed, considered and formally
acted upon. The City Commission further ratifies, approves and confirms such written
notice and the contents and posting thereof.

5



SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and publication in
accordance with and as provided by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25 day of November, 2024.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _12"" day of December, 2024.
Effective Date:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela
City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez
City Attorney



EXHIBIT A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The TIRZ is non-contiguous and consists of two areas, further described below.
Area #1

Beginning at the point where the eastern right of way boundary of Highway 77 meets the
northwest corner of Property ID 33335, thence

East along the northern boundary of Property ID 33335, continuing south and then west along the
boundary of Property ID 33335 to the point where the southeast corner of Property ID 10621
meets the northeast corner of Property ID 22312, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 22312 to the point it meets the northeast corner
of Property ID 12190, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 12190 to the point it meets the northern right of
way boundary of Trant Road, thence

South across Trant Road to the southern right of way boundary of Trant Road, thence

West along the southern right of way boundary of Trant Road to the point it meets the northeast
corner of Property 1D 42561, thence

South along the eastern boundary of Property ID 42561, continuing west along the southern
boundary of Property ID 42561 to the point it meets the southeast corner of Property ID 17015,
thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 17015 to the point it meets the eastern right of
way boundary of FM 1717, thence

North along the eastern right of way of FM 1717/Brahma Boulevard to the point it meets the
northwest corner of Property ID 13841, thence

West along the northern boundary of Property ID 13841 to the point it meets the southwest
corner of 30949, thence

North along the western boundary of Property ID 30949 to the point it meets the southern
boundary of Property ID 19114, thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 19114, continuing along the boundary of
Property ID 19114 to the point it meets the southern boundary of Property ID 10621, thence

West along the southern boundary of Property ID 10621, continuing along the boundary of
Property ID 10621to the point it meets the northwest corner of Property ID 46276, thence



East along the northern boundary of Property ID 46276 to the point the northeast corner of
Property ID 46276 meets the western right of way boundary of Highway 77, thence

East across Highway 77 to the point where the eastern right of way boundary of Highway 77
meets the northwest corner of Property ID 33335, which is the point of beginning.

EXHIBIT A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED)

Area #2
Consisting of Property ID 16494, legally described as K T & I CO, BLOCK 30, LOT PT 5.



EXHIBIT B
BOUNDARY MAP

EDenaisUTavatea Mvs

AT L e

E Grants(Roe2is Broy

1 CHABNE B

{

Rt

m_ AT .x_:i

. axaf BrodRund

5
)

2
TR
]

&

g ST (G
[

]

 Aew

B3R

i
1

v
¢
?
i




EXHIBIT C
PRELIMINARY PROJECT PLAN AND FINANCE PLAN

10



Wawdon3g o0,
12134 4 [ |

11113d alAva £# ZU11 ‘ueld Sujoueulq pue yosfold Aeuujiaid

D T A e T R e

R Fr i P R R g s

)

JEAR STV LN

sexa] ‘a||Insguy Jo A1
Y202 H3AWI03T C# 9U07Z JUBWIISOAUIDY JUBWaIouU| Xe|

NVd DNIONVNI4 ANV L33rodd AMYNINITIYd



Juawdopnag Jwoued3
11113d dlAva

‘Yied
us1esq 8yl Yo uoisINIXS dlgensgioun ue Lofua pue
SuonoRINE [200] 10 ‘S)USAS pauueld Buoxe ‘swnasnw
oUOISIY Auew INO JO 3UO UNOY “BYlje S|BJ0| pUe SIONSIA
o) sJUBWYSIIQEISS |IBJ) pue ‘sjueine)sal ‘sapaoe
100PIN0 JO UOII03(3S BSISAMIP B SIS0 Apnoid ajjiasBuly

“uodiy funo) 81aga)y oyl
Al noA uaum ajqiIssa00E Aj91RIPSWLIL OS|e S| SIIASBUIM
'SSUINIY PaIUN pue 1SaMUINOS ‘uesuawy AQ paAlas si
pue ‘Wodily [euoneusslul NsUY) sndio) 4O 1S8MUYINCS
S3\W € PeIeI0| ST S|pASEULY “PEOIEY ay0ed UoIuN

£# ZHI ‘ueld Sujoueuly pue ysfoid Aleunuljaly

SRR

ol Aq 801AI98 (] BUIOFINO pue BUILIOOUI YUM PRAISS
osle s| A1 ay), yonal Aq ajjiAsBuly O} JUSIUBAUOD SJe
UOISNOH pue ISuY) Sndiod Jo SHOd 8y} WOl pue o)
sjuswidiys "sejjeq pue UOISNOH ‘OlUCIUY UBS WOIL SaUl|
BUNOBUUCD  YZNOIY) BDIAISS PUNOINO pue punogul
apiroid S18lED YIni) [BUOnBU pue |B30] Ylog °peod
Asng e s] 40pI09 69} 53 Jo Wed B BWGIEY 03 UOOS ‘1)
Kemy3tH -ooIXoN 01 SEXa] WoAs J0PILIoS JOfRW B SI YJIyM
‘22 KeMUBIH "S'n- 40 I1SNf SHS A0 Byl ,AUunwwo)d
192.1S UBN v, Se jies) sslowoid jeyl Aunuwiwos siyy
Joj snid e s| skemysly Jofew o} Awixoid safjIASEuy

*saluedwod [eLISnpul QOGS SUNUOL [eIBASS PUE UOREBIS
Iy [eAeN e ‘SfjIASBUI IRV SEXal ‘AISIaAun Yo1essal
Iand Suipes| e 01 sawoy osje s1 pue ajdoad 000'SZE
Ajleau 0} swioy sI S|IIASBUIY *1SOM B} UO A1UNOY ysnig
SUl pue IsEd BYl UO ISBO) JIND SEXIL BU} UsBMISg
pauoisod si ‘Aunog B1egaiy Uy psiedo] X1 *a)liasBuiy

TR

ST

CTTEIETEE

‘lerslew 8q Kew soduaiaIp ay) pue ‘pajoadxa se Jnooo
1ou op Apuenbaly SSOURISWINDJIO PUE SIUBAY 8SNBIAY S}NSAI [BMOR pue
pejoaford usomiag seouBIBKIP aq Alfensn [[m a1ay ) RBojoydksd 1xuew pue
Jswinsuod Bujueyod 0} 108fqns se Jjlam se ‘|ealjoko ag ues sjexlew Suisnoy
pue Awouods ay} 1eyy usnid Auejnofued 4oipald OF Ynoupp St aImng 8y

*paynsnl s a1e Aoyl yeyy ainsus 0y Afleaipousd suondwnsse
Josfoud Aoy usiAel 0) pue ‘A{SRONUAUOY JaxeW B)e1S9 [Ba) pUB AWOU0oS
8y} J0puOW 0) {eONLO S| Y '[BOIOAD BIe SleNeW SLISS |esl pue afueys
UB) SUOMIPUOY OIWIOUOSD JBY} USAID TJOMIBW B)LISS |eal pue AWouoos
{edo] Jo/pue ‘jeuoney oyl Jo souewsousd peloadxa By} pue SUOILPUCD
19BN JUBLND UD P3SEq 9J8 SUONEepUSWWOooal PUe SUOISN(OUD INg

HINIVIOSI

' ¥ xipuaddy i

suonpuog pue suual i

go———— sishieuy Aiiqiseos eroveury |l

s)s09 100f0ad

uawdojaraq pasodoid i

€ suomtpuo) uaung i

S)UBUOY JO B|qe)

PIOMBI0-



JUAWAORA3E WON0IT
lill13d dlavd

- : ¥
£# ZYIL ‘ueld Sujdueuty pue josfoid

RN RS SRR

fepunog 7y - | |

1

. . 8 g epruena y T
LA T bt it SR S

oy agpcr

oherRRaN BT NI

e i,

S

rvsish

T e e

ot 622892 410D

5
3

H
2

i eresa eiaan 3 [T AR 2y 3

) "Ajediolunw oy Jo YIMOIB punos sy sredwi 0} SNURUOS PINom Ausdoid paiwasds ayy ‘ZyIL ayd
J0 uonejuswadwl SUI INOYIM "alfIAsButy 30 AUD ay3 Sulpniour ‘suonaipsiUng Suixey 3|qi81J® yo uonedionied walojea pe YSNoIYL SJuSWA0IAW] 8SBYY pUNy UEd 7|1 9y Sluesd awWdOBASp J1WIoU023 pue ‘Bunlysl 19211s pue salnn

108} >jied pue ageds uado ‘sjusUIBA0IdLUI UCO8SISIU] PUE 19011S SE [[OM SB ‘SIIIOB) JS1eMm ULI0)S pue Ismas Agyues ‘1ajem 0) palejal sjuswenoldw ognd Ul GHE 289 TT$ 40 Bulpun; ay3 ssuipno ueid Bulsueuy pue 10afoid m_._._ 1

"suoljolpsinf SuIxe) 200 ||e 0} SnusASs Xe} [BUCIIPPE PIRIA fjiM 1ey) Juawidojarep sjeaud a8eIN0oUS O} pue anoniisenu] oljand

PSp33U JO UONINASUOT BU) PUN 0} St (E# ZYIL) €# SUOZ JUBLNSIAUISY JUSWISIOU] Xe JO [BOB 8Y ] *SEX3] ‘D[[IASBUIY 40 K10 ‘231 JSQWINYN BU0Z JuswiIssAulay se (.13, )uonoIpsuN| [ELoJIaIBNXS S A1 B3 JO SHWI| SYT UIYNIM PUR SHW|
A9 au1 uiyum eare ojydesFosd snonBnuod e Buneuisap 9oUBUIPIO UL JOPISU0D lim *2po) xe| sexal sy} Jo TTe Jaideyd 0) yuensind *(,UCISSIUWIOD, aY3) Sexal ‘S||IASBUlY JO AUD BU) JO UOISSILIWO) AIY 8Ll H20Z ‘6 Joquasag ug
*(Z411) BU0Z JUSWISBAUIDY JUSWAISU] Xe| & Se esle 21ydes50a8 oy Jo uoneuSISep dU} 104 INQ JN20 JOU PINOM

1en swdojaaspal pue JuswdojaAsp mau 1o} patagie) eate aiydeiSoss e ajeuBisap Aew Ano v “eade alydeigoal payloads e ulyim Juawdojeaspal pue swdoarsp msu Yloq a1owoid o3 pasn jooy e s (4]1) Buidueutd JusaWAIOU| Xe|

SliInsBuly JO AND ‘E# SUOZ JUBWIISIAUIDY JUSWIAIIU] XeL

uoRONPOIU|



Juawdojansg Juouolz [4
1i113d diAva

S SN

6501 proy Aunos.N:

i
1

oy 954002 1169

L pMG u.wn.nauu jestos 3

105 Clr.

J01uj04

’ I§w.ﬁV

16 Aoug e

‘G
1d 107°0€ ¥0078 *00 1 ® L M S paquassp AlleBa) pue ‘113 S,A10 syl uiyum ‘y69T a1 Aliadold Jo Bupisisuo)
C# ealy

“BuiuuiBeq o ujod syt st yojum ‘GEEEE gl Ausdold JO JauL09 1SamyLiou
ay) s1edaw L/ AemysiH jo Aiepunoq Aem jo WBI uisisea ayy aioum jutod oyl o) 22 AemyFiH ssoloe 1se3

ouayl ‘17 AemysiH Jo Aiepunog Aem JO WSBII UISISOM BY] S198W O/ ZO
Qi Auadoid Jo 1au103 Jseayniou syl Julod syl 01 9/Zoy Al Aedod Jo Kiepunoq ulsyuou sy Suoje 1ses

€# ZHl1 ‘ueld uldueuld pue jo9foid Aeujwijeid

TR SR DRI I R

20uUsY} ‘979t Qi Ausdold JO J2UI0D 1SSMUYLIOU BU} S188W Y Juiod a1 OYTZO0T
ai Auadoiqg jo Aiepunoq ayy Buoje Buinunuoo ‘TZoOT dl Auedoid Jo Alepunog uidyInos oy Suoje 15om

aouau} ‘TZ90T Al Auadold Jo Alepunog uisyinos auy) sjesw i juiod su 0}
YTT6T QlAuadoid Jo Arepunog ay3 Suole Buinunuod ‘FTTET Al Auadoid Jo A1epunog wisyinos sy} Suoje 1s9m

aJuauy ‘yIT6T al Alsdold
40 Aepunog uieynos auj sleaw I wiod 8yl 0} 660E Q| AUedold JO Aiepunog uisi1sam oy} guoje yuoN

Bousy}
‘6760€ JO J19UI00 1SEMUINOS 8Y) S19aW I Julod 8U) 01 THRET al Aladoid JO A1epunoq wayuou ay) Suoje 1som

auay} ‘'T¥8ET Al Auedold Jo
131300 1SaMYLIOU BU S}98LW ) Julod SU) O} PIEASINOg BLUIYRIg/LTAT IN4 J0 Aem 10 WBI uisises au) Buoje YUON

90UsY} ‘JTLT N4 JO
Arepunog Aem o y3u uss)ses ay s19sw )1 Julod aY1 03 GTO LT QI Ausdold 30 A1epunog Wiayinos sy Suoje 1som

99U} ‘GTO.LT A AUadoid JO 19LLI09 1SEaUINOS 93 S193W 1 Julod ay3 0} T9GEY | Auadold
J0 Alepunog uisyinos ayy Suoje 1sem SulNUNUOI ‘TSTY Al Aedoid Jo Alepunoq uisises ay) uole yinog

eousyl ‘79GP ql Auadold
0 Jau100 Iseayniou au) s)esw ¥ Juiod 8y) 0} peoy uel] Jo Arepunog Aem Jo WS WBLINOS ay) Suoje 1S9

2ouaYy} ‘peoY JuERIL JO Alepunog Aem JO JUBI LIBYINOS B} 0} PROY JUBIL SSOIOR YINoS

Bauay} ‘peoy Juel] Jo Alepunog
Aem Jo 3yBu wByLoU 3yl s1eaw Y juiod syt 01 06TZT Al Auadold jo Arepunoq uleises syy Buoje ynos

9%uUsU1 ‘06TCT Tl
Auadold Jo J8u109 3SBRYUIOU BY) S19aW 1 Juiod au1 0) ZTEZZ Al AMadold Jo A1epunoq uisises ay) Suoje YInos

aouay) ‘ZTeze gl Auadold 40 18uiod
1sEaY)IoU By} S1I93W TZOOT Al Auadold JO JSUI00 1SBaYINOS Y3 a1aym ujod 8y} 0} GEEEE I Auadold 0
Arepunog sy} 3uo|e Jsem USY} pue yInos SUINURU0D ‘GEEEE af Ausdoid J0 Alepunog ulayyou ay) Suoje 1sel

20uay} ‘seeee a) Asdold Jo
Jsuloa Jsamypiou ay) s)saw /2 Aemysiy Jo Aepunoq Aem Jo 1ySu uislses ayy alaym ulod ayi 1e BuiuuiBeg

T# ealy
€# Zul11 vonduasaq |eSaq

135410 81 UIYIM P3Je00] §) Z# B3IV PUE ‘SYWI| AU U3 UIYUM PSYRD| S| T# BSIY MO[8] PaguIsap JOYLINS ‘Seale oM} JO SISISU0D PUE SNONSHUOL-UOU S| 7411 BU] SaI08 00Z AjRlewxoidde JO SISISUoo €4 ZHIL

uonduasaqg Aiepunog

Asepunog zy1L



Jwawdopnag Jwouog
11113d diAava

€
[ ]

1
N

O i

: ; : “SniSHAD o
o vl LI pAIg ma_yum>nu,_a.~wcvum - s : JE& nzm,hnﬂn...nu.ﬂn‘_o_woo,, .W
“ZY11 dU} JO }nsal e Sk SaouRUIPIO |edidIuNLL JSYI0 JO SUORE|INSaI pue sajn.
uoIsIAIpgns ‘sapod Buipping *

uejd Jajsew ‘soueulpio Suluoz s|jIAsSuly JO AID oY) 0} sagueyo Aue aq |im a1y patediojiue 10U S| 3} JuswdolEASp 81NNy AUe 5)ePOWOIIE 0} pauozal 8q 0] peau Aew Auadoud 3y “pauoz Jou si 113
U3 UL S132U Z41L 3 Unym pue oY) “(Usal3 ut papeys) 1014s1Q B10alILIoD D pue (pa1 ul papeys) 10UISIQ [1EeY 120 ‘(MOISA Ul PpRYS) J0LISIC [RINYNOLIBY Y PAUOZ S1 SHUM| A1) SUJ UILIM St 1BUL ZHLL U3 UiluM puejayl

Suwoz

'sesodind |enuapisal 104 pasn s ‘paumo Ajoljand s eyl Auadoid Suipnjoxs ‘auoz sy ul Auadoid ayy
0 1usdiad Og uey) ss97 Jueld I191eMm S)SEM B UM parcidwll S| Z# Baly *auoz sy} uiyum Aadoid |30y e osje si atayy, Juswidojerap aininy Joj pauonisod |[om S| 18y} puej Jueoea Aewud S| BUOZ BY) JO T# BOIY UILIM pue| ay)

asq pueq

SUOIJIPUOY JUBLNY



Jawdojanag uouoig

14
11113d glava

€# ZHIL ‘ueld Buoueuld pue 103{oid Areujwiieid

W T s

R SR S B R O S et PRGN RO A SRR BRI E%

2
m i
T . PR
; i L et
oy I BTV i ¥
: l :
= &
= !
2 -
H
% k|
i
H

SN
H

s "
e

SR LT R T R

i

Y 081503 1R
i

TBAD Yoresea yaceg 3 LI Lz L pamterenes s 3

'V X|puaddy 99s Z4IL 9Y3 UlyIM PIpNjoUl sjaoied 4O SHRISp JBLINY 104 *ajge|IeA. a1 SBNjeA Bjqexe) yZ0gZ eul syl Usym jomsig jesieiddy
Aunog Sisqalyl Aq payliaA ag 0} pasu |[IM anjeA aseq vZ0g SUL YOV YET'Y$ S ZHIL Y3 uiyim Auadord auy Jo anjeA 9seq S[qEXE) PAIBLINSS BY] "C# SUOZ JUSWISOAUISY JUSWSIOU] Xe] UlyNM sjaored O AQUSLIND ale aiayL

diysiaumQ uanuny

"ZH11 843 J0 uonejuaW[dW By} JO NS4 SB PaleIc|al 84 0} PoaU Jo pade|dsip 8 [iim suosiad Aue Jey) psiedionue J0u S| 3

paode|dsig 99 03 SU0SIod Suleoo|oY 40 POYIOIN

SUONIPUOD) JUBLINY



Jwawdoprag JUoueI7 ]
¥ [

11113d diAva €# Zd11 ‘veld Bupueul] pue Ja3foid Areupuyjaid

R R e,

'9 98ed UO pauyjino s1S0 108f0.d dY3 puny OF aNuUsAvY ZYiL Ui GHE ‘289°TT$ ajesousl
01 payoafold s} JuaLudojansq pajediopuy syl JuswdofeAsq paIedidBUY SU1 JO SNjeA SGEXE] FZOZ PAIEWSS By SUesaIdal 000 Z00'89Sx

000°20¥'29.. “$ :7:] 00020089 $ SEEZLE -1 e eje L
000'000'9 $ ooz ¢ | 000'000'9 $ 002 $ 000'0¢ © 0802 ey
- $ - $ | 000'009's $ 000'0L $ 08 0£02 [910H
000'601L°} $ 00C $ | ooo'soL’s $ 00z $ 6Z§'s ve0z jueingjsey
000°22¢'L $ 00C $ | ooo'zee't ¢ 002 $ G€9'9 ceoe jueInE)SSy
000'082°L $ 002 $ | 000'082'L $ 00z $ 00v'9 0s0z Jueinejsey
000'00¢"L $ o0z $ | 0o00‘00g’L $ 002 $ 005'9 8202 Welnejsay
000'006'C $ 00z $| 000'006'C $ 00z $ 00571 ¥E02 ey
000'0v0'c $ o0z $ | ooo'ovo'e $ 00z $ 00zZ'sL zeoz ey
000'0L6 $ ooc $] ooo'ole $ 00z $ 0SSy 0eoz Il
000'¥6€'C $ o0z $§ 000'¥6E'C ¢ 002 $ 0611 820¢C Ie1ey
000'682'¢ $ 00C $] ooo'esz'e $ 00z $ Shy'9l 8202 1y
000'000'C $ o00c $ | 000'000'2 $ 00z $ 00001 8202 leyoy
000'2.6'Z $ 00z $ | 000'zi5°C ¢ 00z 3 098'zL 820z ey
000'000'2 $ o0z $ | 000'000'2 $ 00z $ 0000} 8202 iteloy
000°2/2'¢ $ 00z $| ooo0'LL2'e $ 002 $ gge'ol 8202 Ileley
000'0vL°L $ 00c $| ooo'orL'L ¢ 00Z $ 00L'g 820C ey
000'eLt'CL $ ooz $ | ooo'eLr'zlL $ 00T $ G9€'29 820c llersy
000'000'G $ 002 $ | 000'000's $ ooz $ 000'sz 820c ey
000'000's $ o0z $ | 000'000's $ 00Z $ 000'62Z 8202 Iterey
000'000°L $ 00z $ 1 000'000'1 $ o002 $ 000's 8202 ireyoy
000'00%'% $ 00C $ | ooo‘oor'y $ 00z $ 000'2z 820¢ leey

£# ZdIL

ZYIL 3U3 ulyum
paielousg xe} Auedoid |eas [eyuswaiou AG Med ul paoueuy 8 PINOS ZHIL U1 UIYIM SIN020 1eY) uswdojarsp ay3 jey psjedionue st} “pers A1 woiy indul pue “YuswdojeAsp pauueld UMOUY ‘SpUaL} 193IBW UO paseq ‘ZyIL Sl
40 31| Y3 Buunp 4200 PN syoaford GI4Q 1eyy Wwawidoppasp [Enusied Jo Suln pue adods ayy 0 MaIMIBA0 Ue saplaoid mojeq Bjqe) 8y “uawdojsAspal pue JuswdojaASp 81niny J0) pauoIsod [[9M S| SUGZ BUY UM PUe| 8yl

Juswidojonaq pajedionuy

juswdojersq pasodold



Wawdonag Juiouosg 9
11L13d dlAva

R ST Sy,

‘auoz
8y3 1o} sueld 109fo1d 9y} 40 uoneIUBWAIdWE SY1 0} 10 SUOZ B} JO UONESID BY} O} JUSILSAUOD JO iBSSa05U Spul
Apoq BuluiaAog ay3 1eyl AUnoa 1o Aljedioiinu ay3 Jo Apoq SulIBA0R BY3 JO UONBIISIP SU) 1e apew sjuswked (1)

pue '91e3S S1Y3 JO UOISIAIPANS fedrjod JSUI0 10 “JOLISIP 889]|02 AYUNWIOD “OLISIP [COYDS B JO Jleysq uo Jo Aq
paumo SBUIPIING JaY10 10 'SaIM|Ioe) [BUOHRONDS JBY10 *SBUIP|ING {EUCHEONDS 19410 ‘SBUIR(ING [00Y9S JO S1509 ayy ())

‘uejd y09(oid By} jo uoneUBWS|dLL
3Y1 10} NUBADJ [B48U83 WO AAUnod 10 Aljedidlunt sYy Ag Spew SUoNGLIIUOI AU Jo Junowe ayy ()

sanfioey 108foid pue suoZ UBWISIAULBI U} Bufelado o 1500 ayl (|)

‘pazijended
10U J0 JayiayMm ‘UoIINIISU0I JO uons|dwod Jaye Jeak SUO 10} PUE UOJIONASUOD SULNP pue 2I0)eq 1Sa1alul (H)

. ‘auoz ay} 404 ue|d J0sfoid sy Bunuswieidul JO 3500 BY) pue *BUOZ BY} JO Uoea1d By Buiziaygnd Jo
1509 943 *s9IPNIS J8Y30 10 SIIPNIS Joedw [BJUBWUOIAUD BUIIINPUOD JO $1S00 B} BUIPN|OU] 'S1S09 [euoiezIuESIo (D)

151500 LONEIs[es (4)

‘uejd j09fold e Jo uoieuBLIBIdLUI Y} YIM UOROSUUOI U] AUNO0J Jo Ajediaunw
ayj Jo saakojdwia Aq Jusds awn ayy Jo} saBieyod ajqeuoseas Fuipnjou; 's1soo saReNSIuIWpPE pandw (3)

!SaDIAISS pue
ao1Ape [eB9] pue ‘Bunssuius ‘Bujuueld ‘[eIN19aUYDIE 10} PALINOU] BSOY} FUIPNIU| ‘SISO0 0IAIS [euoissajold (Q)

{51800 Ajquiasse Auadoid jeas ()

‘Aunew 810499 SuonResiqo ay) jo uodwapal
ay} Jo asnedaq suoieRNo 8y} 1o Junowe jediould ay) 4on0 pred winjwaid Aue pue §1s09 J98foid 10y Ked 0} panssi
SUONEBI0 JOYI0 JO SSAUPSIYSPUI JO SIOUSPIAS JO s1ap(oy 03 pred 1saisiyj || Buipnjoul 's1500 Sudueuy ()

‘pue( Jo Buipes3 pue Bunes|d sy pue Juawdmba pue pue| Jo uoilisinboe S} JO SISO3 [2Mok S}

pue s3ulpling s1eAud 10 21ignd JO UOIUIOWISP SY} JO S1SO9 [eNIoe Sy} ‘SUIP|ING S1BALd 10 J1lgNd € JO OpeoE] Y] 1O
uoneasasaid sy} Jo $1s00 [emoe ay} {sBuIp|INg Jo pue| a1eAld Jo oijgnd S12UILIBILOD 18y} SUCIIPUOD JO UONBIPSWISI
9y} JO SIS00 jenjoe auj} ISaINIXy pue ‘saInjonns ‘sgulpjing Sunsixe JO UoNONISU0931 Jo Yedal ‘Sulapowal
‘uonelslfe ‘uopijowap ‘uonisinboe Sy} JO SISOJ jeNIO. Y] iSAINIXY PUE ‘SaINIONAS ‘STUIPINgG Mau ‘Sjustusrosduwl
algnd ‘sxiom ogigqnd o uononsuod pue uonsinbae ayl Jo S)S09 [enoe 8yl Sulpnjoul ‘s1s09 [eudes (y)

@pn|aul ,s1509 193004d, "SuoiES|Iqo pue sainiipuadxe asoy} 0} |RIUSPIOUI S1S00 13YI0

snid ‘suoz ey} Bunyeusq s1vafoid JoY10 Jo ‘swesSoid ‘sjuswancidul oljgnd ‘syiom aland J0 s1509 se ue|d joafoid
SU3 U1 paisl) ale ey} SUOZ JUsWISaAUIS] e Buneudisap AUnos 10 Aljediolunw sy} Aq paiinoul 8q O} PSIEWiSs 10
paunoul suoned|jqo Alejsuow pue apeLw 9q 0] Pa)ewSa J0 dpew sanypusdxe ayl suesu ,s1soo alold, (T)

‘TOO'TTE "985
apoY xe| sexa] a8y} o TTE Jadeyd

£# ZH1L ‘ueld Supueu)y pue Ja3foid Aeujwijeid

UONRIBPISUOY 104 [IOUNOD AN pue pleog Z4|1 8y} 0} Piemio)
BN0Iq PUE ‘TOO'TTE UONISS ‘TTE J91HBYD YIIM JUSISISUOI SISEq SSBI-AG-9SBI B U0 PSIEN|eA? aq
1M 1509 398foid Zy 11 |enpIAIpUI 8Y1 1BY) pajedionue S| 3| *SUCIHPUOD J19yew Aq UaAUp Juswdojsrap

10} puewIap 0} 102[qNS ‘ZY]L Y} JO WIS) Y} JSAO PaLINoul aq 0} pajediojue ale siso9 10ofoid oyt

*au0z 9y} Ul AJAIIO. [B101I9WILIOY PUE SSBUISN] S)BINWIIS PUR SUOZ B} Jyausq

12y} SOIIARDE 10} SUOZ BYY J0} PUN) JUSLWISIZUI Xe] dY} 03! pied pue Alledidjunw ayy Aq paonpold
JUaWa1oui Xey JO Junolle 8y} paadxa 0} 10U Junowe a1egalsge ayy sywi| pue uejd Suioueuy

pue 309foid B UlyUM O8E J8idey Jo AuoyIne ayl S|EIDP SPOY X[ SEXaL Y1 Jo (Y) OTO'TTE
UoNvaS JusudojaAsp J1WoU0Ds S)e[nwWs O} spunj aljgnd Jo sueo| pue sjueiS Jayo o) Ayoyine
28U} sexa), Ui sailjedidiUNW SIULIS 3P0 JUSWUISAOD) (307 3} JO O8E Jaideyn uawdojeasp
oyeaud pue oijqnd 104 S39IAI9S pue ‘'sueo| ‘sjueis apnjoul Aewl sjuBID JuaWdojoAs] O1LIoU0I]

-ugjd Suloueuy pue
399(01d 8U) 0} JUSWPUSWIE Ue INOYUM PBpasdxs aq Jou |eys Jey} sainjipuadxa uo ded e paiapisuod
a4 |leys unowe [e10} 1509 109f0id GHE'Z8Y'TT$ SUL "Wall SUI| 1SYIoUR U} DSBS10U] 1509 € 0} paljdde

9 Aewl WSl SUI| BUO WO} SFUINRS *PISIASI 80 ABW pue SSIBWIISS Ble anoqe Pals]| S1s09 Joafoid
8Y] "8po) xe] sexs] 3yl 40 200 TTE UOHISS ‘TTE Ja1deyd Japun a|qiBye syaloid ||e apnjou) 03
juesW 3Je pue ‘spuswsnoidwy aKgnd snoliea auljINo SACYE Bjqe) SY3 U Palsl| SaLI0TIe0 By}

%00T - - | SvE'Z89'TT $
%0'€ oLv'0SE 3
%0€ €0L'V0S'E $

. |elol
$1507) SAIRASIUIWPY
sjueln awdoPAsq J1WouoI3

syuawanoidwi pue sapfe aygnd ‘sjuswanordw)

1, [
%01 veCeorT $ pue sanijloe4 UoiIEaIIBY pue yied ‘deds uadp

9auaiadxa unjsapad ayj 23ubYUa 1043 SAUSWD J3Y10 pup ‘Up ijqnd ‘Bunybly ‘adpas1aails

%CT T88T0VT S
%ST TSETSLT S
%ST TSETSLT S

SjuawWaduBYu3 UBLIISIPI
sjuawano.ldw| uoIBSIIU| pUe 39313
sjuswanosdw) Jsuea) pue Supjiegd

© SjuaWan0IdwW pup SajjIo0 1310/
Wlio1s ‘spuatianodiuf pup sapjiong 1amas A1pjups ‘squatancsdull pup safujion4 1330/
%ST TSETSLT S sangn a1qnd
€4 ZYIL - S150) 13fo14 pasodoud

Z411 8Y1 uiypm pajessusgd xey Auadoud |eai jeuswiaidu Aq ped uj Aq paoueuy
8( |lIM 18U £ SUOZ JUSWISIAUISY JUSWSIOU| XB] UIYM Sjudwiaaoldwl] JO 18qINU e S1e 19y

2U07 3y} Jo s)s09 J9aloid

$1S09) 199[0.d



Wwawdojanag Juouol3 L
11113d diAava

R e e

bowmumo SiU3 U papnioui ase Juswdinba pue sainypuadxs Bupsal

“'sasuadxa JusLIaBeuBW 'A10 8y} JO S99 BURINSUOD pue sa9y |eda) Suipnjou] sasuadxa aAlessIuILIpe pale|al J8YI0
“ueld Bujoueuld pue J0sfoid SU1 JO uolIRILBWRdWIE SYI YIM UONRIBULOD Ul PUB $10108J1 JO pieog aY1 Aq jeaoudde
uodn ‘s1s09 108foid Se JUsWasINqUIS) 10 S(QIBIS B [[IM ZYHIL Y1 UIYRM uopejuawajdw] LM IsIsse 01 ‘Ao sy

40 seafojdwa Aq Juads awn o1 10} Sa81eYD B|qeUOSEal BUIPN|OU] ‘SISOT SABASIUILIPY 151509 aAnessIuIUpY

"8U0Z 38U} Ul QIAIIOE |B[0ISWILIOY pUE SSaUISN( a1e|nwsS

pue suoz sy} Jysuaq 18Ul SANIANDE 10} BUO0Z Y3 104 PUNJ JUBWAISUI Xe) suy ol pled pue Ayjediolunw ayy A&q
paonpoid UBWRI0Ul X€) JO JUNOWE By} PSadxe 0] 10U Junowe ajegaigie ayj sywy pue ueld Suloueuy pue 109foid

e UM 08¢ s1dey 10 Auouine sy s|ielep apoY Xel SExa] U1 JO () OTO'TTE UON09S JUSWdojaASp JILIOUCos
sje|nws 0} spuny oljnd Jo sueo| pue SIUBIS JaJo 0] AoYINe SYI Sexa). ul seifedigiuNW SIURIS 9p0D JUSLLUISACH
12907 843 J0 08E Ja1deyD *sIURIB JUSWAO[PASP JILLIOUOSS PUR LONEIPSWSI [EJUSWILIOIAUS ‘UORIIOWSP ‘Uohealasald
JUOISIY :3Aj0AUL Yo} S)osfoid apnjout ose Aew pue sasn djqnd 0} payiw] 10U sle S1Sa9 J0afosd ZH1)L {1813
uawdojanap s1eaud pue slgnd Joj Se2IAISS puE ‘SUEO) ‘sjurIg apnjour Kew sty sjuely juawdo]anag sjwouosy

"AI089189 SIU] WOl papuny aq ued pue sasuadxo ajqiSiie ZyIL

ale uonsinboe pue| pue ‘syustuancidul ‘uBisap Jo SIS0) ‘sluswaroidwl sygnd J3Y10 10 S8YS 10 *SBN[I0R] ‘SHIOM
ollgnd []g3sul Jo ‘}oN1ISU0T2L YINNSU0D ‘eunboe 0} pasn aq Aew spuny 711 {g1)800" TTE "09S YUm aouepiosde
U] isjuswiaroidw] pue seniloey o1jqnd ‘sjusuanosduu] pue sapijjoed Uo§esiaay pue syieq ‘asedsg uadQ

£# ZH1. ‘veld Supueuld pue yafoid Leujwizid

"a0uapadxe uellsapad aU) 20UBYUS 1BY] SINIUSIE 1BYI0 PUR Je Jjgnd sepnjoul

syl "Buny3)| uelnsapad pue syael g ‘einuing J9as uetnsspad ‘sisjueld ‘syuswianoidwl 39ai3s ‘sgulume
‘(Anaissa09e (Yay) 10V sanligesiq Uim uesiawly) ging AousBiows pue uemsepsd ‘syjemssolo ueinsepad
‘Bunjred pajue pue [o)|eied ‘(8]9401q pue snq "8'9) saue| |9ARl) paleYS ‘'syj|emapls ssedosus et Yyoiym
sjuawaaoidwy Bulpling 03 BUIPling 8Y) 8pnjou] S198.4S 839|dW00 JO SIUDWIS|T “JUSWISIAL] pue wawdosAap
MBU JO a1 apim e saFeinoous pue spoddns wieal ojjgnd Buisea]d e Bupiesd SIOUSIA pue sjuap|sal

Joy 392135 BuniAul pue ‘ajes ‘Suises|d-A||eonsyisee ‘pajusLio-uersapad BUOROUN-IINUI JO UOTONASUOD

811 93.IN0JUS [)IM ZY|L Y] SIUSWIAIUBYUT URHISIPIY Pue SJUSWdAcIdW] UOI03SISI] pue 109115

JouIsIp

oy} ul Juswdolsnapal pue Jusidojersp feucnippe nds 0} 1sA|leD B S 108 pue 80uByUa 03 Sjuswidojersp
palsjuas-uelysapad ‘sjqexjem ‘1oedwod 91ea10 01 S| [20T By "suonels BUISIBYD |eILIIBIE PUB SHSON
/s1sy0w Buppied ‘Suipugfem pue ageudls Bupped Buiysi Suned ‘guppred sdeuns 'sofeled Suiied ‘0
paywi| 10U s1Ing ‘sapnjoul Supjied ‘sjuslidojeAsp PaIUSKO-IISUEBI] JO SSN-Paxil ainny Je sjuawdojaasp
11121 pue ‘|enuapisal ‘{e1o1awuwiod o3 $saooe oljqnd uoddns pue juswidojaasp 1asuap 98eInoous o) pazyin
aq Aew ‘upsIxs 10 P3IONIISUOT AIMOU JSUIBYM ‘SBINIONIS Bupled [SIaWaAcIdI] Jsuel] pue Supjed

“19)1eMULIO}S JOSIU0D BSIMIBYIO 10 ulelap ‘YoaiIp ‘Ao
0} papusIUL IO pauBISap SOOIASP JBYI0 10 SedIAap UonUSIBp ‘sadid ‘sejems ‘sayolp ‘sjouuRYD ‘SINPUOD pue
S$9IN1ESY |EINJEU SPN|OUl UBD SWIBISAS/S3I198,4 "MO}} JO S1e) 8y} 91e|NSaJ PUE [0AU03 0} PUB UOREBIUSWIPSS
pue uoISo1s DAISSa0X3 apN[aaid 0} JJouns Jelemwiols alejn3al pue syepowwodde o} suolsiaoid jeaisyd ayy
sassedwoaus ageuieip ANnn *ueld 109foid sy o Wauoduod JueLioduwl ue afeuiesp Ain Jadoid Supjew
‘ainmpnnsenul Suide ue saeY Z4|L SU) UIYlM SEIIE Auel 1SJUSWIDA0IMLY pue SB[HI0e JSIEA WLOIS

*SWa)sAs jesods|p pue sjueld Juswieal) ‘s101da0IS)u] ‘SUBW YUNJL SBPN|OU] pue ‘9Femas Jo [esodsip Jo
‘JUBIIEAI} ‘UOISSIWISUEL] ‘UOIOB[[0D BU1 JO} PAUBISAP SWA)SAS 40 SSININIIS JO UONONIISUCD pue SuusauiBus
‘uBisap Jof saunypuadxs 9|qiBIie ZYI1 Sapn|oul AI08a1ea sy [Sjusarcidu] pUe SaIIvE J19MaS ABlUeS

“Z41L au1 Jo uswdolenspal
pue juswdojarap ayi 1oddns jey) sluswaroidwl pue sa|Ioe) JA)BM JO UORINIISUOD pue Suusauifus
‘ugisap 1oy sainyipuedxe a|qIBie ZY1L SepNjoul A10881eD SIY sJuslusaoidul) pue sapjioed J91epm

*0} pajiwy] Jou sing sapnjoul SR diand

$1509) 199[04d



WawdopAa( MUou0I7
11113d AlAva

€# ZHlL ‘ueld Bupueul4 p

AT AN S

8

ue jo8foid Aeujwijaid

0000000°0 000000200

00000000 00000500°0 Aunog Biagapy|

000000070 “|ooooosi00 [sbupy Jo Ao
uonedidijued Xej soleg

000000000 _ [oosgszioe

0000000°0 0056959070 Aoy Jsjepn Sexa ] uinos
0000000°0 0000¥0LY°L asi ejiasbury
00000000 000812270 funog Biegs|y
0000000°0 1000000220 aljiasBuny Jo 1o
xe) Apsdoid Jeuosiad|

0000058£°0 00596210

0000000°0 :00G69590°0 Auioyiny Jejepn sexa] yinos
0000000°0 000070L1°L asi ajiiasbury
0000000°0 0002812270 Auno) Biagapy
000058€°0 %08 0000002270 3lliasBupy o A0

uopnedionieq sajey yZ0z - xel Apadoid eay| s zuiL

s A B e A S A B e R BN

‘uopeuaws|dwy
Lnf Suixel Jay1o pue A1) syl apiroad |iim pue
ISea) SIY} Ul PaUIRNO uopewIoul 8y} BuiZynn

S)1 INOYIIM ND20 JOU PINOM JBY} SIaUSq JIWOUOID YIM SUOIY
a|q1sea)} AJeoiwounds s) ZHIL SU} 18yl punoy sey g3da ‘Apms Al

*20IA19S 98P
pue SuloueuY JO POUISW BU1 SE ||om S SUORDIPSLIN BulXe) [eJ0] 8Y3 JO YIEBS 0} BUOZ 3U] JO SIHBUSY 19U BY) pue
B0UBISIXa SY JO Jeak yore Bulinp SU0Z BU} JO anjeA pasieidde painides patewiss ayy moys seded Suimoljol ayt

'saged Buimo|(o)
3Y} U0 punoj aq ued 1004 alenbs Jad anjeA ajgexe) pajedionue ay) pue J00} alenbs sad ssjes pajedionue
3y3 ‘'soFejoo) atenbs Juawdojeasp psiedidnue Y3 JO MIIAIBN0 AJBWIWNS Y "sjuawdo|aasp pauino Ajsnoiaeid
SU1 U0 paskq SAIBIBI PINOM ZH]L 8} dnuaAa) Xe) pajoadxd ay) paujwexs Apnis ay) vafoid auy Jo Aiqises)
J1wouo3ds sy aujuuslep 01 ueld Suioueuy pue 199foid Uy Jo Med se padojaasp sem sisAjeur anjea ajgexe) v

Apnis Ajjigisead 21I0u093

*$SaUPSIqepUl papuoq Aue Inoul [jim ZYIL U3 1BYL AW syl Je pajedionue 10U s1 )|

8JMIRS 1q9d

"8UO0Z JU} UiyIMm JuswsIoul Auadoid |ea)
3U} 4O %0G SINGLIUOD |{IM B|l1IAsBUIY Jo A1 ay) ‘O8ked snoiraid ayl uo pauilno sjuswaroidul ayjand ay3 puny of

Aupoueuld jo poursiy

sisAjeuy Ayjiqisead [eloueuid



AW IWON0IT ]

o
11113d AiAvVa £# ZUIL ‘ueld Bupueulq pue j09foid Aeujwijeid
%iiy ) %00 %698 ) 50004
YBOVIE TS s - [ ZYSesIL__$ WSO - oo
- + - $ + 618'k6'} $ = 618'IYE'L %54 Aponny Jaiepm sEX31 A0S
- $ + - $ + 95L'889'L Y $ = 9TL'98I LY %GIE
129'¢68'¢}H + $ + 900°8182T $ = 139'80¥'9E
99'08L 07 + $ + 998'628'L} $ = 62V'091'29
B o i 5% 5 i

%00 %00 ) %0004
- ] < s S9UBLEIL S %000}
- 3 + - s + - s = s %00 TIHOGINY Jo7EA SEXSL tanos|
- s + - $ + - s = - 3 astMAEBuD|
- $ + - $ + - $ = - $ Faunog BRgey|
- s + - 3 + F906LTIL S SSESICTL,__§ SMAsEuDi 10 Aio|
FEre ALaadOud YN SHEd VIO NOILVHIOLNYa VIO
#ELE %00 %29 %000}
VB0 PIE VS s - s P6TS0268 S | arceiscrr TN
- $ + - s AR s = GIEIIET S RPORNY 191 sEXeL mnos]
- s + - $ STLeES LY § = SEL805F_ § %L OSSR
123€6Sel s + - $ S0 § = ZTs0vsE_§ %SE
£95°082°0F s + $ TEL6SLTT = g
T = D g
Indino «
000°L0V'T9 - 00020089 wviOL
0000005 S 00002 S - S - $ 0000609 $[00002___ ¥ [ 0000e 0502 )
- 1 - $ - s - $ | 5000057 ${000000Z_ $ {08 G202 FIoH
000S0F $ {0000z H ] - $ | 60050 ${o000z  $]595 X3 e T I
0007428 $ [ oo'ooz $ - $ - $ | 0002z $ [ 0000z BEEE] 80T [JUBINE S eI
600082+ $ [ o000z § - $1 - [ oovoezt $ [ o000z $ [ 00¥'S 0802 ]
G0000€E" L $ [ ooaoz § - $ - $'| Goo'0os’) $ [ o000z $ [ 003’9 820 JURINE SN
6007006 $ [ 000z G S| - § [ Gooone 2 §[vo00e $ [ 00570 Ve0Z ) s
TO00r0T $ [ 0000z s - $)_- $ | G00GHOE S| 00002 % | 00ZSh R ey
QU00LE $ [ 00’00z $ - § - $ [ coaais $ [ corooz $ | 0557 0£0Z ]
CO0PEET s [ 0000z s - 3~ 5| 000FECE o A K 8L0T LR
G00680C | 0000z 5] - S| - $ | 00068 T S| w0z § (G
000°000°7 s | o000z $ - 5 - $ | 000000 $ | co'00z s [
Q00ZLST $ [ ooooz $ M $ - $ [ 0002IST $ | coraoz $ LEjay
GG0000C $ [ 0000z §| - S|~ $ [ 006000 S| ovoz_§ (E]
0002 § | 0000e S| - $|_ - § | 000222 Sjoowiz__ 3| TRy
000GFE T ] 00002 $] - - § | 0000RVL Tjoo0e % T
000°cZv'ZL | 00002 S| - - $ | ooosiver s | o000 § Ry
000000'S S| oo00C $ - $| - § | 00070007 § | o000z s ey
000°000'S $ | co’ooz $ - s - $ | 0c0'000'S $ | oo’coz $ (L]
HES B 3 - § [ oo00e0 T $|oc0 8 e
B 3 | - 3 3 s 1y
Auno) Biagapi|
3asbupd jo
Kuony 1Biep sexal ginos
QSTIASEuD]
Aunej bRgapy
SUASEUD) 10 RIS
XV 1 ALu3doud TVNOSHEd
TUoRny J91eM) SEXI L [0S
ST lAsBuDy
Finog Baagapi
SASEUD 10 R1D
XYL AINIJON TVIY|

EIE] _.z:.uow_n_
_.hee.n | ENC] ZD_:«‘EZ_—

ANdNI <

1nduj Juswdojansq - sisAjeuy Aljigisead [elousuly



Jawdopnag JHuicu03 ot

€# ZUIL ‘veld upueuld pue 103(oid Aieupulieid

Lili3d dlAva

et

sy vy Bees  psws ey srurs ssas sy ooy ey pres et pemcc o
w5 e e Ay s e pas
X IO oescavs o ]
WL WSl oo Aunod Bt
asnr
aosr sroves usis rsvs wews wvas s ny105 suorer ey sy a5 oz ssivr nover wosver wens aren s oize rvoer e ooz nisvor - - mog
? "~ = i = 4 - v ? ” ¢ g " H ? d = 7 i “ 4 : d A M 2 [r———]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - a5 et
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - : - - - - fane3 Bt
wous s Tsies ] worivs oress s o swnr oerer swesy s wener sy ot wew wves wroe e wsies o urnz o v - - - - - bt k0
Kevvnns
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - iy 90>
SUPISE MR UTWTN TS CHSTO MESN0N  USwIRl  SSSHEO SWHSGH e NECLTIE GO ool Dotes  Semieo comzis ‘s L owuTH  ers R SEODN SIS KTHFS QOIS e - - - - - Xg SIS
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Ao s secn s
- - < - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0 sty
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SO
o
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - At¥Ie0¥d TIDSES
asses ot nonss s ims o oz s s stozey oy sistsy arsm oty oot wovee st sz soree sssuee soguze vor acuz rirmz v - - - mog
= ? o T H % z " 4 N Y o "t " ! ! 7 . 4 ¥ " 4 < = o : : M . N Aoy Pin sy gpos
- - - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . ast st
- - 2 N : : M : N N : N N N N M N N M N - . N N : < 2 : - : oy e
a5 nony wases wsis s arem o e o sy v swesy wrse oz nezor v o wres orz ssvice gsz ot uee oo vz . . - - - trblnneRD
)
SHVLOSH GRTREON  MOSESS GOUSNISH  ZOSRSIUS mSMCTH GTMION WATYG SO0 SONSWS ORI WSORGL  SKLUSH SRETH MIVGWS  OGTSESOL  MUNIN LSO AW GO NCO0N  CORSS WUSSL el wewss aves - - - - - ALsRd Ry
NOILVAILLYY|
' wva WEIGCL  steust soy  movery wowiy seenss was  rorer  ssenay srasy uowey ey meost sewz sewst mox
P wzes osee o azgoe are osase e uss ass iy i sver caver s sien . - - - - Aoy e s gos
owe sfonz  eiseor  leCwoz  ssen onrL nszs sYNYLEEOL S e oLy owr oo o nie - - - - a3 sivatent
P WISEL el o 6oLk sedvssy wrnry seSry MESTL soeT) e wsRgl  oscses 2uies e cwssie - - - - Aunos Bant
avons LS R S T R+ T wassiT e sewrt oaweTT  miiT £ e I 1 - ) - - - - - st
Svwons
3 23 3 3 3 3 £ 3 23 £33 3 3 I3 3 £33 3
s emSET GwTUT e mRST OTAST LU Sl wodT  ooste ot anot wemes  eswrs  woah  moas gowss  wemTs SuNTS e enes - - - - - oL
sk i s zus aiss socris P 2 J noay uavm. e e it sren iy i st - - - - - fancg S
WESRT NN GCWOT  SUNOT . WEGES 006 koD s Wuss  wEes moses  Gruss Goos | GRS nees ) rozzst . . - - . LTy
rtiviows  coreas
cue 3 o RN 3diws :
113 Zor i3 FSIVE
- mo
: M < ]
- - - 5y ypatin
M : . #nag Bisarnt
- - - s
arjep ey
123 o 573 73 G (3 Gz T 702 ST BE T i3 T G ri:3 (772 7 S I S T3 i T T T I3 73 73 y2za fiia T VI
aviry ' marr vz womes s - . . -
st e sz sme ey segen s alse ) e 0595 (5 wser saver wast sien - -
UCUTL  wEIwl  Geses  OVSSL Seevl ooyl siswrt 3 R -
wovoza isves avin rseoy sese 1sscar sitotr
wrsie owries ossn won wsis notad £

sorsovess  aziaiol

S RODY  ITBT . GNTRT LI

scozir scots eeoais swone seoze scone [ eee K174

S 2 - I o o e " " e} i = w w B B 6z uz 00 ot e

o 0 0z sz asor o oot oo i 0 a0 0z e a0 sz oz o e ot seoz P o oz nw sor nor Ataoua Ty
BNNIATY XYL TV10L

o« 3 " a ® s« ” 3 z 3 3 “ » “ o S " o 3 “ o . v 1 ’ s v ¢ 3 f 2 s tmmes

stofjoaford INUSASY XeL

199YSHIOM 1uswdolana( - sisAjeuy Ajjiqisead jetouruld



AWM NMUIUCIT TT
1i1t3d dlAva £# ZHIL ‘ueld Sujdueuld pue ja3fold Aeujwijaid

O e R B T B P O OSSN S 83

_@m.ﬁw_m; 612'908 $ eel'ess $ ces'sG.  $ 108'/¢L $ zie'ols $ 8yY'se9 $ €61'GJ9 § Jes'ss9  $ EP'9E9 ¢ 68'/L9 $ 006'665 $ Jev'zes $ eov'ses $ _€66'8YS $ €00'ces $ Bl¥'21S $
§12°708'98 " 660TLE S $ 6EL0SE $ vZSOvE $ 509'0¢e $ 9/6'0Z¢ $ [Z9Lle § 1§9coe $ 6eL'€6Z  $ €8s8T $ /89 $ C18'89C $ €86°09C ¢ Z8e'eSC $ loo'ebe  $ ogs'sEr $
985°288'28 1 OLL'bEY $ Tv'iey  §.oo6l'e0F ¢ 8/Tl6S $ ool'see $ 2Ur'vie $ gog'eoe  § ole'zee $ $69'zre $ pll'zee $. gzo'eee  $ sloEle $ osy'voe $ cl9'see $ zoo'l8T  $ cv9'slT $
959'102'9 § G20'120'9 $ GSO'GHB'S  § €6€'G/9'S  § 160'0LS'S $ €09'YE'S  § 68/€6L'S  $ vloTr0'S  $ pbO'Ges' ¢ £S0'ES.Y  $ vIOPLOM  § 80Z08KP § OLIebET & 920'SZTv $ GzO'00L'Y ¢ L09'086'E  $
£0€ $ G6Z $ 982 $ 8lc $ 0l $ 29 $ ¥ $ T $ o $ €€z $ 9z $ 6Lz $ €le $ 10C $ 10z $ g6l $
orb'0z 2474 orv'oz orv'oz ovv'oz ovi'oc ovt'oz ovr'oz 12474 orb'oz 244 ort'oe orp'oz (2414 0¥v'0Z ort'oz
00262 00Z'62 00z'62 ooz'ez 002'6Z 002'62 00z'sz 002'62 00Z'62 002'62 002'6C 002'62 002'62 00262 00Z'62 00z'6z
%0L %02 %0/ %02 %0L %0L %0L %02 %02 %04 %0L %0L %0Z %0L %0L %0L
08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 o8 o8 - 08 08
1502 £502 2502 1502 0502 6102 8107 10T w0z §402 oz £V0Z Zroe Woe 0voz 6£02

20¥'205 $ eL/8y  $ 99S'€ly  $ €ls'6Sy . § Z8S'gvy $ Ose'ssy ¢ @csozy  § - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
0sg'lec  $ 9zi'Sce  § 6958lZ ¢ £0CcCiC $ 220'902 $ ¢e0'00z $ 96LV6L $ - $ - $ - $ . - $ - $ - $ - ¢ - $ %9 sjey xe| sleis
le5'0le $ Lyo'zoe $ 166'pST $ 0.6'lve $ Bse'0be $ ese'eee ¢ Tes'oze $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ %L ajey xel MO
J99'v98'C  $ vOL'ZS/'E $ 618'Zv9'E ¢ 8ll'os's  § ool'cer's  § se9'see’s  § . gsg'acz's $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ |nusAsy ajgexe] fenuuy|
681 $ v8l $ 8l $ €l $ 891 $ €9l $ 95l $ ¥s1 $ 6l $ spl $- b $ 28l $ €€l $ 62l $ sci $ sjey Aleq sbeseay
ov¥'oz ovr'oz ovy'oz ov¥'oz ovb'oz ovr'oz ovy'oZ (] [ 0 0 1} - - - swooy patdnasg Jo #
00Z'62 oo0z'sT 00Z'6C 002'6C 00Z'62 002'62 00Z'62 - - - - - - - - SWooy s|qefieny jo #
xe) KouednooQ |930H
%0L %0L %0L %0L %0L %0QL %04 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 %0 fouednooo
08 08 08 08 08 [¢}:] 08 0 ¢} 0 0 [} 0 ¢} 3} swoeoy [8joH
8602 2802 9802 Le0z 0g0Z 6202 8202 2oz 9z0Z 5202 V202 deaj anuaASYy
143 £l (42 L 9 g 14 £ 14 3 0

ZPAERUI PO

ik uwwu..vuﬁfuw.m«wpm sl

R
foEia

Ry
s
e

ey
«;%\Hw% A

T
2 R

e T
s e
e

b

e

Sk

xe] AouednoaoQ |910H - sishjeuy Aljiqisead |elousuidy



JUAdYRAQ JMUOUGIT [41
11113d diAva £# ZHIL ‘ueld Sutoueuld pue j93foid Aeujwyiaid

[WIOLT SWGssui | irress  Sos%me  Dwels  SIONey  MOTS  BWTSS 0WEKS  SEPZOE | OIS 6MIN0S  OXSSY  GOVMY  WESSY  TSVOW  Wety  sGrHY  sey  GSIT OOUGRL syt WOVEE  ISCRT  QsUSeE oSSt ©OTIT  ISNOT eewl ur [ w
O O FEX61 GPOS [ D - 3 - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - 5 - s - [ s - s - s - s - s - s - s RO SSRA STX0L UG0S
asiossux | o - s - $ - s - s - $ - s - s - 3 - s - s - s - s - $ - s - s - $ - s - s - s - s - s - $ - s - s - 5 - s - s - 5 - s - H g5t spstupi
Ao Brmbilo $- s s 5= $ - 5~ $ - 5 - s - s - 3 - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - s - $ - s - s - 5 - s - s - 5 - s - $ Karog Biagady
owshoiohojsiczeyy  [uzess § soves § uwels s elos & kot § wees § omws S Swwas 8 0Zas S 6005 S LS 8 G0Ny S KEESSY § VSN S WGy B esUSlP S oUWy § GSSIGE S OROUR 3 mewse § ouc§ sTmc § Oeose § reoem § DEm § iz o weet 3 o 3 oes S a H SwsBuey 1o KD
£33 T T TeoT i3 T L2 T 13 T T o 73 T THE T T T T T 3 T a3 T o g2 T T o a2
B S O ——
Vo s

T TV awanE]

sty 1o Ao

Ao Brogony
OSSO (AR

DRI MR SETVL TS

o o o
st 10k azy' : 1 ; g ; s : ' 1 : : 1 J 1 ¢ g 2 - ; 1 soe et b

HLMOND 3NTVA T1avXVL
V3NN

SIE00ST  LITROYY  IeUNIES  SLCSNS 0500y STSEOY  L6SURLE  ISESSSE  SEETECE VRUYOET . SLUGE9T  LCNOOST  S69'S0CZ sovoss  zoszoe . elg'esy SLETIE 6AIST  KEOYL [ Awouny sz somg wos
S90089 1199095 _mq:n.o SE6N0's 0SQUITY  SSTSEOV  L6SUBLT  LSOOSST  EWLECE YRUNET  GLVGEST  ICL00ST  96HHTT SOrose  ZoSZom ¢ fISESS S4EEI  GIIST  VEOWLL st omstuny
z SLTEHS v 0SCUUTY  WSCSOY (699U [SUUSE  eevrect YRUYOST  GLESIT  [CLO0ST  96W0TT SOYOS6 TR TISESS oLEE  GIST KON fs00 20901
Teoers  iisews  lmeits  Mees iy mime 0STUTY  SSTROY  eglel't  J4W9sS  ReeTeet YOUN0ET  GLLGEOT  IELO0ST  SEVROET  WZEINT LSZOLE  GOYOSE  Z0EZ08 EISESO sicere  eslist  veobZL omsBunt 10 A0
ININHONI VA TIEVRYL,
EYSEO0L  SENONS  SITESYE  GCUCRNS  GrE9ISS fwmer wmuess weiws  swems  mes - siyir QoTI  erzesT LU SRS HENSY WSS SUYNUS  Sorocsy  LSTOLY  GISTYY  OYELSY  SSTICY  S6resLy [ fsvouany s sixo rog
EZVSIO0L  STNTRLE  G9TEGYE L 1908 L COCIVL  ROSETL  WSSWL  GESEEN WYY B U969 SO0EZLY  WISOSSS  WESYSES 6ORVANS  S9L9ESY  LGTALY  ICESYY  OYOLLGY  GSTOIEY VY Q51 opesbiny
B0l SEUEHS  SSEESYE 902281 FCLNL  GOTGEL  QHORNL  GEOECYS QIS SPLESTD LSUYSES  SITLLS  MEWSS  WGVELS 699730 93LBE6Y  LIETELY  OISECOY €STUEY  EYOTY funos tragept
QYSTO0L  SEVENS  S58ESYs 1902L6°L Z0EUWL  VOVGTL  WIRWL . BLUEEP uETers  GPLESTO  0S'MID9 SLYERS  SOOZLS  MEUSSS  SESPEED €OFVIUS  9ILUEY  LSTELY  BICESTY TSTIEY  SEYESTE oot 10 A0 .
ATV,
yarvery vy s9rrELy oy sapp w0 grog
PrriLy POVIELY ov'vELy a5 opsbuni
A rovEyy POVVERY  POVELY  YONRELY Anos Biogopy
roryery bRy VIV berrely  yeveely ot 1040
WaAISVE
swioL ez sz 2502 1802 D502 ez woz oz oz svoz oz teoz osoz sz0z AV IONTATY
o & [ = = '3 13 2 k3 iz az ¢ B

ooy 24 IN0DSI
HMO¥D WA 5V T1EVXVL

NOLLYdISLLYYd 3SOdOdd NO a3sve IALLNIONI ‘SINNIATY XYL ANV SIN'WA ALYTJONd n_mwon_omm .._0 LOVdINI TVHINTD 4O JLVAILLSI

anuarsy ZuiL pajedionuy - sisAleuy Ajigisead |eioueuld



uawdopasg Juouag
11L13d diAva

€T
[
€# Zul1 ‘ueld Supueuly pue Jo3foid Areujw)iaid

R B O T R R R T T P T T

oreescs wemee - swieve

L TWETIBLY  SE0VESY  sSLECS o OS3ILT  YOMINS  TISTIOS  LACWEY  CEBNYY OSSSICR  CLUSOMT  ORULAST  WVIUT  BSL9set tars ogiL g5 e
§96905 5 z6v66 Y08 S 6NEE S ie8Ze LERI S T § 5U L9978 S LbYLS S €990 S ESCOS S L00Gr S GWOC § LveSE S s W § s s 1 s WO BITMA 50191 18708
e § z$ leTien § Seovews § arceirs § Hlovy § oawans § Siedecs § § mwems QSSVI S SN S Dwivey § Gvee § Leese 3 ot 8 Gye § akc  § o s ast smstonl
TWSior 8 loosess 3 serdedt & WELTL § WYV § BILLES) ¢ LLZL § LS0MTL § TEESOTE § UL pupsmis  LOUSTO) § CORES S MELSOS § MEMEDL § CHONGS S SOUY § 66T § OB S I56 $ Anog 6509901
99Y0FT § DIOOBLT §  YOLELSE § S0BTIN'T § TITTLOC § CLISVET § ISEYEYT § RIIYT § GIWEVET § OGYOSCT § wesme  YGUGC0Z § 6VOrO’l § LOUSTL § 90W'EKZY § SOSMZTL S 9e6T  § 25C S &850 S Sw s omsTontj0 A
ToE T 3 B0T 3 3 VT w0T B3 23 C3 3 Co3 (=3 sor woT g For 3 =3 oL T 3 Beot T e TEE ST £

szl Ty s e Iy B W T ey =

R P N i)

3 N E R S T SR LA T Ee BA A P Y L i b TV e R I AL YA

GWSBOIORO ST SIS ¥y SNSRIy WZISE SIS TS ST BETSE  S9m WMWE  WOWe  SIONC OWWE  ZWSR molw mee Qo over e oS eoor  seer e o
(P R S 3

R T TR s T A T B T ¢ 3~ Y SR T R

AL A AT TS

Apnogfieasd)  (25'C6S'EL  LECUSL MEESEL 0Z1'Es9. 82U Zee'Es9 £0EVE9.
SISBDIORD  COSORLOr  SINIIZT  DSESOZT - WLNLT  0OCINT  BAUBIOT  9665SED G0STOEL

L) ISGs  v0ss  OISROS  SSVINS SIS GNISIS  STLOIS oW LS
VDR WSTRLL BEMUACL DLLOEYE  SOMLYSL  9SIEESt  GETUNSL  MLLTOSE  ZYesy

T B T e LR A A L e R e N R S A A R A S T A S T T T T

reesy gy 6Z8ley

seTIE UG s o [ [ a unod Bsaqapt
WenTs oSl sseTL g

T R A B T XA i A T T S T I T P 243

Ay s L s

SeTSoL azzo 9265

»ete H09GR e w908 os'aL 19705 896y £ 2e8sT SHEYE oy seiem sexe nos
asi ogrsbuey SE0TZ  CIEYIZ  ses i 16Z800Z OU9USEL  ONYELL  BIEEELL SELLIVL  OIYSIOL  LSYVCO'l  ZIOZLL  ¥eYeRL asi sppstant
Ramoo BiagaDl  904'5LE2E t JOLLTY 266X 810660 UG 91596 PIOSPE 155088 ruEn 00L'EES 4198 X fanag Bagapy
SISBOIRAD  ZLLESLT  GWILTL  SWVEEL  ZR0m SIYs60s SET0L  1GlMS  Lws 99v'i5e Ut wevies v omAsBuD! 10 A0

NIRRTY A L o
QS SpBuny
Ao Bragapy
oEASRd 10 4t
HLMOYD INTVA J18VXYL
VINIAR
$95°006°9 BOOVZES | SITBNOY 0SO0IZY  BSTSUWY  L6SLOLE 50959 9DNTECE SLVEEST  ITU00ST  96990CT SsTORLL YIO09TY  ISETONL  ONOSE  Z0870R  GISees ZWMIG  wSTIE  GRLI vEOWL wogny s a1 gnos
9960069 SRVZES T SIEGNS 0S00IZY 95Ty IGSISLT  LSWNSST  SOWTeET SLAEEIT  IEI0OST VLT £6Z09LL yiO0zL covess oezov  @iSese @ uLERE eI vORL 031 nvsn
S96006S  bLFROUS  LGRISS  SLCEMS oS00ZY  WTSWY  LETLLE  ISTE  vewTEsT SIVEEST  IEI00ST  96990UL €6209L'C YOOST oS cLor  Tisess 2 scees  ewlsz  yeowelL  funos Bseqomy
$96006% LTV MPNES  SLCGNOS  SREMELY  SONTYY  OG00/ZY  SSCSIOY  LSGUSLT  LSREST  RROTEET SLVERST  ISKOOVZ  96990CT c8z0aL’s oSz Sross  zoter SRS AEWIS  GICERT  RLNST SO owsupt 0 40
ANZWEAONI VYA 31EVVL
62’500 Z0eL  GOVETL SOURTLS.  YIEHTS  UESHECS CWYUS  SIL9TEY  LIGTELY  YUSTEYT eSZCY  96KESTY Koy o oL gnos
62r’5E00s. LWL TRETL SETLF  MEITS UESIELE 6907805 DO/9SEY  L6TELY  SLTESTY SSEHTY  SSYSSTY q51 Bty
625500 ELML  WRHTL SI0ELLS  yitEeTs  UESYETS SCS  69U'N09  SILIWEY  LISTGLY  SLCESHY £STCY  GBYESZY farog Bragoty
625008 WEHYL  eReTL S0CZLS  WIT9STS  WISWEE'S  SIYISTS  690YR0S  S9L'9CEY  LET6LY  9LTTSYY THTY  SoresTy oiprsBont jo R0
OVATIENYL
rorvery rorvesy [ wouny s sexoL wnos
bisiad oSt oansbuty
z\vn— r ¥ pOrIELY [ faunag Bacaty
LIRS R Y vn: REE T I Ly ey FOrVELY ogasbuby Jo A
WA asvg
swioL e 50z 0z 150z 0502 ovor avor oz anz sroz oz oz Tz oz orz ecor exoz zeoz veoz os0z ozoz s20z oz 9207 szoz e UYIABONIATY
o & ”2 r'3 o sz "7 w2 z 13 oz o [ r 9 s s s ¢ i s v wesrs T b WA 35vE XY
0598240
355 AROTY ME STXOL WO
gsi epstun
Ao wiegey
9D A
%009 3V IN1025K
£21%3 HLMOYD YY3A 358 S18VXVL

NOLLVdIDLLYYd G3S0d0¥d NO GISvE AALLNIONI ‘SINNIATYH XV.L ANV SANTYA ALYILOYUd GISO0Ud 40 LOVdWE TYNANIO 40 ALYWLLST

palelsusn anuaAay JIv - SisAjeuy AljIqisead [erousuld



JUAAOASG MUOUOIT . BT
11113d aiAva

£# ZH1L ‘ueld Suoueuld pue 193foid Areupuyioid

R Al R D RS OGN R

S B L D S Sy OO R A T e

628'96L°TYS
EEV'E66'TS
Auoyiny
1318\ SBX2) YInos | Ajtoyany Jatem sexa) Yinos m
asl 3|AsSury m ast a|iassun m
; vse'vT0‘Led
£6b°ST8'655
g gt Awuno) 2reqep m
Awned Si3qa m 628'96L'Tv$ 30
' .
SEV'EB6'T:
$ aassuny Jo Mo m BEB'LEV'TLS
s|sSup Jo Ao m
It s 1auag 18N paleIauadn saxel [e10L
sejes
xeJ AouednoaQ 1ojoH
Apadoid jeay

SIIASBUIY 16 KD
suojaipsunp Gupe]

802 029" 171§ SpET89L1LS £50°S0E €513 iej0L
€EV €66 1S 0% EEV'E66'LS RIGUINY BB SEXS L UTnos
628'96L2v$ 0$ 628'9622v$ Qs aliinsbugy
PS6'Y10'2€$ 0$ ¥56'7L0'LES funog Biagapy
£67'G18'65$ SPE'Z8Y'LLS 8EB'J6V'LLS ajusbuny jo Ao
:o_«mm_u_tﬁn— pajelauan
ousg JoN 2Ll soxel [e10) suopapsunr Bumxey

Aewwng snu2asy

Aewwng - sisAjeuy Altjigisesd |eioueuld



Juawdoianag Juwiou0Ig ST
11113d AdIAVG

*ue|d uoueuy pue y9afoid s,8u07 ay3 03 [eAcidde [euly AR
10 {U1BWIOP JUBUIWS JO 1oM0od Y] as10IaXe

's99} Jo saxe) asodwi

‘spuog anss|

:01 pazioyne
80 10U ||BYS pIeog 8y} "9po WSWUIBA0Y 2207 ‘0SE Ja1deys
Jopun Ayjedidiunw & Jo siamod Sulpnjou) ‘opo) xel sexs] sy
30 TT€ J91deys £q 1 01 pajuess siemod || aAey (|eysS pieog 9yl

151019241 JO pAEOg JO SAIINQ PUB SISMOJ

{850z ‘T tequialdes Aq psjosiioo
20 0} JUSWISIOUI XE) S 489K [EUY BUYL UNM) $GOZ ‘TE Joquiasag
UC pus 0} PS|NPSYIS S| PUB ULISY 183k OF & Sey ZY|L duL

1189\ Ul £4 ZHIL 0 yiSuay

SUOIIIPUCY pUE SulIe)



J0AUAAAIG NWOU0IT
1ili3d alAva

9T
€4# ZH1L ‘ueld Suloueuld pue 103foid Aleujwyjeid

G R A TR S DA NS AN

ARSI

ovL'ee $ 871 °T SIHOV ‘€ 107°T 40079 ‘0O-8-Uva 43I 111 V1’1 JLTSHINIHYL SOLNVS 30 SOZvdd LT

- $ 920°0 STHOV (AINO 04N HO4) (MOY) ‘€T-2T 1d L0122 X007 ‘03 18 L) 920°0 NOILVIHOdSNYHL 40 Id30 SvX3L §6¢SY

" $ 968°€ SFHOV (AINO OANIHO4) (MOY) ‘€T-TT 1d ‘9 1d ‘€ 1d 101 22 XD019 ‘03 13 L) 968°¢ NOILVIHOdSNYHL 40 1430 SyX3L 6915
AN $ £€°0V SIHOV VT ‘TT 1d 1012210019 ‘00 18 L)Y g0y OTHHINWIVYd T9G¢y
¥92°669 $ 6£25°€ SOV ‘(NNISLHOINM) ‘T LOT (1¥1d34 QIANTWY) T XHYd GNI OONIY 6/¢SC OTIALITVLIASOH WYTONV V11vd 8¢cCly
085°98¢‘T $ Tr0L'S SFHOV ‘(NUVd AY £ 8 dOLS ANO ££ AMH) ‘2 107 (Lv1d3¥ GIANTWY) T Muvd ONI OONIGY Tv0L'S ALTIWHSIV Leciy
0567 $ 91821 SIHOY ‘T 1d ‘T 1d 10722 X009 ‘0D 13 L) 918°Ct OTTINIWLISIANI ITIASONDI AISSINNIH SEELe
0cL'tee $ 659'G SFHIV ‘Z 10T ‘INOD SHAINNH 669°G ALTITIUASOND NYILSIM 6v60¢
0152 $ £€19°9 $34OV 9 Ld 40 SOV £79'9 101 ‘T2 %2019 ‘0D 18 L) €v9'9 ANVdIWOO Hidvar crece
02s‘e $ 662°6 STHOV ‘TT 1d LO1‘2TZXD078 ‘03 19 L) 662°6 JT1S31143d04d 3HOIS SYX3l %3] 444
0ze's $ T0'CZ STHOV ‘9 S 1d L0122 N0079 ‘03 18 L) 10°CC ISNdLy®i V1161
0r6'T $ 9€'7 SFHIV ‘€T-2T 1d L0122 N0079 ‘0319 L) o1 4 OT1S31143d04d FHOLS NYXAL STOLT

- $ (INV1d HINOS Y3LYM 3LSYM) (Ld WX T) ‘5 Ld LOT ‘0EX0018 ‘0D 178 L) S ITTIASOND O ALID Y6191
072’9291 $ 0£5°8Z STHOV ‘€T-CT Ld L0122 10019 ‘02 18 L) €5°8¢ O71831143d04d FHOLS NvX3aL TV8eT
0/£°9 $ 66°T SOV (029X 0¥T OO 3/S) ‘9 Ld 101 ‘2200178 ‘03 18 L) 66T ONINVAITINS B HLIWS 06T¢1
00TTT $

T9E'6C SIUOY ¥ € Ld L0122 N0014 ‘00 17 L)

192°6C

WINYd 1SIM

12901

dIHSHINMO ALH3dOUd INFHHND - ¥V XIANIddY



AGENDA ITEM #4



City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer
DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBJECT: Consider Approving Application Affidavit TWDB-0201, Application Filing
and Authorized Representative Resolution TWDB-0201A, and Application
Resolution — Certificate of Secretary TWDB-0201B for the 2024-2025
Economically Distressed Areas Program (EDAP) for Funding by the Texas
Water Development Board (TWDB) for the City of Kingsville Proposed
Wastewater Utilities Near Sage Rd — Abridged Application No. 16037

Summary:
On November 7, 2024, the City of Kingsville held its Pre-Application Meeting with the

Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to review full application requirements for the
City of Kingsville Proposed Wastewater Utilities Near Sage Rd project under Abridged
Application No. 16037, as part of the 2024-2025 Economically Distressed Areas Program
(EDAP). The full application is due on December 20, 2024. As part of the submission,
the following documents require approval by the City Commission:

'« TWDB 0201 — Application Affidavit
o TWDB 0201A — Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution
e TWDB 0201B — Application Resolution — Certificate of Secretary

Background:
On October 21, 2024, the City of Kingsville received an invitation to apply for the 2024-

2025 EDAP funding. This project is designed to provide first-time wastewater services to
21 homes along Sage Road, between Armstrong (FM 1898) and Young Drive, built
before 2005. As part of the project, existing septic tanks will be demolished, and
residents along the route will have the option to connect to the new wastewater system

at their own expense.




City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

The project’s estimated cost is $5,351,251. Based on preliminary calculations, the
TWDB has determined that the City is eligible for 50% grant funding, with the
remainder financed through a 3.6% interest loan over 20 years. The loan’s annual
repayment is estimated at $96,300. The Intent to Apply is due November 20, 2024, and
the full application is due December 20, 2024.

Financial Impact: _
Fund 51 — Utility Fund will be used to repay the 3.6% interest, 20-year loan with a
maximum repayment amount of $96,300 per year.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the following documents:
1. TWDB 0201 — Application Affidavit
2. TWDB 0201A — Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution
3. TWDB 0201B — Application Resolution — Certificate of Secretary

Attachments:

TWDB 0201 — Application Affidavit

TWDB 0201A - Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution
TWDB 0201B ~ Application Resolution — Certificate of Secretary




TWDB-0201
Rev 2/23

Application Affidavit

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
countyor  Kleberg
AppLicanTt  City Of Kingsville §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day
personally appeared Rutilio P. Mora Jr., P.E.

City of Kingsville

as the Authorized Representative of the

, who being by me duly sworn, upon oath says that:

1. The decision by the Clty (authority, city, county,

corporation, district) to request financial assistance from the Texas Water Development Board ("TWDB") was

made in a public meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Government Code, §551.001, et seq,)

and after providing such notice as required by such Act as is applicable to the Clty (authority,

city, county, corporation, district).

2. The information submitted in the application is true and correct according to my best knowledge and

belief.
City

3. The (authority, city, county, corporation, district) has

no litigation or other proceedings pending or threatened against it that would materially adversely affect its

financial condition or ability to issue debt.

4, The Clty (authority, city, county, corporation, district) has no

pending, threatened, or outstanding judgments, orders, fines, penalties, taxes, assessment or other enforcement or
compliance issue of any kind or nature by the Environmental Protection Agency, Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality, Texas Comptroller, Texas Secretary of State, or any other federal, state or local government,

except for the following (if no such outstanding compliance issues, write in "none"):

None

5. The Clty (authority, city, county, corporation, district)

warrants compliance with the representations made in the application in the event that the TWDB provides the

financial assistance.

6. The Clty (authority, city, county, corporation, district)

is or will become in compliance with all of its material contracts.




7. The Clty (authority, city, county, corporation, district) will

comply with all applicable federal laws, rules, and regulations as well as the laws of this state and the rules and

regulations of the TWDB.

Official Representative

Title:

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, by

on this day of » 20

(NOTARY’S SEAL)

Notary Public, State of Texas




TWDB-0201A
Rev 11/16

Application Filing and Authorized Representative Resolution

A RESOLUTION by the City Commission of the
City of Kingsville requesting financial assistance from the Texas Water

Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application for assistance; and making certain findings in

connection therewith.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Clty Commission OF
e City of Kingsville

SECTION 1: That an application is hereby approved and authorized to be filed with the Texas Water

Development Board seeking financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $5’351 251 to provide
for the costs of City Of Kingsville Proposed Wastewater Utilities Near Sage Rd

SECTION 2: That Rutilio P. Mora Jr., P.E., CFM be and is hereby

designated the authorized representative of the CIty Of Kingsville for purposes

of furnishing such information and executing such documents as may be required in connection with the preparation

and filing of such application for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION 3: That the following firms and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist

in the preparation and submission of such application and appear on behalf of and represent the
City Of Kingsville before any hearing held by the Texas Water

Development Board on such application, to wit:

Donald Gonzales
Senior Managing Director, Estrada Hinojosa

Financial Advisor:

Rutilio P. Mora Jr., P.E. CFM
City Engineer

Engineer:

Daniel Martinez
Managing Shareholder, Winstead PC

Bond Counsel:

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the day of , 20

ATTEST: By:

(Seal)




TWDB-0201B

Rev 11/16
Application Resolution - Certificate of Secretary
THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF Kleberg
APPLICANT City of Kingsville, Texas
1, the undersigned, Secretary of the City of Kingsville Texas,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY as follows:
1. That on the day of ,2024  a regular/special meeting of the
City Commission of the City of Kingsville - was held; the duly constituted members of the
City Commission of the City of Kingsville being as follows: ‘
Mayor Sam Fugate and Commissioners Hector Hinojosa, Edna Lopez, Norma Alvarez, and Leo Alarcon
all of whom were present at the meeting, except the following:
Among other business considered at the meeting, the attached resolution entitled:
*A RESOLUTION by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville requesting

financial participation from the Texas Water Development Board; authorizing the filing of an application
for financial participation; and making certain findings in connection therewith."

was introduced and submitted to the City Commission of the City of Kingsville  for passage and adoption. After

presentation and consideration of the resolution, and upon a motion made by and
seconded by , the resolution was passed and adopted by the

City Commission of the City of Kingsville by the following vote:

voted "For" voted "Against" abstained

all as shown in the official minutes of the City Commission of the City of Kingsville for this meeting.

2. That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the original on file in the official records
of the City Commission of the City of Kingsville ; the qualified and acting members of the City COmmission of the City of Kingsville )
the date of this meeting are those persons shown above and, according to the records of my office, advance notice of
the time, place, and purpose of meeting was given to each member of the City Commission of the City of Kingsville ; and that the
meeting, and the deliberations of the public business described above, was open to the public and written notice of
the meeting, including the subject of the resolution described above, was posted and given in advance of the meeting
in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. ‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name and affixed the seal of
the , this the day of , 20

Secretary
(SEAL)




AGENDA ITEM #5



City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBJECT:  Consider Approving Change Order No. 1 (CO-1) for Bid No. 24-04 for the
General Land Office (GLO) Community Development Block Grant Mitigation
(CDBG-MIT) Contract No. 22-082-016-D218 Project 6 — 10t Street Sanitary
Sewer Improvements Project

Purpose:

Consider approving General Land Office (GLO) Change Order No. 1 (CO-1) for Project 6,
which addresses adjustments in contract cost and duration due to an increase in pipe
diameter and necessary repairs for the 10th Street Sanitary Sewer Improvements Project.
The existing pipe diameter is 18", not 12" as originally specified, and is suitable for Cast-in
Place Pipe (CIPP) rehabilitation. CO-1 will add an estimated 85 calendar days to the contract

time.

Summary:

GLO Change Order No. 1 — Contract Price
Item | Description Unit | Quantity | Unit Cost Total ,
A4 CIPP Lining Existing 12" |LF | -5,478 $69.00 (377,982.00)
Dia. Sanitary Sewer Line
CO1-1 | 18" Dia. Point Repair EA |1 $25,000.00 | $25,000.00
CO1-2 | CCTV Heavy Cleaning of | LF | 5,478 $6.00 $32,868
Sanitary Sewer Line
CO1-3 | CIPP Lining Existing 10” |LF | 3,139 $125.00 $392,375.00
Dia. Sanitary Sewer Line |- '
GLO Change Order No. 1 Total $72,261.00
GLO Change Order No. 1 — Contract Time
Description . Calendar Days
Additional Contract Time 85

8.

CIT

Y
Kﬁi

%@%1»



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Revised Contract Price and Time $908,756.00 and 265 Calendar Days

CO1-1 will increase the cost by 8.64% within the 25% allowed by the contract.

There will be a second change order that will need to be approved at a later day but will
require environmental clearance and use a different method of rehabilitation.

Background: |
Bid 24-04, Project 6 sealed bids were received on February 20, 2024, from 3 bidders.

Bidder one (1) is Insituform Technologies LLC, from Chesterfield, Missouri. Bidder two (2)
is Texas Pride Utilities LLC, from Houston, Texas. Bidder three (3) is PM Construction &
Rehab. LLC, from Pasadena, Texas. Base Bid ranged from $425,014.00 to $592,961.00,
Alternate Bid No. 1 ranged from $289,800.00 to $386,156.00, and Total Bid Amounts
ranged from $714,814.00 to 962,621.00. The lowest bidder was Texas Pride Utilities LLC
for $714,814.00, but they are non-responsive. We recommend awarding the project to PM
Construction & Rehab LLC in the amount of $836,495.00. :

Financial Impact:
Project 6 Change Order No. 1 will be funded by Fund 113 Citywide Wastewater Collection

System Improvements in the amount of $72,261.00.

Recommendation: ‘
Staff recommendations approving Change Order No. 1 for CDBG-MIT GLO Contract No. 22-

082-016-D218 — Project 6 -10t Street. -Sanitary Sewer Improvements for an additional cost
of $72,261 and additional contract time of 85 calendar days.

Attachments:
GLO Change Order No. 1
ICE Project 6 — CO 1 Recommendation Letter

CITY R ST
sville
%%%mﬁ%




November 1, 2024

Rutilio “Rudy” Mora, P.E., CFM
City Engineer

City of Kingsville

400 W. King Ave.

Kingsville, TX 78363

Re: CDBG-MIT GLO Contract No. 22-082-016-D218 Project 6, (City of Kingsville Bid No.
24-04) — ICE CO 1 recommendation

Dear Mr. Mora,

This memorandum is in reference to ICE’s recommendation to PM Construction & Rehab’s request
for Change Order 1, in the amount of $72,261.00. The Change Order is to increase 3,139 linear feet
of cast-in-place piping sizes from 12” diam. to 18” diam., heavy cleaning for CCTV inspection of
the sanitary sewer lines, and 18” diam. point repair discovered during CCTV inspection.

ICE has reviewed the video footage from inspection and can confirm that the sewer line for a
segment of the line is 18” diam., not 12” diam. as stated on the plans. Additionally, in the 18” diam.
section of pipe, there is a previous point repair that has 15 diam. pipe, instead of 18" diam. This
should be replaced to the proper size prior to cast-in-place pipe installation.

This will increase the original contract amount of $836,495.00 by approximately 8.64%, which
falls within the 25% allowance per the GLO contract. The adjusted contract amount with this
change order will be $908,756.00. The difference in cost-per-unit from 12” diam. CIPP to 18”
diam. CIPP is an 81% increase. It is our experience that the cost of such materials is a volatile
market and this increase is justifiable and within practical reason. Additionally, the condition of the
lines holding excessive amounts of debris was unforeseen prior to the televised inspection. As
cleaning of these lines prior to inspection is necessary, it is also reasonable for the additional costs
to incur.

Therefore, it is ICE’s recommendation to approve Change Order 1. The City of Kingsville has the
final decision to approve/not approve change orders.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (361) 826-5805 or
charlie@icengineers.net

Sincerely,

= T R ettt
Juan Carlos “Charlie” Cardenas, P.E.
Senior Engineer

261 Saratoga Blvd e Corpus Christi, TX 78417 « Ph361.826.5805 * Fax 361.826.5806 ¢ TBPE FIRM #F10837



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & REVITALIZATION
The Texas General Land Office
Consiruction Change Order Request

NOTE: Texas Local Government Code Sec. 262,031 "CHANGES IN PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS' regulations apply. Generally, a cumulative
Increase In the contract price in excess of 25% or a cumulative decrease In excess of 18% are disallowed.

Subreclpleml City of Kingsville GLO Contract Number: {22-082-016-D218 I Date:l11/1/2024

Engineer Name Address & Phone Subrecipient Name, Address, & Phone Number: Contractor Name, Address & Phone Number:
International Consutting Engineers City of Kingsville - PM Construction & Rehab, LLC
261 Saratoga Blvd. 400.W, King Ave. 131 North Richey Street
Corpus Christi, TX 78417 Kingsville, TX 78363 Pasadena, TX 77506
361-826-5805 361-595-8040 832-252-4800

Project #:] 6 |Bid Package #: | 1 |change Order #: | 1 {
Contract Origination Date 5/28/2024 ! Project Description: | Sewer line rehabilitation i

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the contract plans and specifications.
Description of Changes: Quantities, Units, Unit Prices, Change in Completion | Decrease in Contract Price | Increase in Contract

ltem No. Schedule etc. Price
A4 CIPP Lining Existing 12" Diam. Sanitary Sewer Line (C-1-P), $69.00/LF, -5,478 377,982
LF
18" Diam. Point Repair, $25,000/EA, +1 EA 25,000
CO 11
co 12 CCTV Heavy Cleaning of Sanitary Sewer Lines, $6.00/LF, +5,478 LF 32,868
0 1:3 CIPP Lining Existing 18" Diam. Sanitary Sewer Line, $125.00/LF, +3,139 LF 392,375.00

See sheet 2 to add additional entries

Change In Constryction Contract Price Change in Contract Time (Calendar Days)
Original Contract Price; |836,495.00 Original Contract Time in Days:{ 180
Cumutative Previous|0.00 ’ ' Net Change from Previous Change Order(s) in Days|0
Change Order(s) Total:
Contract Price Prior to 836,495.00 Contract Time Prior to this Change Order in Days 180
this Change Order:
Net Increase/Decrease 72,261 Net Increase/Decrease of this Change Order in Days: 85
of this Change Order:

Effective June 2020 Page1 0of 3



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & REVITALIZATION
The Texas General Land Office
Construction Change Order Request

Contract Price with All 908,756.00 Contract Time with All Approved Change Orders inj265
Approved Change Days:
Orders:
Cumulative Percent|8.64% 41/31/2025
Change in Contract Subreciplent Contract End Date:
Price (+/-)
Construction Contract}6/17/2024 3/9/2025
Start Date: Construction Contract End Date:

Reimbursements of costs included in this change order are subject to review by GLO-CDR,

*This document may be executed prior to submission for GLO-CDR review, but all parties Invoived wlill be held responsible If the change

order or amendment warranted as a resuit of this change order is not in compliance with CDBG or HUD Requiremements

A - AZ 5
Subrecipient Signature Engineer Signature i Corﬁw Signature
TN CALES CARPENAS ) - -
SEwon 23 GINEER Linda Sifuentes, Project Manager
Subrecipient Nam and Title (Printed) Engineer Name and Title (Printed) Contractor Name and Title (Printed}
Subrecipient Signature Engineer Signature Contractor Signature
Justification for Change Order
1. Wil this change order increase or decrease the number of beneficlaries? 3 increase  [Decrease No Change
If there is a change, how many beneficiaries will be affected Total l:_______—____—_:l M
2. Effect of this change on the scope of work: Increase  [Decrease No Change
3. Effect on operation and maintenance costs: [ increase  [Decrease No Change
4, Are all prices in the change order dependent upon unit prices found in the original bid? 1 ves E nNo

If "no", explain:

New contract items are added due to unforeseen items discovered during pre-installation televised inspection.

5. Has the change created new circumstances or environmental conditions which may affect O Yes L No
the project's impact, such as concealed or unexpected conditions discovered during actual
construction?

If "ves®, is an environmental assessment required?

Effective June 2020 Page 2 of 3




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & REVITALIZATION
The Texas General Land Office
Construction Change Order Request

6. Is the Texas Council on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) clearance still valid (If applicable)? Yes
7. 1s the CCN permit still valid? (sewer projects only) Yes
8. Are the disability access requirements/approval still valid (if applicable)? Yes
9. Are other Disaster Recovery contractural special condition clearances still valid? Yes

if "no®, explain:

™M MMM

No
No
No
No

Disclaimer: The Texas General Land Office has made every effort to ensure the information contained on this form Is accurate and in compliance with the most up-to-
date CDBG-DR and/for CDBG-MIT federal rules and regulations, os applicable. it should be noted that the Texas General Land Office assumes no liability or responsibility
for any error or omission on this form that may result from the interim period between the publication of amended and/or revised federal rules and regulations and the

Texas General Land Office’s standord review and update schedule.

Effective June 2020

Page 3 of 3



AGENDA ITEM #6



| &’5{0\ Pwasd

City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBIJECT:  Consider Awarding Project and Construction Contract for Bid No. 25-05 for
23-24 City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements —
Phase 3

Purpose:
We seek approval to award the project and the construction contract for Bid No. 25-05.

Summary:

Bid No. 25-05 was advertised on October 10 and October 17, 2024, in the local newspaper
and on the City’s website. The bids were received by the deadline of 2:00 p.m. on November
5, 2024, from two bidders:

1. Donald Hubert Construction Co. (Kingsville, Texas)
2. RXDX (Sinton, Texas)

Base bids ranged from $514,417.24 to $535,930.00, with alternate bids as follows:

« Alternate Bid No. 1: $250,866.93 to $253,660.00
» Alternate Bid No. 2: $573,700.00 to $94,735.00

« Alternate Bid No. 3: $599,329.05 to $620,040.00
» Alternate Bid No. 4: $135,620.00 to $159,605.00

The total bids, including all alternates, ranged from $2,118,950.00 to $2,149,628.18, with
only a 1.4% variance between them.

Per Local Government Code Chapter 271, if a local bidder's price is within 5% of the lowest
bid from an out-of-town bidder, the contract may be awarded to the local bidder or the
lowest bidder, or all bids may be rejected. We recommend awarding the base bid, Alternate
Bids 1, 2 and 4, to the local contractor, Donald Hubert Construction Co., in-the amount of
$1,550,299.13.

ey E 57
IQn syille



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Background:
Approval is also sought to reject all bids for Bid No. 24-14 due to errors and to rebid for

accurate pricing. Funds allocated for the initial project will be redirected to the GLO D237
Project 13 for curb, gutter, and drainage improvements along W Johnston Ave.

Bid No. 24-14, opened on July 30, 2024, received three bids:

1. International Consulting Engineers (Corpus Christi, Texas): Base bid of
$1,982,488.34, Alternate Bid No. 1 at $295,596.25, Alternate Bid No. 2 at
$94,735.00, with a total of $2,372,819.59.

2. RXDX (Sinton, Texas): Base bid of $1,498,646.00, Alternate Bid No. 1 at
$199,487.00, Alternate Bid No. 2 at $71,486.00, with a total of $1,769,619.00.

3. NEX Construction (Corpus Christi, Texas), who later withdrew their bid.

Significant errors in the initial bids necessitate rebidding to obtain accurate pricing.

Financial Impact:
The project will be paid for by Fund 055 — Utility Storm Water Drainage Fund and Fund 068
— CO Series 2013 Drainage.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends:
@ Awarding the project and construction contract to Doland Hubert Construction Co. in

the amount of $1,550,299.13 for the 2023-2024 City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete
and Drainage Improvements — Phase 3 project.
2. Authorizing the City Manager to sign the construction contract.

Attachments:

Bid Tabulation
Construction Contract

Y P
Kln Syille

ﬁ"‘ﬁs %‘b



¥20z/ST/11 peug

S0-GZ aig uoheinqel pig 80-11-¥20C

00°000°1$ 00'005°c$ ; (SX.S SUIpUe PAIRYS YAV 7

00°005%$ {loo-000°28 00°005°€$ 01 2d&1 dureyf qInD uesopad va z vzd

00'005¥$ Jloo-o00r 18 00°005°€$ L 8dAY, durey qIn) velnsapag va 2 €zd

00'000'r$ ~{loo000°8z$ 00°00S°c$ [ odA[, dureyf qIn)) Uelgsapad v3 8 78

00°000°L$ lloooo0ocs 00°000°6$ JOUL qIn)) v3 v 179

00°00978$ 00°0ST$ lloo'ovz’06$ 00091$ adid 91e10u0]) PAOIOJUINT VIA WT 41 95 04
00756°¢8$ 00br1$ __8.2 1'66$ 00°0L1S$ JUBUISARJ S1RIBU0D HOIYL, ;9 ‘A'S €85 614
08°010Z$ 08°7v$ __oo.mﬁdmw 00°59% PaloeduIo)) ased SUOISAWI'T SAY YIIYL ,9 ‘A'S 195 814
00'CE6°E1$ 00791% Joo0osz1s 000518 Treday eydsy XN 10H ,Z "A'S 93 14
00°958°cE$ 00+¥1$ oo 0rs‘6es 000918 KemoALI( 2101000 JIYL 9 "A'S 6vT otd
00°000°02$ 00°000°01$ __oo.oomnvg 00001°Z1$ S[OYUBIA ULIOYS 53010U0D) V3 [4 ST
00'78Z°C1$ 00'291$ __oo.oomama 00°0S1$ J[emaplg 91010U0D) NOYL b NS 8 vid
00'876'S$ 00°LS$ __oo.ovmg 00°09% Jonng As[[eA S1910U0D SPIM £ ER vot €1d
069°6$ 00'8€$ 00'002°01$ . 00°0v$ Jopng A3f[eA 21210U0D) SPIM T ElL SsT (4%
00°000°€h$ 00°0v$ 00'$Z9°LES 00'S€$ Iopng % qm) 3LI0UY 9 41 SL0T 114
66'666°T$ 00'LS8THS 00'067$ 00°000°L$ uonEIdZaA JO 850dsI(] / sa0waY v £00 018
00°000°S$ 00°005°C$ 00°00%7$ 00°002°C$ ~ 9[OYUEN WII0)S Jo asodsi( / aaowoy Vi [4 68
00°000°8$ 00'000C$ 00°007'9% 00°009°T$ 10[U] 9YeID Jo 2s0dSi(] / 2A0WSY vi 14 84
00°076°8$ 00'0Z$ 00'026°8$ 00°0Z$ adig uoyg jo esodsi( / 2wy ‘A'S vy L9
SHOLY 8V S1'ess 00'086°7ES 00°09% JUBUISARY S1210U0) JO 950dSI(] / dAOISY XS €85 98
00°8ZL°1$ 00TLs - 00°096$ 00°0v$ [EMIPIS 312IOUOD JO 9SOdSI(T / 2A0WTY ‘NS ¥Z sg
00'018°5$ 00'0L$ 00°SEL'ES 00'S¥$ aseg] 29 }eydsy Jo asodsi(1 / aaowsy ‘A'S €8 v
00°502°T$ 00'ST$ 00°SL9'E$ 00'sT$ 19p0D A9 A, 2J210U0D JO 350dsi(T / dA0WSY 41 Lyt €8
00'SOL'1$ 00'11$ 000SS°1$ 0001% 3oPnD 29 GIRY) 91210U0D) JO ISOUSK( / SAOWSY 47 SST 4
0002 v$ 00ZLS 00'00L°T$ 00°sY$ KemaALI(] 3219000 J0 950dsI(] / dA0WSY ‘A'S 09 14

. ‘arg asvd
mnw Wm AORId Mw WM g NOLLATIDSAA JTINN ALD WAL

[ "ON Wmpusppy

YZ0T ‘S J9qUIBAON :sjeq
S0-SZ# AI9 1aquinN pig
€ 3seyd - siuawanosdul] 3euleag pue 31243u0) SNOIUE([SISIA BPIW AN YZ0Z-£20T :awep 198loig

aliasbuly o AN

NOILYINgGVL1 did




v20Z/ST/TT pand

S0-SZ GIg uonengeL pig 80-11-¥20T

[loz c6z°69% 08'2v$ 00'SET'S0L$ 00'59% pajoediio]) eseg au0jsauIl oML, ,9 "AS 6191 8-V
[loo000°€$ 0007 00'$79°T$ 00'S£$ Tanng 2 gy 2jpI0U0) ,9 ERl SL. L€V
[lo0'000%$ 00°000C$ 00°00Z°€$ 00°009°1$ 0[] S1e1D) 30 9s0dsI(T / da0uy v3 [4 g€y
[loo-000°8$ 00°000°Z$ 00°007°9% 00°009°T$ U] qINY) JO 350dSI(T / 2A0WSY LE] ¥ S-€Y
[loooszi1s 00°0Z$ 00°09C°11$ 00°02$ adiq uwios Jo asodsi(T / aAOWRY ER €95 7€V
[loo'000°c$ 00'005°2$ [loo-0ot+$ 00'002°C$ XOg U0nauny Jo a50dsi( / sa0way V3 4 €-EV
ls8619°7€1$ S1'e8s$ llooor1L6$ 00'09% JUAW3AR 1219000 Jo asodsI( / 2a0may 'A'S 6191 7€V
loossiis 00'11$ lloo0s0°1$ 00°01% 19NN % gInD 9VI0U0)) J0 950dsi(T / sa0WY Eill S01 1-EV
LS PUZ S :dIF € ALVNYALTV
alg asy. @

00°000'%$ 1 2dAT, durey qin) veinsapag v3 [4 81TV

[loo00s°6€$ 00°00£°€1$ [loo'co0'6es 00'000°€1$ UOISUSIXE /M, J0[U] gInD v3 3 L1-7Y
00°091°Z€1§ 00'S67$ [looorv'sTis 00°082$ adid 9101000 P2AIOJUISY VI .9€ 47 8y 917V
00°0S9°€1$ 000518 [loooosris 00°091% did 21219U00) PIIOJUINY VIA 4T 41 16 ST-2Y
000007028 00°000°01$ [[oo 0028 00001213 S[OUBN WIOS 31210U0D) V3 z vI-2v
00°098°1€$ 00'0LT8 00°09C°8$ 0008 SIoAR YoUg "A'S 8TT £1-2V
0096£°18$ 00'9Z1$ 00°006°96$ 00°0S1$ Treday yjeydsy X1 10H ,C ‘A'S 99 (A%
[loo 9670z 00'PFI$ 00 0¥+67$ 00091 AeMAALI(] 2110U0D JPIL ,9 AS v81 T2y
007918 00°0SS°911§ 00°0ST$ S[EMBPIS 91210U0D) YOI AS 1L 0Tty

00'8¢$ 00'0ZE+$ 00°0t$ 1apng ASJ[EA 81210U0)) . NS 801 6TV

loooze'Les 00°0v$ 00°SS9°TES 00'5€$ 1a)Nng P qInD 3j210U0D) ,9 37 £€6 8-7Y
000008 00'008+$ 00°009°1$ 391U SYeID JO 950dSI(T / dA0WNY v3 € LTY

00°0Z§ 00°0v9°01% 0002 adig uno)g yo asodsiqy / eaoway ER TES 9-zv

[loo00s7zs 00'00SZ$ 00°002C$ 00'002°T$ SJOYUBJA] ULIO)S JO 250dSI(] / dA0URY V3 3 sz
[loovzo'zis 00CLS [loo089%% 00°07$ N[EMIPIS 91919107 JO asodsI(] / dAOWY AS £91 rzv
flos 608°65$ 95'€9% [loo svETrs 00'St$ aseq 29 1eydsy o asodsi(T / sAoway ‘NS 6 €T
[loozLss 00'11$ [looozss 00018 Iangy 29 gInD 93010U0D JO 9S0ASKT / SAOWTY 41 43 v
foororers 00'ZL$ [looos1°88 00°'St$ ABM3ATI( 21210U0)) JO 3S0dSI(T / SAOWY NS 81 T-2Y

0S'€91$

00°09L°EET$ 00'091$ QUM 9)910U0) 41 98 71TV

00'791$ lloo'0008¥s 00'0S1$ Treday yeydsy XIN 10H ,T A'S 0z 1TV

00'+riS [looozsis 00'091$ AemoaALI(] 91210000 YOI, ,9 "A'S 43 0T-1v

[loo96s 18 00°LS$ {loo'089°T$ 00'09$ Ionng AS[[EA S1210U00) 9P € 41 8T 61V
00'886$ 00'8¢$ [ooovo1s 00°0v$ 1315 AS[[EA 21219007 3PIM T 11 9z 81V
00'0¥9°L$ 00°07$ [loo"s89°0g 00°SE$ 10D 79 QINY 81910U0) ,9 41 161 +£1Y
£6'Tr1's$ 0S°L58°TH$ lloo'os€°1§ 00°000°L$ UONEA3aA YO 950dsI(T / dA0Way v 610 9-1Y
000ZL91$ 000Z$ [loo-008° 17§ 00°0S$ SWnj J3I0U0 JO 250dSI(T / dA0WY 41 9€8 S-1V
00016128 00'0L$ [loo ssovig 00°St$ oseg] 79 Jyeydsy Jo asodsi( / daoursy A'S €1€ -1V
00°0Z+$ 00'SI$ [loo00L8 00°S7$ Io1ng AS[[eA 212190 J as0dSI(] / SA0WIY 41 8¢ €-1v
00'TEETS 0011 [loooziTs 00°01$ Joung 2 InD 91910u0D Jo 50dsi(] / SAOWINY 41 [444 v
00798% 00ZLS __oo.ovmm 00°S¥$ AeMAALI(] 912101100 JO 250dSI( / SAOWINY ‘A'S a v

A ITVANMYT:AIF T ALYNYALTV




¥T0Z/ST/TT paung

S0-SZ aig uohiejngey pig 80-11-¥20T

ALYNIALTY TVIOL]

0T8T TrS 007918 00°0ST°6€8 00'0S1$ “Tieday eydsy XA 10H T ‘A'S 197 67V
[loo0goE1$ 001§ 00°00T SIS 00'091$ KEMOALI(] 9)210U0D) YOI ,9 AS 56 8vv
00°SOLES 00°LS$ 00'006°€$ 00'09$ 3309 K3[[eA, 2J9I0U0D) SPIM £ FR 59 e
00118°$ 00'8€$ 00°021°9% 00°0v$ o0y AB[[eA S10I0U0D SPI T IR €57 9vy
00'095°S€$ 000v$ 00STI1ES 00°S€$ 19P09 7 GInD S1R19U6) 9 31 688 SV
000L2818$ 00'0L$ [loosviT1s 00°St$ aseg] % J[eydsy Jo asodsi( / aaoway A'S 197 v-ov
loo'sL6$ 00SI$ [oo°szoT8 00528 Jopng A9[[eA S1910UGD JO a50dSL( / AW ERl 59 Caed
[lo0809°1€$ 00TLS [oossi’e1s 00°S¥$ AeMBALI(T 91219UC)) JO 350dSI( / SA0WSY ‘AS 6EY Zhv
flooTiLLs 0011 lloooto’Ls 00'0L$ 1ojInp 79 qInD 9)9I0UOY) JO 30| / SAOWY 41 10L 17V

00°0£0°029S

“¥d NATTV /*LS NO

arg

SMIV['N ¥ AV NMNVOA M :aI9 ¥ ALYNYALTV

YNAALTV AVIOL

00°000T1$ [0 0005 v 00°000°6$ U1 gIn) LE] S YI-€V
00°051$ 00°088°06% 00091 2d1d 0j210U0)) PADIOJIEY VIA .+T 47 895 ET-8V
00°00S01$ 00°001C1$ 0000118 S[OYUEJY ULIO} 510000 v3 1 [
00'05L°8$ 00'000°0Z§ 00'00001§ X0g] U0[oUn{ 31210U0) v3 [ TI-EV
00°€STS$ 0009528 00'0918 1redoy JusIaARd 2J0I0U0D) YOI, ,9 A'S 191 OT-€V
00'tY1$ {oo 0664618 00'0L1$ WAUBAEJ S}RIU0D YOI, ,9 "AS LT1 6-€Y




AGENDA ITEM #7



Conto ek
City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer
DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBJECT:  Consider Awarding Project and Construction Contract for Bid No. 25-05 fof
23-24 City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements —
Phase 3

Purpose:
We seek approval to award the project and the construction contract for Bid No. 25-05.

Summary:
Bid No. 25-05 was advertised on October 10 and October 17, 2024, in the local newspaper
and on the City’s website. The bids were received by the deadline of 2:00 p.m. on November

5, 2024, from two bidders:

1. Donald Hubert Construction Co. (Kingsville, Texas)
2. RXDX (Sinton, Texas)

Base bids ranged from $514,417.24 to $535,930.00, with alternate bids as follows:

« Alternate Bid No. 1: $250,866.93 to $253,660.00
« Alternate Bid No. 2: $573,700.00 to $94,735.00

« Alternate Bid No. 3: $599,329.05 to $620,040.00
o Alternate Bid No. 4: $135,620.00 to $159,605.00

The total bids, including all alternates, ranged from $2,118,950.00 to $2,149,628.18, with
only a 1.4% variance between them.

Per Local Government Code Chapter 271, if a local bidder's price is within 5% of the lowest
bid from an out-of-town bidder, the contract may be awarded to the local bidder or the
lowest bidder, or all bids may be rejected. We recommend awarding the base bid, Alternate
Bids 1, 2 and 4, to the local contractor, Donald Hubert Construction Co., in the amount of

Ty PR O
Kingsyille
%&@éﬁg



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Background:
Approval is also sought to reject all bids for Bid No. 24-14 due to errors and to rebid for

accurate pricing. Funds allocated for the initial project will be redirected to the GLO D237
Project 13 for curb, gutter, and drainage improvements along W Johnston Ave.

Bid No. 24-14, opened on July 30, 2024, received three bids:

1. International Consulting Engineers (Corpus Christi, Texas): Base bid of
$1,982,488.34, Alternate Bid No. 1 at $295,596.25, Alternate Bid No. 2 at
$94,735.00, with a total of $2,372,819.59.

2. RXDX (Sinton, Texas): Base bid of $1,498,646.00, Alternate Bid No. 1 at
$199,487.00, Alternate Bid No. 2 at $71,486.00, with a total of $1,769,619.00.

3. NEX Construction (Corpus Christi, Texas), who later withdrew their bid.

Significant errors in the initial bids necessitate rebidding to obtain accurate pricing.

Financial Impact:
The project will be paid for by Fund 055 — Utility Storm Water Drainage Fund and Fund 068
— CO Series 2013 Drainage.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends: :

1. Awarding the project and construction contract to Doland Hubert Construction Co. in
the amount of $1,550,299.13 for the 2023-2024 City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete
and Drainage Improvements — Phase 3 project.

@ Authorizing the City Manager to sign the construction contract.

Attachments:
Bid Tabulation
Construction Contract

a.

Ty P
Iﬁngggiﬂe

o,

NRE @2
A



RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A STANDARD
FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND CONTRACTOR, DONALD
HUBERT CONSTRUCTION CO., FOR CITY-WIDE MISC. CONCRETE AND
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS-PHASE 3; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING
RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (City) intends to make some city-wide
miscellaneous concrete and drainage improvements and went out for bids via
BID #25-05 which was advertised on October 10t and 171, 2024;

WHEREAS, the City received two bids by the deadline of November 4, 2024
responsive to BID #25-05;

WHEREAS, after reviewing the bid submittals staff recommends BID #25-05 be
awarded to the local bidder (Donald Hubert Construction Co.) who is within 5% of
the low bidder from out-of-town, which allowed by Texas Local Government
Code Chapter 271;

WHEREAS, the City and Donald Hubert Construction Co. have worked to
prepare a contract for City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage
Improvements and the parties both agree to the terms of the proposed contract
for the base bid and alternates no. 1, 2 & 4 in the total amount of $1,550,299.13.

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas:

I
THAT the Mayor is authorized and directed as an act of the City of Kingsville,
Texas to execute the Standard Form Agreement between the City of Kingsville,
Texas and Donald Hubert Construction Co. on the Basis of a Stipulated Price for
City-wide Miscellaneous Concrete and Drainage Improvements-Phase 3 in
accordance with Exhibit A hereto attached and made a part hereof.

il.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
25% day of __November , 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CITY AND CONTRACTOR
ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE

- THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the _ 25" day of November _inthe year 2024 by and between the City of

Kingsville, 400 W. King Avenue, Kingsville, Texas 78363 (hereinafter called CITY) and _Donald Hubert
Construction Co. (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR).

CITY and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

Article 1. WORK:

CONTRACTOR shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is
generally described as follows: '

“City of Kingsville — BID 25-05 2023-2024 CITY-WIDE MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE AND DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENTS ~ PHASE 3

Article 2. ENGINEER:

The Project has been designed by:

gl
s
CITY RN 7

]

City of Kingsville - Engineering Department
400 W. King Avenue
Kingsville, Texas 78363
(361) 595-8007

Who is hereinafter called ENGINEER and who is to act as CITY’S representative, assume all duties and
responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in
connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Article 3. CONTRACT TIME

3.1 The Work will be completed and ready for final payment in accordance with the General Conditions
within 180  calendar days from the date when the Contract Time commences to run.

32 Liquidated Damages. CITY and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement
and that CITY will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the time specified in
paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the General Conditions.

They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual
loss suffered by CITY if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, CITY and
CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall pay CITY two
hundred & 00/100 dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day that expires after the time specified in Article 3.1 of this
Agreement for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion if
CONTRACTOR shall neglect, refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time or any proper
extension thereof granted by CITY, CONTRACTOR shall pay CITY two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each calendar
day that expires after the time specified in Article 3.1 of this Agreement for completion and readiness for final payment.



Article 4. CONTRACT PRICE:

4.1

CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of Work in accordance with the Contract Documents
in current funds as follows: Per Contractors Proposal dated _November 5, 2024 _ in the total base bid
+ total alternative No. 1 in the amount of _$ 1,550,299.13, as attached and a part of this contract
document.

Article 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES:

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with the General Conditions.
Applications for Payment will be processed by ENGINEER as provided in the General Conditions.

Article 6. INTEREST:

All moneys not paid when due as provided in the General Conditions shall bear interest at the maximum rate
allowed by law at the place of the Project.

Article 7. CONTRACTORS REPRESENTATIONS:

In order to induce CITY to enter into this Agreement CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

CONTRACTOR has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work,
site, locality, and all local conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may affect cost,
progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.

CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and
carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies which
pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work as CONTRACTOR considers necessary for the
performance of furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance
with other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of the
General Conditions; and no additional examinations, investigation, explorations, tests reports, studies
or similar information or data are or will be required by CONTRACTOR for such purposes.

CONTRACTOR has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the Contract
Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and assumes
responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional examinations,
investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect of said
Underground Facilities are or will be required by CONTRACTOR in order to perform and furnish the
Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time, and in accordance with the other terms and
conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of the General and Special
Conditions.

CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations,
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he
has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is
acceptable to CONTRACTOR.



Article 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between CITY and CONTRACTOR
concerning the Work consists of the following:

8.1 A bound set of executed documents and specifications titled:

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
&
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
FOR

BID- 25-05
2023-2024 CITY-WIDE MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS — PHASE 3
FOR
CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS

City Manager
Mark McLaughlin

Mayor
Sam Fugate

Commissioner(s)

Hector Hinojosa
Norma Nelda Alvarez
Edna Lopez
Ann Marie Torres

OCTOBER 2024

Prepared by:

ary ﬁ =

. OF W
SVllle

Engineering Department

400 W. King Avenue
Kingsville, Texas 78363
(361) 595-8007

together with all the items or sections listed in the Table of Contacts thereof.



8.2

8.3

8.4

CENOU A WNE

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
‘19.
20.
21.
22

23.
24,
25.
26.
27.

28.

29.

30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.

A Notice of Award consisting of one page.

A Notice to Proceed with Construction consisting of one page which shall be executed at a later date.

A set of drawings consisting of FORTY (40) sheets titled:

Description
COVER SHEET

PROJECT LOCATION

GENERAL NOTES

SHEET INDEX

LEGEND — TESTING SCHEDULE & QUANTITIES

N. 2P ST, FROM W. C. AVE TO W. B AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE - STA. 0+00 TO END

WELLS ST. FROM W. .. AVE. TO W. H. AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE - STA 0+00 TO END

DRAINAGE FLUME AND E. LAWNDALE DR. INTERSECTION

DRAINAGE FLUME FROM E. LAWNDALE DR. TO E. SEN. CARLOS TRUAN BLVD. PLAN AND PROFILE—
STA. 0+00 TO 2+50

. DRAINAGE FLUME FROM E. LAWNDALE DR. TO E. SEN. CARLOS TRUAN BLVD. PLAN AND PROFILE —

STA. 2+50 TO 5+00

DRAINAGE FLUME FROM E. LAWNDALE DR. TO E. SEN. CARLOS TRUAN BLVD. PLAN AND PROFILE -
STA. 5+00 TO 7450

DRAINAGE FLUME FROM E. LAWNDALE DR. TO E. SEN. CARLOS TRUAN BLVD. PLAN AND PROFILE -
STA. 7+50 TO END

S. 2P ST. FROM W. YOAKUM AVE. TO W. KLEBERG AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE - STA. 0+00 TO 3+90
S. 2"P ST. FROM W. KLEBERG AVE. TO W. KING AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE - STA. 3+90 TO END

W. YOAKUM AVE./N. 2"° ST. AND W. KLEBERG AVE./S. 2\° ST. PLAN AND PROFILE.

S. 9™ ST, FROM E. LOTT AVE TO E. HUISACHE AVE. PLAND AND PROFILE — STA. 0+00 TO END.
S.9™ ST. / E. HUISACHE AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE.

E. YOAKUM AVE. FROM N. 7™ ST. TO N. 8™ ST. PLAN AND PROFILE — STA 0+00 TO END

N. 8™ ST. & YOAKUM AVE. PROPOSED (BULB QUTS)

ALLEN DR. AND NELDA ST. PLAN AND PROFILE VIEWS — STA. 0+00 TO END

W. YOAKUM AVE. TO N. JACKSON ST. PLAN AND PROFILE — STA. 0+00 TO STA. 3+33

N. JACKSON ST. FROM W. YOAKUM AVE. TO W. KLEBERG AVE. PLAN AND PROFILE — STA. 0+00 TO
END

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS |

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS I

MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS Il

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN — CONVENTIONAL ROAD SHOULDER WORK —TCP (1-1) - 18
TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES — EROSION
CONTROL LOG —EC (9)—16~SHEET10F 3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES — EROSION
CONTROL LOG —EC (9)—16 —SHEET 2 OF 3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES — EROSION
CONTROL LOG —EC (9) —16 —SHEET 3 OF 3

BARRICADE AND CONSTRUCTION TEMPORARY SIGN NOTES — BC (4) — 14 — SHEET 4 OF 12
BARRICADE AND CONSTRUCTION TYPICAL SIGN SUPPORT — BC (5) — 14 — SHEET 5 OF 12
BARRICADE AND CONSTRUCTION CHANNELIZING DEVICES — BC (10) — 14 — SHEET 10 OF 12
PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES CURB RAMPS — PED — 18 —SHEET 1 OF 4

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES CURB RAMPS — PED — 18 —SHEET 2 OF 4

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES CURB RAMPS — PED — 18 — SHEET 3 OF 4

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES CURB RAMPS — PED — 18 — SHEET 4 OF 4

CURB INLET DETAIL—-SHEET 1 OF 4



38. CURB INLET DETAIL — SHEET 2 OF 4
39. CURB INLET DETAIL — SHEET 3 OF 4
40. CURB INLET DETAIL—-SHEET 4 OF 4

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8. The Contract
Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.

Article 9. MISCELLANEOUS

9.1

9.2

9.3

Article 10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in the General Conditions will have the meanings
indicated in the General Conditions.

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding on
another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically but
without limitation moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without
such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment will release or
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

CITY and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives
to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all
covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

OTHER PROVISIONS

The successful bidder who is awarded this bid will be required to complete and return a Conflict of
Interest Disclosure Form and a Form 1295 — Certificate of Interested Parties

This contract gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than the CITY and CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by all local, state, and federal nondiscrimination and fair wages, and
all other laws applicable to this contract.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in five counterparts. Two
counterparts each have been delivered to CITY and CONTRACTOR and one counterpart to ENGINEER. All
portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by CITY and CONTRACTOR or by ENGINEER

on their behalf.

This Agreement will be effective on _November 25, 2024

CITY: CONTRACTOR:

City of Kingsville, Texas Donald Hubert Construction Co.

By: By:

Mark McLaughlin, City Manager Donald Hubert, President

Attest: Attest:

Address for giving notices: Address for giving notices:

City of Kingsville Donald Hubert Construction Co. Inc.
400 W. King Avenue P.O. Box 84

Kingsville, Texas, 78363 Kingsville, Texas 78364



AGENDA ITEM #8



K3 n - Awad

City of Kingsville RFE
Engineering Dept. Adn i SYC
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBIJECT:  Consider Approving Award to Selected Grant Management Firm for Grant Pre-
Application, and Implementation services for the City of Kingsville 2025-2026 Texas
Community Development Grant Fund Program as administered by the Texas
Department of Agriculture

Summary:

The City of Kingsville issued RFP #25-07 for Administrative Services, which was advertised on
November 7 and November 14, 2024, in the local newspaper and on the City’s website. Proposals
were received by the deadline of 2:00 p.m. on November 19, 2024, from the following firms:

1. GrantWorks Inc., Austin, Texas
2. Langford Community Management Services, Liberty Hill, Texas

The evaluation committee, consisting of City Commissioner Norma Nelda Alvarez, City Manager Mark
McLaughlin, Capital Improvements Manager Mike Mora, and City Engineer Rudy Mora, reviewed all
proposals. The committee recommends awarding the contract to GrantWorks Inc.

Background:

The 2025-2026 Texas Community Development Grant Fund cycle offers a maximum award of
$750,000, with a required city match of 15% ($112,500), which may include in-kind contributions
like in-house engineering services. Historically, successful applications have prioritized water system
improvements, benefiting low- to moderate-income residents and enhancing housing and living
conditions.

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program supports economic growth and
development in low- to moderate-income areas, a priority for the City of Kingsville. For the 2025-
2026 funding cycle, the city may pursue projects like water and wastewater improvements, street
and drainage enhancements, and housing activities. These projects not only support community
safety and infrastructure but also encourage broader economic development, especially in rural

dareas.



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Financial Impact:
There is no financial impact by awarding RFP# 25 07 for administrative services. These services will

be paid for from contingent awarded grant funds.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends awarding administrative services to GrantWorks Inc. and negotiating a contract.

Attachments:
¢ Hiring Resolution
e Submission Resolution

CIT

Kf\i‘rﬁiﬁ?’

IAKW w
TY‘$



RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF ADMINISTRATIVE/PROJECT DELIVERY
SERVICE PROVIDER CONTRACT(S) FOR THE 2025-2026 TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND PROJECT.

WHEREAS the 2025-2026 Texas Community Development Fund Program contract requires implementation by
professionals experienced in completion of federally funded administrative services;

WHEREAS, in order to identify qualified and responsive providers for these services a Request for Proposals (RFP) process
for administration/project delivery services has been completed in accordance with Texas CDBG requirements;

WHEREAS the proposals received by the due date have been reviewed to determine the most qualified and responsive
providers for the professional service;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

Section 1. That GrantWorks Inc. be selected to provide TxCDBG application and
project-related administration/project delivery services for the 2025-2026 Community Development
Fund project. ’

Section 2. That any and all contracts or commitments made with the above-named service provider are
dependent on the successful negotiation of a contract with the service provider.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON

APPROVED: D - e
2 [l Cwid F

Sam R Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary






RESOLUTION # 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE
AWARD OF ADMINISTRATIVE/PROJECT DELIVERY SERVICE PROVIDER
CONTRACT(S) FOR THE 2025-2026 TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT FUND PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (“City”) intends to apply for the 2025-2026 Texas
Community Development Block Grant Program for funding; and

WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Texas Community Development Fund Program contract
requires implementation by professions experienced in completion of
federally funded administrative services; and

WHEREAS, in order to identify qualified and responsive providers for these services a
Request for Proposals (RFP) process for administration/project delivery
services has been completed in accordance with Texas CDBG
requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City issued RFP #25-07 for Administrative Services, which was
advertised in the local newspaper on November 7t & 14t 2024 and was
on the City’s website; and

WHEREAS, the City received two responses by the November 19, 2024 deadline,
which were reviewed by an evaluation committee that recommended
GrantWorks, Inc. be awarded the RFP as they were determiend to be the
most qualified and responsive provider for the professional services; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:
[

THAT GrantWorks, Inc. be selected to provide TxCDBG application and project-related
administration/project delivery services for the 2025-2026 Community Development
Fund project.

THAT any and all contracts or commitments made with the above-named service
provider are dependent on the successful negotiation of a contract with the service
provider, which would come back to City Commission for approval at a future meeting.

I
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.



PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas on the _25th _day of November, 2024.

Sam Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #9



ol - Subome

City of Kingsville CORE g
Engineering Dept.

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer |

DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBJECT:  Consider Approving Award to Selected Grant Management Firm for Grant Pre-
Application, and Implementation services for the City of Kingsville 2025-2026 Texas
Community Development Grant Fund Program as administered by the Texas
Department of Agriculture

Summary:
The City of Kingsville issued RFP #25-07 for Administrative Services, which was advertised on

November 7 and November 14, 2024, in the local newspaper and on the City’s website. Proposals
were received by the deadline of 2:00 p.m. on November 19, 2024, from the following firms:

1. GrantWorks Inc., Austin, Texas
2. Langford Community Management Services, Liberty Hill, Texas

The evaluation committee, consisting of City Commissioner Norma Nelda Alvarez, City Manager Mark
McLaughlin, Capital Improvements Manager Mike Mora, and City Engineer Rudy Mora, reviewed all
proposals. The committee recommends awarding the contract to GrantWorks Inc.

Background:

The 2025-2026 Texas Community Development Grant Fund cycle offers a maximum award of
$750,000, with a required city match of 15% ($112,500), which may include in-kind contributions
like in-house engineering services. Historically, successful applications have prioritized water system
improvements, benefiting low- to moderate-income residents and enhancing housing and living
conditions.

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program supports economic growth and
development in low- to moderate-income areas, a priority for the City of Kingsville. For the 2025-
2026 funding cycle, the city may pursue projects like water and wastewater improvements, street
and drainage enhancements, and housing activities. These projects not only support community
safety and infrastructure but also encourage broader economic development, especially in rural

areas.

CITY

Kmﬂﬁ«

m\ﬁ%



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

Financial Impact:
There is no financial impact by awarding RFP# 25-07 for administrative services. These services will

be paid for from contingent awarded grant funds.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends awarding administrative services to GrantWorks Inc. and negotiating a contract.

- Attachments:
e Hiring Resolution
e Submission Resolution



RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSIONER OF CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR
THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND.

WHEREAS, the City Commissioner of the City of Kingsville desires to develop a viablé community,
including decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic
opportunities, principally for persons of low-to-moderate income; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the City of Kingsville to apply for funding
under the Texas Community Development Block Grant Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSIONER OF CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS,

1.

That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for the Community
Development Fund is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of the City with the Texas
Department of Agriculture, and to be placed in competition for funding under the Community
Development Fund.

That the City of Kingsville commits to dedicating no less than 51% of grant funds for activities
identified by the state planning region as water well number 14 pump station replacement.

That all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal, state, local and

© programmatic requirements including but not limited to procurement, environmental review,

labor standards, real property acquisition, and civil rights requirements.

That the City of Kingsville is committing to provide $112,500.00 in matching funds toward the
application’s activities, with the specific usage and funding source to be determined prior to
any award of grant funding.

Passed and approved this _25_ day of _November , 2024

Sam R Fugate, Mayor
City of Kingsville, Texas

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas



RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE,
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
FUND; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT AS THE CITY’S
EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND THE CITY MANAGER TO ACT AS THE CITY’S
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE
CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING
RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville desires to develop a
viable community, including decent housing and a suitable living environment
and expanding economic opportunities, pnncnpally for persons of low-to-
moderate income; and

WHEREAS, certain conditions exist which represent a threat to the public health
and safety; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interest of the City of Kingsville to
apply for funding under the Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

1. THAT a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application
for the Community Development Fund is hereby authorized to be filed on
behalf of the City with the Texas Department of Agriculture.

2. THAT the City’s application be placed in competition for funding under the
Community Development Fund.

3. THAT the application be for up to $750,000.00 of grant funds to provide
water improvements.

4. THAT the City of Kingsville commits to dedicating no less than 15% of
grant funds for activities identified by the state planning region as water
well number 14 pump station replacement.

5. THAT the City of Kingsville is committing to provide $112,500.00 in
matching funds toward the application’s activities, with the specific usage
and funding source to be determined prior to any award of grant funding.

6. THAT the City Commission directs and designates Mayor Sam Fugate as
the City’s Chief Executive Officer and City Manager Mark McLaughlin as



8.

9.

the City’s Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection
with this application and the City’s participation in the Texas Community
Development Block Grant Program.

THAT all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal,
state, local and programmatic requirements including but not limited to
procurement, environmental review, labor standards, real property
acquisition, and civil rights requirements.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution
are repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after
adoption.

10.THAT this Resolution was considered, passed, and approved at a regular

meeting of the City Commission of the City of Kingsville, Texas at which a
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with Chapter 551
of the Texas Government Code, and Chapter 102 of the Texas Local
Government Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majorify vote of the City Commission on the

25th day of _ November , 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #10



City of Kingsville

Engineering Dept.
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Rutilio P. Mora Jr, P.E., City Engineer

DATE: November 25, 2024

SUBJECT:  Consider Awarding Request for Qualifications (RFQ 25-01) for Professional
Engineering Services for Low Water Crossing at West D Ave.

Summary:

RFQ #25-01 for Professional Engineering Services was advertised on October 3, 2024,
and October 10, 2024, in the local newspaper and on the City’s website. Statements of
Qualifications (SOQs) were received before the deadline of 2:00 p.m. on October 29,
2024. The following two (2) firms submitted SOQs:

1. Collier Engineering & Design, Corpus Christi, Texas.
2. International Consulting Engineers (ICE), Corpus Christi, Texas.

An evaluation committee comprising the City Manager, Capital Improvements Manager,
Public Works Director, and City Engineer reviewed the submissions. The committee
recommends awarding the RFQ to International Consulting Engineers (ICE). The next
step is to negotiate a contract for professional engineering services.

The recommended contract will focus on repairs for the low water crossing at W. D Ave
and Tranquitas Creek and will include investigations of other city-owned and maintained
low water crossings. This will help identify any funding sources for necessary upgrades
to existing infrastructure. There are 14 low water crossings within the city: 11 are City-
owned and maintained, 2 are TxDOT-owned and maintained, and 1 is county-owned and
maintained.

City low water crossing are as follows:
e W I Ave at Tranquitas Creek
N 10t St at Tranquitas Creek
N 9th St at Tranquitas Creek
N 12t St at Tranquitas Creek
E Santa Gertrudis at Tranquitas Creek
N 5t St at Tranquitas Creek



City of Kingsville
Engineering Dept.

N 1%t St at Tranquitas Creek

N 17t St at Tranquitas Creek

S 14% St at Santa Gertrudis Creek
W D Ave at Tranquitas Creek

E Trant Rd at Santa Gertrudis Creek

Background:

On August 15, 2024, the Engineering Department was notified of concrete damage at the
low water crossing at W. D Ave and Tranquitas Creek. The south concrete headwall and
drainage pipes were observed separating. The Engineering Department has monitored
the damages during rain events and has deemed the crossing safe for use.

Financial Impact:

There is no financial impact by awarding RFQ#25-01 for Professional Engineering
Services. Once the negotiated contract is approved the project can be paid from Fund
055 Utility Storm Water Drainage Fund.

Recommendation:
The Evaluation Committee recommends awardlng RFQ#25-01 for Professional

Engineering Services to International Consulting Engineers (ICE) and to begin negotiating
a contract.

Attachments:
None.



AGENDA ITEM #11



City of Kingsville
Finance Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Deborah Balli, Finance Director

DATE: November 6, 2024

SUBJECT: BA #08 - Request to roll end of year purchase orders for items ordered or
projects started in FY 23-24 that are expected to be received or completed in FY
24-25,

Summary:

At the end of each fiscal year, there are outstanding purchase orders that have been created and
sent to vendors and due to various reasons, they remain outstanding.

Background:

All purchase orders that remain outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are reviewed to
determine if the products are on order but have not been received or if the project has been
started but not yet completed. If there are purchase orders in that state, the purchase order and
the associated budget must both be rolled to the next fiscal year to cover the expenditure. During
the budget process, it is not always known if items or projects are going to be received or
completed by September 30, 2024. If allowances have not been made for this expenditure in the
following fiscal year budget, a budget amendment must be submitted to cover the expenditure.

Financial Impact:
Rolled purchase orders will decrease the unappropriated fund balance of the corresponding fund
by the following amounts:

Fund 001 - PO 242441 — Lane lines for Brookshire Pool - $7,374.87

Fund 001 — PO 242400 — Balllistic vests - $42,960.85

Fund 001 — PO 242481 — Backpack for vests - $2,460.00

Fund 005 — PO 242226 — K9 badges for Nicky, Krachel & Luca - $417.50

Fund 051 — PO 240276 — Balance of change order - $6,144.64

Fund 093 — PO 242115 — Balllfield scoreboard - $8,980.00

Fund 125 - PO 241983 — Balance of 18" water line repair - $83,800.00

Fund 125 — PO 240545 — Balance of water meter project funding - $537,772.26
Fund 128 - PO 231640 — Balance of Location #8 Loan portion of project - $100,570.00
Fund 141 — PO 240545 — Balance of water meter project funding - $126,763.05
Fund 151 — PO 240859 — (3) 14-yard dump trucks - $416,045.16

Fund 151 — PO 240855 — 2024 Etnyre centennial distributor - $278,743.15



City of Kingsville
Finance Department

e Fund 151-PO 240858 — (2) residential garbage trucks, (1) commercial garbage truck & (3)
brush trucks - $1,324,825.94
e Total Rolled Over Purchase Orders - $2,936,857.42

Failure to roll forward the budgets for the rolled purchase orders will require current FY 24-25
budget appropriations to cover these costs and may result in shortages in current needs. The
prior fiscal year’s appropriations included these amounts and dropped to fund balance at the end

of FY 23-24.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the approval of the budget amendment for the rolled purchase orders.



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO SETUP BUDGET
FOR ROLLED OVER PURCHASE ORDERS.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of ngswlle that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#8

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
"No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 001 — General Fund

Expenditures - 5

4513 | Recreation Minor Equipment 21700 $7,374.87

2102 | Patrol Minor Equipment 21700 $42,960.85

2102 | Patrol Minor Equipment 21700 $2,460.00

Fund 005 - PD Seizure Fund _

2100 | Police Minor Equipment 21700 $417.50

Fund 051 — Utility Fund

7001 | North Plant | Sewer Line 55100 $6,144.64

Fund 093 — Park Maintenance Fund

4503 | Park Maint Grounds & Perm Fixtures 59100 8,980.00

Fund 125 — UF ARP

6001 | Water Const | Professional Services 31400 $83,800.00

6001 | Water Const | Utility Plant 54300 $537,772.26

Fund 128 — TWDB Location #8 Fund

8600 | Drainage Drainage-Loan 71600 $100,570.00




Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget

No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 141 — CO Series 2023 UF
6001 | Water Const | Utility Plant 54300 $126,763.05
Fund 151 — CO Series 2023A GF
3050 | Street Machinery & Equipment 71200 $416,045.16
3050 | Street Machinery & Equipment 71200 $278,743.15
1702 | Sanitation Machinery & Equipment 71200 $1,324,825.94

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to setup budget for rolled over purchase
orders. Funding will come from the unappropriated fund balance of the associated fund. Rolled
over Purchase Orders include:
o 242441 — Lane lines for Brookshire Pool - $7,374.87
242400 - Ballistic vests - $42,960.85
242481 — Backpack for vests - $2,460.00
242226 — K9 badges for Nicky, Krachel & Luca - $417.50
240276 — Balance of change order - $6,144.64
242115 — Ballfield scoreboard - $8,980.00
241983 — Balance of 18” water line repair - $83,800.00
231640 - Balance of Location #8 Loan portion of project - $100,570.00
240545 — Balance of water meter project funding in Fund 141 - $126,763.05
240545 — Balance of water meter project funding in Fund 125 - $537,772.26
240859 — (3) 14-yard dump trucks - $416,045.16
240855 — 2024 Etnyre centennial distributor - $278,743.15
240858 — (2) residential garbage trucks, (1) commercial garbage truck & (3) brush trucks
- $1,324,825.94]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.



INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #12



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-_

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING RECEIVED ON THE SALE OF THE OLD HOSPITAL PROPERTY.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#19

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 001 — General Fund ‘ ' !

Revenues
0000 | Non Dept Sale of City Property 91000 $175,000.00

Expenditures
1030 | City Special | Professional Services 31400 $12,802.05

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to appropriate funding received from the sale
of the Old Hospital property located in the 400 Block of West Caesar Ave., which closed on
November 18, 2024. Funding proceeds will increase the General Fund unappropriated fund

balance.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law. '

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #13



City of Kingsville
Purchasing Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Charlie Sosa, Purchasing Manager
DATE: November 8, 2024

SUBJECT:  Budget Amendment for Emergency Repairs to Station 2 Plumbing

Summary:

This item authorizes the approval of a Budget Amendment in the amount of $12,800.00
to cover emergency repairs to the main plumbing line at Fire Station 2 in the Facilities
Line Item.

Background:

Facilities is requesting a budget amendment to cover emergency repairs to plumbing
main at Fire Station 2. Staff contacted Rodriguez Plumbing of Kingsville to work on it and
they have kept the main clear until recently. Fire Station 2 is approximately 85 years old
and the original cast iron plumbing has exceeded the life expectancy of the plumbing
main. The total amount to tunnel and replace plumbing main with schedule 40 PVC will
be $ 12,800.00, please see attached quote. It is vital to have a fully functioning plumbing
system, which houses critical staff.

Financial Impact:

Staff is requesting that additional funds be transferred from fund 001-5-1030-86000
Budget Amendment Reserves to 1805 Facilities, Fund #51100 Building Maintenance City
in the amount of $12,800.00. ,

Recommendation:

It is recommended the City Commission approve: 1) the emergency repair to the
plumbing main, and 2) the Budget Amendment for emergency repairs to the plumbing
main at Fire Station 2. '




627 N. 14th Street, Kingsville TX 78363
Ph (361)592-7975 Fax# (361)592-1033

Name / Address

Kingsville Fire Department
119 N 10th Street
Kingsville Tx 78363

Estimate

Date

Estimate #

11/1/2024

3041

Job Address/P.O. No.

Terms

515 Armstrong tunnel

Description

Cost

Total

Tunnel under building in order to replace old cast iron drain lines serving 1/2
bathroom and south lavatory.

New drain lines will be run with PVC shc 40 pipe and fittings.

Commode will be moved from floor and a new PVC flange will be installed.
Wall or floor repair NOT included if needed.

Excavated dirt will be removed from site and select fill will be used to backfill.
((( If drain lines are broken in or above concrete it will be extra to repair. }))

((( 1/2 of Alice street may have to be closed in order to move in and out with dirt.

)

12,800.00

12,800.00

Licensed By:
Texas State Board Plumbing Examiners

Total

$12,800.00

929 East 41 Street, P.O. Box 4200 Austin, Texas
78765
1-800-845-6584
\_ Master License No. M36117




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR EMERGENCY PLUMBING REPAIRS TO FIRE STATION #2.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#10

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 001 — General Fund ' '
Expenditures - 5
1805 | Facilities Building Maintenance 51100 $12,800
1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $12,800

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to appropriate funding for emergency
plumbing repairs to Fire Station #2. Funding will come from the GF Budget Amendment
Reserve line item. There is currently $160,840 available for GF Budget Amendments.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
1




THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED.AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #14



City of Kingsville
Department Name

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief
DATE: November 19, 2024

SUBJECT: Fire Department Budget Amendment -Border Zone Grant

Summary:

The Kingsville Fire Department is requesting to amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to
accept and expend the Border Zone Fire Dept Grant award #5106101. Funding will come from
the Grant award for the stated purpose

Background:

The Kingsville Fire Department has been awarded a Border Zone Grant in the amount of $69,000
to purchase two sets of rescue equipment. This grant does not require matching funds.

The grant requires that the department expend the funds, and once the funds are expended the

city will be reimbursed.

Financial Impact:
There is no financial impact to the city. Once the recue equipment is purchased the city will be
reimbursed in the amount of $69,000.

Recommendation: »
To amend the amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the Border

Zone Fire Dept Grant award #5106101.




Advanced Rescue Systems

3459 FM 36 South ' DATE: November 7,2024
Caddo Mills, Texas 75135 INVOICE #
Office 903-527-3841, Fax 903-527-4427 FOR:
advancedrescue@hotmail.com
Bill To: , Ship To:
Captain Miguel Sandoval : Name
Kingsville FD Company Name
119 N. 10th St. Address
Kingsville, Texas 78363 City, ST, Zip Code
361-522-9858 Phone
msandoval@cityofkingsville.com E-mail
361-595-4798 FAX
_ P _ o DESCRIPTION , , - AMOUNT

2 ea ES-100-32-18V TNT SURGE Milwaukee 18V 32" Spreader, 51k Spread Force $12295ea $24,590
2 ea EBFC-320-18V TNT SURGE Milwaukee 18V 10" Cutter, 320k Cut Force$12230 ea $24,460
2 ea ER-40-18V TNT SURGE Milwaukee 18V 40" Straight Ram, 35k Push Force $7635 $15,270
2 eaSTRMRAMBASE-EXT Extension and Base Kit for Ram 6", 12", 18" extension w/base,
yoke $1650ea $3;300
SHIPPING added according to charges from trucking company at time of shipment $1,300
Please let me know if you have any questions or need any other information
Bennie Marberry
210-473-2355 Mobile
Metal Mount for Spreader, Cutter, Ram NO CHARGE
Terms are Net 30 From Invoice Date

TOTAL $68,920

Circle one: QUOTE

Make all checks payable to Advanced Rescue Systems

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND THE BORDER ZONE FIRE DEPARTMENT GRANT AWARD #5106101 FOR FIRE
RESCUE EQUIPMENT.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#14

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Revenues
2200 | Fire State Grants 72010 $69,000

Expenditures
2200 | Fire Machinery & Equipment 71200 $69,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the Border Zone Fire
Dept Grant award #5106101. Funding will come from the Grant award for the stated purpose.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

A2
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #15



.City of Kingsville
Department Name

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief
DATE: November 12, 2024

SUBJECT: Fire Department Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) and SCBA Cascade
System :

Summary: .

The Fire Department requests approval and funding to replace expiring Self-Contained Breathing
Apparatus (SCBA) units and the SCBA Cascade System. These SCBA units are essential for
firefighter safety, supplying breathable air in hazardous environments. The current units are
reaching the end of their service life and will soon no longer meet NFPA and OSHA safety
standards. Expired equipment poses significant risks, including compromised air supply and
potential equipment failure during emergency operations, which could endanger firefighter safety
..and effectiveness in critical situations.

Background:

The Fire Department's Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) units, purchased fourteen
years ago, and the Cascade System, acquired in 2008, are both vital to firefighter safety. SCBAs
provide firefighters with a reliable source of breathable air, allowing them to enter smoke-filled
or hazardous environments safely. The Cascade System serves as the filling station, filtering and
compressing air for the SCBAs to ensure a clean and safe air supply. However, both systems have
limited lifespans due to regular wear and advances in safety standards. These units now need
replacement to maintain compliance with current safety standards and ensure dependable

performance in emergency situations.

Financial Impact: _
The total cost to replace the expiring SCBA units is $296,712.30, and the Cascade System
replacement will cost $104,922.48. Funding for these purchases will come from Line Item 153,
designated for equipment expenses. This investment will equip the Fire Department with reliable,
compliant SCBA units and a Cascade System, ensuring our firefighters have the resources needed
to operate safely and effectively in hazardous environments.




City of Kingsville
Department Name

Recommendation:
The Kingsville Fire Department staff recommends purchasing new Self-Contained Breathing

Apparatus (SCBA) units and a Cascade System from Municipal Emergency Services (MES), a By-
BuyBoard vendor, for a total cost of $401,704.78. MES is the preferred vendor due to their
adherence to procurement standaids and their strong reputation for delivering high-quality,
NFPA- and OSHA-compliant SCBA equipment.




Quote

\ /

Quote # QT1872880
Date 11/04/2024
i i _ I Expires 11/19/2024
MUNIC'PAL EMERGENCY SERVICES Sales Rep Guzman, Patrick L
(877) 637-3473 : Shipping Method  FedEx Ground
‘Customer KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT {TX)
Customer # C32328
Bill To ShipTo
KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPT KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 1458 119 N 10TH STREET
KINGSVILLE TX 78364 KINGSVILLE TX 78363
United States United States

; RSF-2311A001 i Revolveair, StationaryWAutoCascade, with Auxillary
: : Low Pressure, with Auxillary High Pressure, 4 bank

. auto cascade with separate storage, CGA Adapter

$25,469.58 $25,469.58 1

'RSC-02033101 - ﬁ 8000 psi 5 Stage Compressor 20 Horsepower, 208-230 1 $48,653.45. $48,653.45'
! : ! Volt/ 3 Phase/ 60Hz, Dew Point, English : :
{8BAT711 7000 : f . ASME 7500 with Valves and Fittings : 4 $5,230.68 $20,922.72§

i L-Forged end AB-Spun End ; : ‘
: Color Mapp Yellow : ; ;

|RSS-06A44200A ! Verticle Stand Alone 4; 4 Bank Auto Cascade, 4 : 11 $4226.73 $4,226.73 |
: . ‘ Storage Cylinder HP Hoses, 20 Feet : :
: Compressor Install ;  Site survey, install, operate, leak test, train & perform air 1] $2,750.00; $2,750.00

: sample with written report. i

BuyBoard Contract 698-23 Subtotal $102,022.48

Note to customer a site survey must be done with MES SCBA tech and certified Shipping Cost $2,900.00
electrician before placing the order this may effect the over all cost after survey is Tax Total $0.00
complete Total $104,922.48

This Quotation is subject to any applicable sales tax and shipping and handling charges that may apply. Tax and shipping charges are
considered estimated and will be recalculated at the time of shipment to ensure they take into account the most current information.

All returns must be processed within 30 days of receipt and require a return authorization number and are subject to a restocking fee.

Custom orders are not returnable. Effective tax rate will be applicable at the time of invoice.

L T Page 1 of 1
Q11872880




_ Quote
Quote # QT1872869

Date 11/04/2024
Expires 11/19/2024
MUN'CIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES Sales Rep Guzman, Patrick L
(877) 637-3473 Shipping Method  FedEx Ground
Customer KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT (TX)
Customer # C32328
Bill To ShipTo
KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPT KINGSVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O.BOX 1458 119 N 10TH STREET
KINGSVILLE TX 78364 KINGSVILLE TX 78363
United States United States

; : i P

i ; Change, Parachute Buckles, 4.5, Standard, No : : ; i
; i Accessory Pouch, E-Z Flo+ Regulator-with Quick . : H

i . i Disconnect Hose (Rectus-type fittings), Universal : ; ;

: ‘ ! EBSS, None, No, Pak-Tracker, No Case, 2 SCBA Per

: : 5 i Box : i
. 200129-01 { | Snap-Change Cylinder, Carbon-Wrapped, Pressure ; 60: $800.00! $48,000.00§
: : | 4500, 45 Minutes (at 40 lpm) ; ;
120121522 : 5 I AV3000 HT with Kevlar lining and 4-strap harness-Red, ' 501 $358.43 $17,921.50 |
: : | Medium { '
/SCBAFlowTest { SCBA Flow Test f 30! $26.00- $780.00!
{FUELCHARGE- | ?  Fuel Surcharge ; 1! $50.00; $50.00'

: Fuel Surcharge

Subtotal  $296,712.30

kW

***Pricing is.all or none. Any changes to quantity or product will require a new quote

i Shipping Cost $0.00
Free in-service training with full purchase. Tax Total $0.00
Quote includes new flow testing that is required by TCFP Total  $296.712.30

This Quotation is subject to any applicable sales tax and shipping and handling.charges that may apply. Tax and shipping charges are
considered estimated and will be recalculated at the time of shipment to ensure they take into account the most current information.

Ali returns must be processed within 30 days of receipt and require a return authorization number and are subject to a restocking fee,

Custom orders are not returnable. Effective tax rate will be applicable at the time of invoice.

I HETARERTARRA A page 1of 1
QT1872869




(v. February 10, 2022
U.S. Department 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
of Transportation Washington, DC 20590

Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety
Administration

DOT-SP 10915
(TWENTY-FIFTH REVISION)

EXPIRATION DATE: 2025-08-31

(FOR RENEWAL, SEE 49 CFR 107.109)

GRANTEE; Luxfer Gas Cylinders
Riverside, CA

PURPOSE AND LIMITATIONS:

a. This special permit authorizes the manufacture, mark, sale and use of a non-DOT
specification fully wrapped carbon-{iber reinforced aluminum lined cylinder for the
transportation in commerce of the materials authorized by this special permit. This
special permit provides no relief from the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR) other
than as specifically stated herein. The most recent revision supersedes all previous
revisions.

b. The safety analyses performed in development of this special permit only
considered the hazards and risks associated with transportation in commerce.

c. In accordance with 49 CFR 107.107(a) party status may not be granted to a
manufacturing permit. These packagings may be used in accordance with 49 CFR
173.22a.

REGULATORY SYSTEM AFFECTED: 49 CFR Parts 106, 107 and 171~ 180.

REGULATIONS FROM WHICH EXEMPTED: 49.CFR §§ 172.203(a) and 172.301(c)
in that the marking requirements are waived and §§ 173.302a(a)(1), 173.304a(a)(1), and
180.205 in that non-specification cylinders are not authorized, except as specified herein,

BASIS: This specia} permit is based on the application of Luxfer Gas Cylinders dated
February 23, 2021, submitted in accordance with § 107.105 and the public preceding
thereon and additional information dated December 8, 2021.




6.

Continuation of DOT-SP 10915 (25 Rev.) Page 2
February 10, 2022
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (49 CFR §172.101):
Hazardéus I\/Ia.tel;ials Description
Proper Shipping Name Hazard Identi- Packing
Class/ fication Group
Division Number

Air, compressed (containing up to 39% by 2.2 UN1002 N/A
volunie oxygen content)
Argon, compressed 2.2 UN1006 N/A
Carbon Dioxide 2.2 UNI1013 N/A
Carbon monoxide, compressed 23 UNI1016 N/A
Compressed gas, n.0.5. 2.2 UN1956 /A
Compressed gas, oxidizing, and n.0.s. 2.2 UN3156 N/A
Helium, compressed 2.2 UN1046 N/A
Hydrogen and carbon monoxide mixture, -2.3 UN2600 N/A
compressed
Hydrogen, compressed 2.1 UNI1049 N/A
Krypton, compressed 2.2 UN1056 N/A
Liquefied gas, n.0.5. 2.2 UN3163 N/A
Methane, compressed or Natﬁral gas, ) 21 | UN1§7 i N/A
compressed (with high methane content)
Neon, compressed 2.2 UN1065 N/A
Nitrogen, compressed 2.2 UN1066 N/A
Nitrous Oxide 2.2 UN1070 N/A
Oxygen, ébmpressed 2.2 UN1072 N/A
-Xenon., compressed _ _ 22 ) UN2036 “ N/A

Tracking Number: 2021124072




Continuation of DOT-SP 10915 (25% Rev.) Page 3
February 10, 2022

7. SAFETY CONTROL MEASURES:

a. PACKAGING: Packaging prescribed is a fully wrapped carbon-fiber reinforced
aluminum lined cylinder manufactured and marked in conformance with Basic
Requirements for Fully Wrapped Carbon-Fiber Reinforced Aluminum Lined Cylinders
(DOT-CFIC Fifth Revision), dated March 2007, except as follows:

CFFC-2 — Tvpe, Size and Service Pressure

* E %

The marked service pressure may not exceed 37,92 1kPa (5,500 psi1) at a reference
temperature of 21.1°C (70°F).

®OR %

CFFC -6 - Authorized Material and Identification of Material

(b)Filament Materials
(i) Carbon ﬂbers: d oo

The tensile strength may not exceed 6,205,282 kPa (900,000 psi), the modulus of
elasticity may not exceed 300 million kPa (43.5 million psi), and the strain to

failure may not be less than 1 percent.
I

CFFC-8(a) (iv) Threaded openings need not extend completely through the neck
and may be designed to allow full engagement of mating threads.

b. REQUALIFICATION:

(1)  Each cylinder must be requalified once every 5 vears by a qualified pe1son
holding a valid DOT RIN using either:

(i) Hydraulic proof pressure test equal to 5/3 times the marked service
pressure as defined in CGA Pamphlet C-1 Section 7 except the pressure
shall be maintained for a minimum of 3 minutes or;

(ify  Volumetrically tested to 5/3 times the marked service pressure by
the water jacket method as defined in CGA Pamphlet C-1 Section 5,
except that pressure shall be maintained for one minute and Permanent to
Total Expansion ratio does not apply. Elastic expansion result shall not
exceed the marked REE on the cylinder label.

(2)  Each cylinder must visually be inspected in accordance with the latest
edition of CGA Pamphlet C-6.2 Guidelines for Visual Inspection and Re-
qualification of Fiber Reinforced High Pressure Cylinders, except as specifically
noted herein:

Tracking Number: 2021124072



Continuation of DOT-SP 10915 (25% Rev.) Page 4

February 10, 2022

(1) Cylinders with fiber damage (cuts, abrasions, etc.) that exceeds
Level | type damage as defined in CGA Pamphlet C-6.2 and meet the
following depth and length criteria are considered to have Level 2
damage:

(A} Depth - Damage that upon visual inspection is seen to
penetrate the outer fiberglass layer but does not expose the carbon
layer beneath, or that has a measured depth of greater than 0,005
inch and less than 0.045 inch for cylinders with an outside
diameter greater than 7.5 inches or less than 0.035 inch for
cylinders 7.5 inches or less in outside diameter;

(B)  Length - Damage that has a maximum allowable length of:

Region

Direction of fiber damage Maximum length of
tamage

Cylinder sidewall and domes | Transverse to fiber direction | 20% of the straight sidewall

(longitudinal direction) section length
| Cylinder sidewall and domes | In fiber direction 20% of the straight sidewall -
(circumferential direction) section length

(i1) Cylinders with damage that meet the Level 2 criteria must be
rejected. Requalifiers must contact the cylinder manufacturer in the event
that the damage cannot be clearly interpreted based on these criteria.
Repair of rejected cylinders is authorized for Level 2 type damage.
Repairs must be made in accordance with CGA Pamplilet C-6.2, prior to
the hydrostatic pressure test. Repairs must be evaluated after the
hydrostatic test.

(1ii)  Cylinders that have direct fiber damage that penetrates through the
outer fiberglass layer and into the carbon layer, or that have a measured
damage depth of greater than the Level 2 maximum are considered to have
Level 3 type damage. Cylinders that have damage with depth meeting
Level 2, but ength exceeding the Level 2 maximum are considered to
have Level 3 type damage. Cylinders with Level 3 type damage are not
authorized to be repaired, and must be condemned.

(1v) A hydrostatic requalification may be repeated as provided in §
180.205(g); only two such tests are permitted. Pressurization prior to the
official hydrostatic test for the purpose of a systems check may not exceed
85% of the minimum required test pressure,

Tracking Number: 2021124072




Continvation of DOT-SP 10915 (25% Rev.) Page 5
February 10,2022

(3)  Persons who perform inspection and testing of cylindérs subject to this
special permit.must co24mply with § 180.205(b) and with all the terms and
conditions of this special permit.

(4)  Requalification date (month/year) must be applied on a label securely
affixed to the cylinder and over coated with epoxy, near the original test date.
Metal stamping of the composite surface is prohibited. The marking of the RIN
symbol on the cylinder certifies compliance with all of the terms and conditions
of this special permit. R

(2)  Cylinders may not be used for underwater breathing purposes.

(3)  Cylinders used in oxygen service or in nitrous oxide service must conform
with § 173.302(b)(1)-(3).

(4)  Cylinders used in Division 2.3 gas service such as carbon monoxide must
be in dedicated service for dry gases and meet all requirements of §180.209(b)(ii).

(5)  Requalification of cylinders by hydraulic proof pressure in Division 2.3
gas service such as carbon monoxide must meet the following requirements:

(1) Water exposure and duration of the water in the cylinder must
meet the requirement of CGA pamphlet C-22 to prevent liner pitting
corrosion;

(i) Inaddition to the visual inspection described in par 7.b of this
special permit, a comprehensive internal visual in accordance with CGA
pamphlet C6-2 must be performed to inspect for liner pitting. A cylinder
with any indication of liner pitting corrosion must be rejected.

‘(6) A cylinder that has been subjected to fire may not be returned to service.

(7)  Transportation of flammable gases is not authorized aboard passenger-
carrying aircraft or cargo vessel.

(8)  Transportation of oxygen is only authorized when in accordance with §
175.501.

(9)  Cylinders must be packaged in accordance with § 173.301(a)(9).

Tracking Number: 2021124072




Continuation of DOT-SP 10915 (25% Rev.) Page 6

10.

1L

February 10, 2022
SPECIAL PROVISIONS:

In accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (b) of § 173.22a, persons may use the
packaging authorized by this special permit for the transportation of the hazardous
materials specified in paragraph 6, only in conformance with the terms of this special
permit.

A person who is not a lrolder of this special permit, but receives a package covered by
this special permit, may reoffer it for transportation provided no modifications or changes
are made to the package and it is offered for transportation in conformance with this
special permit and the HMR.

¢ A current copy of this special permit must be maintained at each facility where
the package is offered or reoffered for transportation.

d. A current copy of this special permit must be maintained at each facility where
the packaging is manufactured under this special permit. It must be made available to a
DOT representative upon request.

e. Each packaging manufactured under the authority of this special permit must be
either (1) marked with the name of the manufacturer and location (city and state) of the
facility at which it is mannfactured or (2) marked with a registration symbol designated
for a specific manufacturing facility.

f. The cylinders described in this special permit are authorized only for normal
{ransportation as an article of commerce i.e., the movement of hazardous materials
packages from consignor to consignee.

g. . The requirements to mark shipping papers and packages with the special permit
number in accordance with §§ 172.203(a) and 172.301(c), respectively, are waived.

MODES OF TRANSPORTATION AUTHORIZED: Motor vehicle, rail freight, cargo
vessel, cargo-only aircraft, and passenger-carrying aircraft (see paragraphs 7.c.{7) and
7.¢.(8) for restrictions).

MODAL REQUIREMENTS: None required by this special permit.

COMPLIANCE: Failure by a person to comply with any of the following may result in
suspension or revocation of this special permit and penalties prescribed by the Federal
hazardous materials transportation law, 49 U.S.C. 510} et seq:

o All terms and conditions prescribed in this special permit and the Hazardous
Materials Regulations, 49 CER Parts 171-180.

0 Persons operating under the terms of this special permit must comply with the
security plan requirement in Subpart I of Part 172 of the HMR, when applicable,

‘Tracking Number: 2021124072



Continuation of DOT-SP 10915 (25% Rev.) Page 7
February 10, 2022

o . Registration required by § 107.601 et seq., when applicable,

Each "Hazmat employee”, as defined in § 171.8, who performs a function subject to this
special permit must receive training on the requirements and conditions of this special
permit in addition to the training required by §§ 172.700 through 172,704,

No person may use or apply this special permit, iucluding display of its number, when
this special permit has expired or is otherwise no longer in effect.

Under Title VII of the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act:
A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU)—"The Hazardous Materials Safety and Security
Reauthorization Act of 2005” (Pub. L. 109-59), 119 Stat. 1144 (August 10, 2005),
amended the Federal hazardous materials transportation law by changing the term
“exemption” lo “special permit” and authorizes a special permit to be granted up to two
years for new special permits and up to four years for renewals.

12. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Shipments or operations conducted under this special
permit are subject to the Hazardous Materials Incident Reporting requirements specified
in 49 CFR §§ 171.15 Immediate notice of certain hazardous materials incidents, and
171.16 Detailed hazardous materials incident reports. In addition, the grantee(s) of this
special permit must notify the Associate Administrator for Hazardous Materials Safety, in
writing, of any incident involving a package, shipment or operation conducted under
terms of this special permit.

Issued“in Washington, D.C.:

. O A Ny
N et _M.N“ i

for William Schoonover
Associate Administrator for Hazardous Materials Safety

Address all inquiries to: Associate Administrator for Hazardous Materials Safety, Pipeline and
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, East Building
PHH-30, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, Southeast, Washington, D.C. 20590.

Copies of this special permit may be obtained by accessing the Hazardous Materials Safety
Homepage at hitps://www.phmsa.dot.gov/approvals-and-permits/hazmat/special-permits-search.
Photo reproductions and legible reductions of this special permit are permitted. Any alteration of
this special permit is prohibited.

PO: Mark Toughiry/AE/KAH

Tracking Number: 2021124072




AGENDA ITEM #16



Planning and Development Services
410 W King crag o ﬁv

Kingsville, TX 78363 S‘ 7i
PH: 361-595-8055 e
$v-

MEMO

Date: November 15%, 2024

To: Mark McLaughlin (City Manager)

From: Erik Spitzer (Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: The City of Kingsville Planning and Development Services Department is seeking approval from

the City Commissioners and Mayor to approve a Budget Amendment to pay for the requlred full
set of 2024 International Building Codes (IBC) books

Summary: The Planning Department/City of Kingsville ordered the full set of 2024 IBC (15 Soft Cover Books) on 15
Nov for $1,242.79. During the 2025 Budget Process, the cost of this full set was unavailable. We are requesting
$1,242.79 from the General Fund be transferred to Planning Department’s Professional Services account GL #001-5-
1602-31400 to satisfy this pending invoice.

Background: On 28 October 2024, the City of Kingsville Commission passed an ordinance to approve the adoption of
the 2024 International Building Codes. On 18 November 2024, this ordinance went into effect. To satisfy the requirement
to have hard copy IBC books on hand, the Planning Department/City of Kingsville ordered the full set of 2024 IBC (15
Soft Cover Books) on 15 Nov.

The department recommends approving this budget amendment.

Erik Spitzer
Director of Planning and Development Services



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF IBC BOOKS FOR THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#12

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Expenditures - 5
1602 | Building Professional Services 31400 $1,242.79
1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $1,242.79

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to appropriate funding for the purchase of
IBC books for the Planning Department. Funding will come from the GF Budget Amendment
Reserve line item. There is currently $146,797.21 available for GF Budget Amendments.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose. .

V.
1



THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #17



Planning and Development Services @ o
410 W King CITY s =7

Kingsville, TX 78363 KiDOF 111

ngsville, :

PH: 361-595-8055 g}vz § e
Nl

MEMO

Date: November 15%, 2024
“To: Mark McLaughlin (City Manager)
From: Erik Spitzer (Director of Planning and Development Services)
Subject: The City of Kingsville Planning and Development Services Department is seeking approval from

the City Commissioners and Mayor to approve a Budget Amendment to pay for services performed
by Bureau Veritas

Summary: The Planning Department/City of Kingsville currently owes $6,179.08 for building inspections and plan
review fees performed by Bureau Veritas during the month of October. All fees collected for inspections and plan review
fees are paid directly to the General Fund. We are requesting $6,179.08 from the General Fund be transferred to Planning
Department’s Professional Services account GL #001-5-1602-31400 to satisfy this invoice.

Background: In the spring of this year, our only building inspector resigned and left the city; to continue continuity, the
Planning Department exercised an existing contract with Bureau Veritas to perform these city-required inspections. The
city’s Building Inspector position remains frozen, without the ability to fund nor advertise and hire this position for the
unforeseen future. In the meantime, we will need to pay for inspections performed by Bureau Veritas on a monthly basis.

The department recommends approving this budget amendment.

Erik Spitzer
Director of Planning and Development Services



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING FOR THE INSPECTION WORK BY BUREAU VERITAS FOR THE PLANNING
DEPARTMENT.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as foliows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#11

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget

No. Number Increase Decrease

Expenditures - 5
1602 | Building Professional Services 31400 $6,179.08 _ ,
1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $6,179.08

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to appropriate funding for the inspection work
by Bureau Veritas for the Planning Department. Funding will come from the GF Budget
Amendment Reserve line item. There is currently $148,040 available for GF Budget
Amendments.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.



V. :
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #18



Kingsville Parks & Recreation

For Information on events and facilitie
www.cityofkingsville.com/department/par

400 W. King (mailing)
501 Santiago Park Lane (physical)
Kingsville, Texas 78363

Emai

sivy@cityofkingsville.co

361-221-8705 or follow us on Faceboc
Susan lvy, Director Kingsville Parks and Recreatio

361-219-9125

To: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
From: Susan Ivy, Parks Director

Date: November 14, 2024

Re: City Commission Agenda Request ~ Resolution authorizing grant application to Ed Rachal Foundation for Recreation
Programs funding and Thompson Park Basketball lighting.

Summary — We are asking Commission to approve the resolution authorizing a grant application to the Ed Rachal
Foundation for recreation program funding and Thompson Park Basketball Court lighting.

History — Kingsville Parks and Recreation has experienced an increase in programming needed in our growing
community to provide healthy programming for kids and families. Our Healthy Family Partners initiative started back
in 2015 assists with funding for supplies, equipment, transportation and marketing of our programming. We are in
need of increased funding to fund labor to run our programs and events. We would like to apply for a $25,000 grant
from the Ed Rachal Foundation. We are asking that $7000.00 of our $25,000 grant application be budgeted for salaries

for our programs.

We would also request that $18,000 of the $25,000 application be used for new lighting at the basketball court at
Thompson Park. We have attached a quote from Mia Electric to provide that service. Additional funding in the amount
of $600 would be provided by Parks Budget.

Financial Impact: If grant is approved the award would add an additional $25,000 to the Parks budget to be expensed
as approved in the grant. ‘

Recommendation: Approve the resolution authorizing the application of the grant to Ed Rachal for Recreation programs
funding and Thompson Park Basketball lighting.



- GRANT APPLICATION

Ed Rachal Foundation

555 N. Carancahua St., Suite 700
Corpus Christi, TX 78401

ASERSE

Legal Name of Organization: City of Kingsville Parks and Recreation

Assumed Name / Doing Business As: Kingsville Parks and Recreation

Mailing Address: P. O. Box 1458

City: Kingsville v State Texas Zip Code 78364
Organization Website: www.cityofkingsville.com/departments/parks

Federal Tax ID# Year Established: 1914

501(c) (3) Yes No v

Type of Entity: Government Entity EI

Name of Executive Director: Sam R. Fugate

Title of Executive: Mayor, City of Kingsville

Phone Number 361-592-8002 Fax Number

Email Address  srfugate@sbcglobal.net

Name of Contact: Susan Ivy

Title of Contact: Director of Parks & Recreation

Mailing Address: P. O. Box 1458

City: Kingsville State 16Xas Zip Code 78364

Phone Number 3612218705 Fax Number

Email Address sivy@cityofkingsville.com




o

Total Organization Budget $ f QS')?; 7et. 5}(/ Number of Board Members 35
T 7 ?

Number of Paid Staff 45 includes maintenance/admilNumber of Volunteers varies

BECTION T ORGANIZA DN MISS IO NS T AT EMEN,

The Kingsville Parks & Recreation Department operates and maintains recreational programming, facilities,
open spaces and parks, organizes and assists with community cultural events and festivities and ‘
communicates all opportunities to enrich local quality of life services to the citizens of Kingsville, Texas.

ngsvﬂle Parks and Recreation is a department within the City of ngsvxlle Texas. We have 5 divisions,
Administrative, Golf Course, Maintenance, Recreation, Youth Baseball/Softball League.

As mentioned above we have 45 employees including seasonal staff that run summer rec camps, aquatics
facilities and activities and youth and adult baseball and softball. We have agreements with Kingsville Youth
Soccer Association, Kingsville Swim Team and Javelina Summer Track to assist with the operation of those
leagues as well.

We maintain and operate Dick Kleberg Park, a 468 acre park on the south side of Kingsville, 8 neighborhood
parks, L.E. Ramey Golf Course, Brookshire Pool, Flores Park Skate Park, 6 baseball fields, 6 softball fields,
10 soccer fields and 1 multipurpose field, disc golf field and numerous playgrounds units, picnic facilities and
the.Recreation Hall in Dick Kleberg Park.

We host and partner with numerous special events and programs such as Butterfly Blitz, Ranch Hand
Festival, La Posada de Kingsville, Spring Break events, Fiesta dela Loteria, Summer Camps, Kingsville

I Parks Youth Baseball and Softball League. We are now assisting Kingsville Independent School District
with camps and outdoor classroom events on some monthly Friday afternoons when they are out of school
due to a new 4 day school week.

IDate (1) completed 1528/2022~ || 174043

[Amount (2) | | [Date (2) |

{Amount (3) | {Date (3) |




Project Name Kingsville Parks Healthy Family Partnership and Thompson Park BBALL lighting
Requested Amount $ 25000 Type of Request Program Support [~

DESERIE DN DL REOES]

bt &

Our request consists of two elements.

1. $7,000 to support our Healthy Family Partnership to provide drug/alcohol/bully free education and
activities for kids and families in Kleberg County. The events include programming for all ages that provide
healthy living education and training to teach kids and families how to live healthier and more productive
lifestyles using local and nearby facilities and attractions.

a copy of our solicitation is attached to this application giving more information.

Our community and programming have grown and the need for additional workers is essential to us being
able to provide these programs. This"?,OOO will enhance our labor budget to be able to add some additional

staffing in this tough budget year.

2. Thompson Park is in a predominantly low income neighborhood in our community. We have been
working on improving the park the last several years to provide better recreational opportunities for the kids
and families there. The basketball court is used daily by kids and adults as well. There is currently one

'| security light on the court but it is inefficient in lighting the court for night play. Night play is crucial with
Kingsville being the high point on the weather report for heat index in late spring and summer into fall and
then time changes to early sundown limiting play time. This lighting will provide a much requested answer
to-those issues. We will seeking funding for same at our other three parks and our skate park eventually.
We have a quote for $18600 to complete this project and the Parks Budget will provide the additional $600
to complete the project. A copy of the quote is attached.

I have reviewed this application and all information provided herewith and believe it to be true, correct and
complete. I further represent that the governing body of the organization authorizes the preparation of this
form and the request for funds. I certify that the organization will keep and maintain adequate records to verify
the actual use of any funds received pursuant to this request and will fully cooperate with the Foundation's
independent auditors in the completion of the Foundation's annual audit and tax return. I further certify that

all funds will be utilized within the State of Texas and for the benefit of the residents of Texas.

Suco h\é/ - rxeacad

Signa?que Date

NOTE: Please submit with all required documents as stated in the Grant Guidelines




GRANT REPORT

GRANT NUMBER _2022-010 GRANT AMOUNT § 2>000.00

ORGANIZATION NAME; City of Kingsville

PROJECT NAME: __Baseball Field Lighting | Dick Kleberg Park Field #6

As per item #3 of the grant agreement: The orgonization will keep and maintain records of
expenditures adequate to readily verify the use of the grant funds. A report detdiling the expenditure of
grant funds will be completed aond returned to the Ed Rachal Foundation. Please attach any supporting
documentation you may have. - To date the grant funds awarded have been spent as described below:

These funds were used to co fund the installation of new lighting on baseball field #5 in Dick Kleberg
Park.

Remaining amount of grant funds $.0.00 . These remaining funds are expected to be spent
by this date
y [ 1177233

Date: A3

ED RACHAL FOUNDATION 555 N. CARANCAHUA, SUITE 700, CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 78401

Signed by Authorized Person

=




GRANT AGREEMENT

Grant Number 2022-010

Organization

City of Kingsville Parks & Recreation

Address PO Box 1458 Kingsville, TX 78363

Amount of Grant $25,000.00 Date of Payment l& / g J DR

Project Name Baseball Field Lighting | Dick Kleberg Park Field #6

‘The following terms are agreed upon as conditions for this grant:

L.

The tax-exempt status verified in the proposal is still valid; any changes in the
organization that could lead to a change in this status will be reported to the Ed Rachal

Foundation immediately.

The organization has considered the impact of this grant on its operations and determined
that this grant will not affect the organization’s public charity status.

The organization will keep and maintain records of expenditures adequate to readily
verify the use of the grant funds. A report detailing the expenditure of grant funds will be
completed and returned to the Ed Rachal Foundation. Please reference the grant number
assigned to this award in your report.

Grant funds will be used solely for the purposes described in the Grant Application. The
organization agrees to repay to the Ed Rachal Foundation any portion of the funds not
expended for the purposes outlined in the Grant Application, unless permission to
redirect the unused grant funds is authorized by the Ed Rachal Foundation.

The grant amount reflected above is the TOTAL extent to which the Ed Rachal
Foundation is financially obligated at this time. Should these funds be used for a
continuing progran:, any additional funds must be authorized pursuant « a separaie Giaii

Application.

The organization will cooperate fully with the Ed Rachal Foundation’s independent
auditors in the completion of the Ed Rachal Foundation’s annual audit.

All funds will be expended within the State of Texas and to the benefit of the residents of
Texas. No portion of the funds provided will be used for lobbying or political purposes.

Date

'
-\é%d«%v ’f'j/ 1-3& 5052
{

Signature

Nuste b Forvs Dicoed—

Printed Name and Tifle

ED RACHAL FOUNDATION | 555 N. CARANCAHUA ST., SUITE 700 | CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS 78401




Kingsville Parks & Recreation For Information on events and facilities

:.a..v

400 W. King {mailing) : g;svﬂle “1—._ www.citvofkingsville.com/department/parks

501 Santiago Park Lane (physical) Email:
Kingsville, Texas 78363 sivy@cityofkingsville.com
361-221-8705 or follow us on Facebook
Susan lvy, Director Kingsville Parks and Recreation

361-219-9125

TEXAS ~TTTT

Ed Rachal Foundation
C/O Board of Directors

Via email to info@Edrachal.org

Dear Board Members,

| would like to take this opportunity to thank you so much for your generous donation to the Kingsville Parks & Recreation
Department this year in the amount of $25,000 for the installation of new lighting on one of our newly renovated baseball

fields.

The project was co- funded by City of Kingsville, B.C. and Addie Brookshire Foundation and City of Kingsville. Happy to
report that the project was completed in January of this year and was a great blessing during our youth baseball and softball
season this spring. We registered 722 baseball and softball kids for a record enrollment for our Pony League youth ball
league. The lights helped us to have more games in a shorter period of time and will also help us attract teams for
tournament play in the coming years. We will be installing a plaque that will credit our funders of this project for all of our
donors. Will let you know when that is installed.

Again, we thank you for partnering with us to accomplish something so valuable to our community. We look forward to
working with you again in the future. A picture of the lighted field sits below.

Sincerely,

Susan lvy,

Director of Parks &
Recreation

City of Kingsville




CITY OF KINGSVILLE PURCHASE ORDER

PO Box 1458
Kingsville, TX 78364
PH: (361) 595-8025

PO Number: 230736 Date: 01/17/2023
Requisition #: REQ25175 Vendor #: 9564
ISSUED TO: MUSCO CORPORATION SHIP TO: Susan vy
P O BOX 200692 Attn:Susan vy
DALLAS, TX 75320-0692 501 Santiago Park Lane

Kingsville, TX 78363

ITEM - - UNITS DESCRIPTION GLACCT# : PROJACCT #. PRICE - AMOUNT

1 0 installation of lighting on ball field 6 121-5-4503-59113 0.00 193,000.00

[- T S NETUI N

O 00~

10.

éh, g/ ) / SUBTOTAL: 193,000.00
Authorized by: £ WAV AR ~ TOTALTAX. 0.00

SHIPPING: 0.00
TOTAL 193,000.00
. Original invoice with remittance slip must be sent to: City of Kingsville, PO Box 1458, Kingsville, TX 78364.
Payment may be expected within 30 days of receipt of goods and invoice.
C.0.D. shipment will not be d.
. Purchase Order numbers must appear on all shipping contai packing slips and invoices, Failure to comply with the above request may delay payment.

. All goods are to be shipped F.0.B. Destination unless otherwise stated.
. All materials and services are subject to approval based on the description on- the face of the purchase order or appendages thereof. Substitutions are not permitted without

approval of the Requesting Department. Material not approved will be returned at no cost to the City,

. All goods and equipment must meet or exceed all necessary city, state and federal standards and regulations.
, Vendor or manufacturer bears risk of loss or damage until property received and/or installed.
. Seller acknowledges that the buyer is an equal opportunity employer. Seller will comply with all equal opportunity laws and regulations that are applicable to it as a supplier

of the buyer.
The City is exempt from all federal excise and state tax ~ID# 74-6001513




Date: July 7, 2022 Project: Kleberg County Park Softball Phase 2

Expiration Date: September 7, 2022 Kingsville, TX

To: Susan lvy Ref: 119640
Parks & Recreation Director, Kleberg County

BuyBoard
Master Project: 196290, Contract Number: 592-19, Expiration: 09/30/2022
Commodity: Parks and Recreation Equipment and Field Lighting Products and Installation

All purchase orders should note the following:
BuyBoard purchase - Contract Number: 592-19

Quotation Price — Materials Delivered to Job Site and Installation

Field 1 — 315" X 3507 X 315 ... oeeeeeee ettt e v e e .5337,000
**Assumes 480v service is available within 150’ of the field

Field3-217"x 211’ x 216 ..................... her ettt ireaeereterra . —aaeerrraanaternrernanaas e 5 190,000
Field 4 - 200’ x 200’ x 200’ ...... fee et eerreereer e et trn e ana et e raaarans terreetrernreraenrnan 5 168,000

Fielt 6 =225 X 225 X 225" ..o .;/s 193,000

Sales tax and bonding are not included.
Quote is confidential. Pricing and lead times are effective for 60 days only. Prices are subject to change if the order is not
released within 60 days from the date of the purchase.

Light-Structure System™ with Total Light Control - TLC for LED™ technology
Guaranteed Lighting Performance
¢ Guaranteed light levels of 50fc Infield / 30fc Outfield and uniformity of 2:1/ 2.5:1
¢ BallTracker® technology — targeted light, optimizing visibility of the ball in play with no glare in the players typical
line-of-sight

System Description
e Factory aimed and assembled luminaries, including BaliTracker® luminaires
e {13) Galvanized steel poles
*  (13) Pre-cast concrete bases with integrated lightning grounding
* Pole length factory assembled wire harnesses
e  Factory wired and tested remote electrical component enclosures
e  Ullisted assemblies

Control Systems and Services
» Contral-Link® control and monitoring system to provide remote on/off and dimming (high/medium/low)} control
and performance monitoring with 24/7 customer support

Operation and Warranty Services

»  Product assurance and warranty program that covers materials and onsite labor, eliminating 100% of your
maintenance costs for 25 years

MU S C O, I

2016, 2022 Musce Sports Lighting, LLC -1-



= I3

P

"~

}Qné:;f\.z ille

2|

City of Kingsville, TX

Budget Report

Account Summary
For Fiscal: 10/2024-09/2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

11/15/2024 2:35:36 PM

Variance

Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable  Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity  {Unfavorable) Remaining

Fund: 001 - GENERAL FUND

Expense

001-5-4501-11100 Salaries & Wages 216,757.00 216,757.00 8,110.40 19,099.30 197,657.70 91.19%
001-5.4501-11200 Overtime 2,400.00 2,400.00 168.13 276.22 2,123.78  88.49%
001-5-4501-11301 Longevity - Non Civil Service 2,350.00 2,350.00 80.77 190.39 2,159.61 91.90%
001-5-4501-11400 Retirement - TMRS 20,505.00 20,505.00 759.86 1,778.54 18,726.06  91.33%
001-5-4501-11500 FICA 17,025.00 17,029.00 604.91 1,415.29 15,613.71 91.69%
001-5-4501-11600 Group Health [nsurance 65,252.00 65,252.00 2,115.49 4,986.51 60,265.49 92.36%
001-5-4501-11700 Workers' Compensation 580.00 580.00 0.00 33.89 546.11 94.16%
001-5-4501-11800 Unemployment Compensation 370.00 370.00 0.00 0.00 370.00 100.00 %
001-5-4501-12300 Life Insurance 316.00 316.00 25.56 51.12 264.88 83.82%
001-5-4501-21100 Supplies 1,590.00 1,590.00 0.00 0.00 1,590.00 100.00%
001-5-4501-21200 Uniforms & Personal Wear 525.00 525.00 0.00 0.00 525.00 100.00%
001-5-4501-21700 Minor Eq/Furniture 640.00 640.00 0.00 0.00 640.00 100.00%
001-5-4501-31100 Communications 552.00 552.00 0.00 45.23 506.77 91.81%
001-5-4501-31400 Professional Services 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 100.00%
001-5-4501-31600 Training & Travel 3,500.00 3,500.00 18.23 478.00 3,022.00 86.34 %
001-5-4501-31700 Memberships & Dues 3,430.00 3,430.00 0.00 0.00 3,430.00 100.00 %
001-5-4501-31900 Catering 108.00 108.00 0.00 0.00 108.00 100.00%
001-5-45031-32300 Utilities 104,688.00 104,688.00 0.00 422.85 104,265.15 99.60 %
001-5-4501-34400 Keep Kingsville Beautiful 6,600.00 6,600.00 0.00 0.00 6,600.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-11100 Salaries & Wages 198,437.87 198,437.87 7,933.07 17,701.14 180,736.73 91.08 %
001-5-4502-11200 Overtime 8,000.00 8,000.00 459.90 1,638.27 6,361.73 79.52 %
001-5-4502-11301 Longevity - Non Civil Service 1,514.00 1,514.00 41.54 97.92 1,41608 93.53%
001-5-4502-11400 Retirement - TMRS 17,743.30 17,743.30 701.39 1,689.00 16,054.30  90.48%
001-5-4502-11500 FICA 15,941,10 15,941.10 619.70 1,426.76 14,51434° 91.05%
001-5-4502-11600 Group Health Insurance 49,859,00 49,859.00 2,077.44 4,896.82 44,962.18  90.18%
001-5-4502-11700 Workers' Compensation . 5,336.50 5,336.50 0.00 368.23 4,968.27 93.10%
001-5-4502-11800 Unemployment Compensation 745.00 745.00 0.00 6.66 73834 99,11%
001-5-4502-12300 Life Insurance 420,00 420.00 25.30 50.59 36941 87.95%
001-5-4502-21100 Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%
001-5:4502:-21176 Irrigation Supplies 3,840.00 3,840.00 0.00 0.00 3,840.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-21177 Pro Shop Supplies 1,920.00 1,920.00 0.00 0.00 192000 100.00%
001-5-4502-21178 Maintenance Supplies 10,000.00 10,000.00 529.12 529.12 9,470.88 94.71%
001-5-4502-21179 Golf Course Accesories 2,880.00 2,880.00 0.00 0.00 2,880.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-21181 Greens Maintenance Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-21200 Uniforms & Personal Wear 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-21400 Chemicals 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-21402 Weed Control Chemicals 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 100.00%
- 001-5-4502-21403 Pesticide Chemicals 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-21404 Fertilizer 17,000.00 17,000.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-21500 Motor Gas & Oil 12,500.00 12,500.00 0.00 1,584.18 10,915.82 87.33%
001-5-4502-21700 Minor Eq/Furniture 1,600.00 1,600.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-23500 Merchandise-Cost of Goods Sold 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-23501 Alcoho! - Cost of Goods Sold 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 1,279.57 13,72043  91.47%
001-5-4502-31100 Communications 8,866.56 8,866.56 359.00 882,78 7,983.78  90.04%
001-5-4502-31300 Postage 90.00 90.00 0.00 0.00 50.00  100.00%
001-5-4502-31400 Professional Services 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 276.41 5,723.59 95.39%
001-5-4502-31410 ProfSrv-Sftware Mnt 316.00 316.00 0.00 0.00 316.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-31425 Prof. Services-GPS 192.00 192.00 0.00 32.00 160.00 83.33%
001-5-4502-31500 Printing & Publishing 768.00 768.00 0.00 0.00 768.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-31600 Training & Travel 1,440.00 1,440.00 0.00 0.00 1,440.00 100.00%
Page 1 of §




For Fiscal: 10/2024-09/2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

Budget Report
Variance

Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable  Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity {Unfavorable) Remaining
001-5-4502-31800 Equipment Rent 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-31900 Catering 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-32100 State Fees 500.00 500.00 0.00 250.00 25000 50.00%
001-5-4502-32300 Utilities 44,400.00 44,400.00 0.00 0.00 44,400.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-32400 Laundry 900.00 900.00 0.00 90.84 809.16 89.91%
001-5-4502-34200 CC Discount Fees 8,604.00 8,604.00 0.00 0.00 8,604.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-41100 Vehicle Maintenance 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.00%
001-5-4502-41400 Equipment Maintenance 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 240.64 5,259.36 95.62%
001-5-4502-51100 Building Maintenance 960.00 960.00 0.00 0.00 960.00 100.00 %
001-5-4502-53100 Grounds & Perm Fixtures 9,095.00 9,095.00 9,713.00 9,713.00 -618.00 -6.79%
001-5-4502-64100 Operating Lease 73,914.24 73,914.24 256.73 6,140.28 67,773.96 91.69%
001-5-4503-11100 Salaries & Wages 342,202.00 342,202.00 12,093.07 28,922.73 313,279.27 91.55%
001-5-4503-11200 Overtime 20,581.00 20,581.00 365.87 1,343.61 19,237.39  93.47%
001-5-4503-11301 Longevity - Non Civil Service 3,000.00 3,000.00 76.17 179.54 2,820.46 94.02%
001-5-4503-11400 Retirement - TMRS 33,809.00 33,809.00 1,139.45 2,767.54 31,041.46 91.81%
001-5-4503-11500 FICA 28,207.00 28,207.00 923.19 2,250.79 25,956.21 92.02%
001-5-4503-11600 Group Health insurance 82,386.00 82,386.00 3,792.47 8,025.64 74,360.36  90.26 %
001-5-4503-11700 Workers' Compensation 8,397.00 8,397.00 0.00 438,65 7,958.35 94.78%
001-5-4503-11800 Unemployment Compensation 1,170.00 1,170.00 0.00 0.00 1,170.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-12300 Life Insurance 623.00 623.00 47.52 88.92 53408 85.73%
001-5-4503-21100 Supplies 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 21.12 14,978.88 99.86%
001-5-4503-21200 Uniforms & Personal Wear 1,224.00 1,224.00 0.00 0.00 1,224.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-21402 Weed Control Chemicals 1,900.00 1,900.00 0.00 0.00 1,900.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-21403 Pesticide Chemicals 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-21404 Fertilizer 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-21500 Motor Gas & Ol 24,000.00 24,000.00 0.00 2,161.76 21,838.24  90.99%
001-5-4503-21700 Minor Eq/Furniture 11,230.00 11,230.00 0.00 0.00 11,230.00  100.00 %
001-5-4503-31100 Communications 12,816.00 12,816.00 566.91 1,920.52 10,895.48  85.01%
001-5-4503-31400 Professional Services 8,050.00 8,050.00 0.00 0.00 8,050.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-31425 Prof. Services-GPS 1,152.00 1,152.00 0.00 192.00 960.00 83.33%
001-5-4503-31500 Printing and Publishing 1,110.00 1,110.00 0.00 0.00 1,110.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-31600 Training and Travel 800.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-31700 Membership and Dues 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-31800 Equipment Rent 4,580.00 4,580.00 0.00 0.00 4,580.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-32100 State Fees 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-32300 Utilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.23 -33.23 0.00%
001-5-4503-32400 Laundry 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 175.72 1,924.28 91.63%
001-5-4503-41100 Vehicle Maintenance 4,320,00 4,320.00 0.00 0.00 4,320.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-41400 Equipment Maintenance 8,750.00 8,750.00 0.00 1,208.88 7,541.12 86.18%
001-5-4503-51100 Building Maintenance 240.00 240.00 0.00 0.00 240.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-59100 Grounds & Perm Fixtures 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-59105 Bandstand Relocation 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-59110 Brookshire Park-1 1,080.00 1,080.00 0.00 0.00 1,080.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-59111 Brookshire Park-Pool 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-59112 Corral Park 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-53113 Dick Kieberg Park 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00 406.09 7,093.91 9459%
001-5-4503-59114 Flato Park 605.00 605.00 0.00 0.00 605.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-59115 Flores Park 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 100.00 %
001-5-4503-59116 Thompson Park 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-59117 Dog Park 480.00 480.00 0.00 0.00 480.00 100.00%
001-5-4503-64100 Operating Lease 3,320.00 3,320.00 0.00 253.72 3,066.28 92.36%
001-5-4512-11100 Salaries & Wages 157,290.00 157,290.00 5,559.80 14,409.69 142,880.31 90.84%
001-5-4512-11200 Overtime 2,000.00 2,000.00 302.15 954,49 1,04551 52.28%
001-5-4512-11301 Longevity - Non Civil Service 845.00 845.00 20.77 48.96 796.04 94.21%
001-5-4512-11400 Retirement - TMRS 14,812.88 14,812.88 509.32 1,375.64 13,437.24 90.71%
001-5:4512-11500 FICA 12,315.00 12,315.00 429.22 1,130.06 11,184.94  90.82%
001-5-4512-11600 Group Health Insurance 34,067.00 34,067.00 1,787.00 4,212.21 29,854.79 87.64%
001-5-4512-11700 Workers' Compensation 4,119.00 4,119.00 0.00 226.19 3,892.81 9451%
Page 2 of 5

11/15/2024 2;35:36 PM




For Fiscal: 10/2024-09/2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

11/15/2024 2:35:36 PM

Budget Report
Variance

Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable  Percent
Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity (Unfavorable) Remaining
001-5-4512-11800 Unemployment Compensation 468.00 468,00 0.00 0.00 468.00 100.00 %
001-5-4512-12300 Life Insurance 1381.00 191.00 15.30 30.60 160.40 83.98 %
001-5-4513-11100 Salaries & Wages 144,060.50 144,060.50 1,429,90 3,856.01 140,204.49 97.32%
001:5:4533-11200 Overtime 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.77 -25.77 0.00%
001-5-4513-11500 FICA 11,155.25 11,159.25 109.39 296.96 10,862.29 97.34%
001-5-4513-11700 Workers' Compensation 3,320.04 3,320.04 0.00 61.57 3,258.47 9815%
001-5-4513-11800 Unemployment Compensation 3,689.00 3,689.00 5.53 21.15 3,667.85 99.43 %
001-5-4513-21100 Supplies 1,248.00 1,248.00 0.00 0.00 1,248.00 100.00 %
001-5-4513-21200 Uniforms & Personal Wear 880.00 880.00 0.00 0.00 880.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-21401 Poo! Chemicals 25,500.00 25,500.00 0.00 0.00 25,500.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-21700 Minor Equip/Furniture 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00 %
001:-5-4513-22401 Safety / First Aid 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %
001-5-4513-31100 Communications 912.00 912.00 0.00 76.02 83598  91.66%
001-5-4513-31400 Professional Services 7,680.00 7,680.00 0.00 0.00 7,680.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-31441 Special Events & Festivals 6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00 1,215.00 5,285.00 8131%
001-5-4513-31495 5k Event 1,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 1,244.00 756.00 37.80%
001-5-4513-31496 Track Team 900.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 100.00 %
001-5-4513-31497 Swim Team 900.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 100.00 %
001-5-4513-31498 Adult Softball League 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-31499 Recreational Programs 7,820.00 6,820.00 0.00 195.00 6,625.00 97.14%
001-5-4513-31500 Printing & Publishing 1,440.00 1,440.00 0.00 0.00 1,440.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-31600 Training & Travel 1,296.00 1,296.00 0.00 0.00 1,296.00 100.00 %
001-5-4513-34001 Advertising Services 2,592,00 2,592.00 0.00 0.00 2,592.00 100.00%
001-5-4513-34200 CC Discount Fees 5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 345.05 505495 93.61%
Expense Total: 2,112,161.24 2,112,161.24 63,772.57 157,786.38 1,954,374.86 92.53%
Fund: 001 - GENERAL FUND Total: 2,112,161.24 2,112,161.24 63,772.57 157,786.38 1,954,374.86 92.53%
Report Total: 2,112,161.24 2,112,161.24 63,772.57 157,786.38 1,954,374.86 92,53%
Page 3 of 5




DYAGATN f° AINAOD :OS.N&.—OQW:.W s)jaed

"G0L8-122-19¢ e 92140 i
jied 9y} joejuod aseajd saujied e dawosaq o) "Ajunos ®=ﬂ
Biagaly pue a|iasBuly Jo suaziio ayj) 03 uonewIojul pue SJUaAd " A, 0
Buian Ayyeay pue aaa A|Ing/joyoaje/Bnip Buiig 0} sisujlied \\\,&% - X 11D

Anwed Ayyjeay sjnasBury ay3 Aq 340550 aaeRIOqR|I0D € ST SIYL

N , Q_ _ sappuno) Apaua)| pue 81aqa))

= BIHASEUD

foudiepossy, Wl
WY LV SAINHOLLY .@Dﬂ ?fﬁ NOISN3ALX3
H39uvaaNIT * ERIBIR D)
WRYV SYXiaL
. m.%@.wﬁ_. Png m._ae:.% ’_Jaﬂ.ﬂm% *m Qm-.VH—H

SUTIELET VoD IsE
iuio} Joliog ¥ of toBpug BUpIing M‘q \ il TN R
._m-.\..m i .

LByl 2R
1o5iepunogd
g nley jeysip

U3 B1PR00 U,

HIIAS yul ueld YIEOH pmu
HONVH ONTY] IR 7 sy e

UOonepuUnoOg 123U SSBU[S/\ pue UoHEjIqeYSY w
N jedisAyd Ajiwey uoisjod) ay |
> UO[3TY;

o 47
S1ogory] 1errdsol] AN W i M H.h mE _ mg > -

NHOdS SNISIIHD &

uolnpPUNO4 AllYs>joo.g
SIPpPV 2 D'd



RESOLUTION # 2024-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE
ED RACHAL FOUNDATION FOR GRANT FUNDS FOR PARK RECREATIONAL
PROGRAM FUNDING AND THOMPSON PARK BASKETBALL COURT LIGHTING
IMPROVEMENTS.

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville has prioritized the
improvement of the athletic facilities and healthy recreational programs; and

WHEREAS, Kingsville Parks and Recreation has experienced an increase in
recreational programming and special events are needed to provide quality of life
opportunities for kids and families in Kingsville; and

WHEREAS, Thompson Park has many kids and adults using the basketball court on a
regular basis and with extreme heat in summer and early sunsets in winter there is a
need for better lighting on the court; and

WHEREAS, the cost to install new lighting has been quoted at about $18,000 and the
need for additional programming and labor costs is estimated at about $7,000, which
creates a total grant request of $25,000; and

WHEREAS, the Ed Rachal Foundation provides funding assistance with non-profits and
governmental agencies in South Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville finds it in the best interest of
the citizens of Kingsville that the Kingsville Parks Department participate in an
application for grant monies for lighting equipment at Thompson Park basketball court
and for additional recreational programming funds; and

WHEREAS, the Ed Rachal Foundation does not require a cash match and may award
part, none, or all of the funds requested, though any monetary award would require a
budget amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Kingsville through this resolution has
authorized the Parks Director to submit a grant application requesting $25,000 in
funding and to administer the grant and necessary paperwork if the grant is awarded to
the City with any funding shortfalls coming from the Park’s Budget;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:



l.
THAT the City Commission approves the submission of a grant application to the Ed
Rachal Foundation for Park Recreational Program Funding and Thompson Park
Basketball Court Lighting Improvements, with no anticipated cash match and authorizes
the Parks Director to submit the grant and administer the grant and necessary
paperwork if the grant is awarded to the City.

Il.
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission the 25th day of
November, 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #19



City of Kingsville Parks & Recreation

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Susan Ivy, Parks Director
DATE: November 14, 2024

SUBJECT: Request for approval of State Energy Conservation Office (SECO) award and
authorize City Manager to sign contract for same.

Summary:
We are asking for Commission to approve the $25,000 award from SECO and authorize City
Manager Mark McLaughlin to sign same.

Background:

Kingsville Parks and Recreation has applied for and been awarded the sum of $25,000 through
the Texas State Comptroller’s office and the State Energy Conservation Office (SECO). The
grant is a reimbursement grant and there is no match required. These Grant funds are
awarded for the purpose of changing out the old lighting in and around the Recreation Hall at |
Dick Kleberg Park to use a more efficient source such as LED Lighting. A quote we received
from Mia Electric was used to apply for the grant and a copy of it is attached.

Financial Impact:
This project would increase funding available to complete the lighting project proposed by
$25,000.

Recommendation:
City staff recommends that the City Commission approve the SECO grant award and authorize
City Manager Mark McLaughlin to sign same.



From: Mia Electrical Services Date: 8/8/24
P.O. Box701
Kingsville, Tx 78364 Quote: # 102604
361-228-0506 TECL 26788

To: City of Kingsville Parks Dept.
P. 0. Box 512 Job Name: Rec Hall Lighting
Kingsville, Tx 78364

I here by submit specifications and estimates for:

1) Installing (12) LED 2X4 FLAT PANEL SWITCHABLE LUMENS (3833-6027) COLOR (35K 4K 5K) 80 CRI 120V-277V 0-10V Dimming
white fixtures in the main slope ceiling with dimming switches.

2.) Installing surface RAB GUS4-50W/D10 SURFACE WRAP 4FT 50W 5000K 0-10V DIM 120-277V WH fixtures in back area low
ceiling and in the (3) rear storages rooms.

3.) Installing (1) 2x4 FLAT PANEL SWITCHABLE LUMENS (3833-6027) COLOR (35K 4K 5K) 80 CRI 120V-277V white fixture in the
Kitchen area.

4.) Installing (1) 2x4 FLAT PANEL SWITCHABLE LUMENS {3833-6027) COLOR (35K 4K 5K) 80 CRI 120V-277V white fixture in the
front storage room and (2) LITH CPX 2X2 ALO7 SWW7 M4 LED 2X2 SWITCHABLE LUMENS (2300 - 4200) SWITCHABLE COLOR
TEMP (35K-50k) in the back part of storage room. Will need to re-do the grids to be able to accomdate the new fixtures.

5.) Will use the existing 120v wiring, but run new low-voltage wiring for the dimming of the hall lights.

6.) Install (6) LUMARK CLCS17S 10IN SML LED SURFCE MNT CANPY SLCT WATT(40-60W)LUMNS(5500-8000)CLR(35 4K S5K) 80CRI
120V-277V DRK BRNZ in the front canopy.

7.} Install (5) Acuity Brand ATBL cobra head fixtures on (4) light poles around parking lot.

Total- $20,450.00

I hereby propose to furnish labor and material-complete with the above specifications, for the sum of

Twenty Thousand Six Hundred Fifty Dollars} with payments made as follows:

Full payment once job is completed.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alter-
ations or deviations from above specifications involving extra will be executed only upon written request orders, and will become an extra
charge over and above this estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delay beyond our controi. This proposal is sub-
Jject to acceptance within 30 days and is void thereatter at the option ot the undersigned.

Jose Andrade-Owner

Acceptance of Proposal
The above prizes, specifications and conditions are hereby accepted.
You are authorized to do work as specified. Payments will be made as outlined above.

Accepted:

Date:

“Regulated by The Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation, P.0. Box 12157, Austin, Tx 78711, 1-800-803-9202 512-463-6599; website:
www.license.state.tx.us/complaints"”



RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING SECO GRANT AWARD AND AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO ACT ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH SUCH PROGRAM; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Kingsville Parks Department was recently notified that it had been
awarded a State Energy Conservation Office (SECO) grant through the Texas State
Comptroller in the amount of $25,000; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of grant funds is changing out the old lighting in and around
the Recreation Hall at Dick Kleberg Park to use a more efficient source such a LED
Lighting; and

WHEREAS, there is no cash match tied to the use of these funds;

WHEREAS, the use of the funds is a benefit to the citizens of this City as well as the
department.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of

Kingsville, Texas:
l.

THAT the City accepts the $25,000 grant award from the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts for SECO funds to be used for changing out the old lighting in and around the
Recreation Hall at Dick Kleberg Park to use a more efficient source such a LED Lighting
and authorizes the City Manager to act on the City’s behalf with such grant and funds.

Il
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on or after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the _25t
day of November , 2024.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #20



City of Kingsville
Police Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: John Blair, Chief of Police

DATE: November 15, 2024

SUBJECT: Receipt of the Body-Worn Camera Grant Program Funds for FY2025

Summary:
The police department is requesting approval for acceptance of funds from the Office of the Governor

and a budget amendment to place the funds in Fund 207-5-2100-71200.

Background:

The Police Department is committed to enhancing transparency, accountability, and public trust through
the implementation of advanced technologies that support effective law enforcement practices. In
alignment with this commitment, KPD applied for the Body-Worn Camera Grant offered by the Office of
the Governor for fiscal year 2025.

The grant funds are specifically allocated for the acquisition of body-worn cameras, digital video storage
and retrieval systems, or cloud-based services. Additionally, subscriptions or leasing services that align
with the 12-month performance period outlined in the grant are eligible for funding. The implementation
of this technology will further enhance officer accountability, provide critical evidence in investigations,
and strengthen community relationships through greater transparency.

As a qualifying agency, KPD has met all statutory requirements as defined in the Texas Occupations Code.
These include compliance with the necessary policies, officer eligibility, training standards, and reporting
obligations. These measures ensure that the department is well-prepared to effectively deploy body worn
cameras and manage the associated technology in accordance with state guidelines.

Financial Impact:
A total of $46,479.37 was received for the purpose of obtaining and upgrading the police departments

body-worn camera program.

Recommendation:
We request that the City Commission authorize the receipt and expenditure of these funds in the manner

for which they were provided by the Office of the Governor.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-_

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND THE OGG GRANT AWARD FOR THE BODY WORN CAMERA GRANT
PROGRAM #5094901.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#13

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. , Number Increase Decrease

Revenues
0000 | Non-Dept State Grants 72010 $46,479.37
0000 | Transfer Transfer from General Fund 86000 $15,493.13

Expenditures
2100 | Police Machinery & Equipment 71200 $61,972.50

Fund 001 — General Fund -
Expenditures
6900 | Transfer Transfer to Fund 207 80207 $15,493.13
1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $15,493.13

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the OGG Grant award
for the Body Worn Camera Grant Program #5094901. Funding will come from the Grant award
for the stated purpose along with matching funds of $15,493.13. The matching funds will come
from GF Budget Amendment Reserve line item. There is currently $140,618.13 available for
GF Budget Amendments.]

The General Fund has budgeted $300,000 for FY 24-25 budget amendments. The following
budget amendments have been previously submitted:

e BA#1-PW Parking Lot - $74,060

e BA #4 — City Hall A/C - $65,100



BA #10 — Fire Station #2 Plumbing Repairs - $12,800

BA #11 — Bureau Veritas Inspection Services - $6,179.08
BA #12 — Planning IBC Books - $1,242.79

Total Previously Submitted BA’s - $159,381.87

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, .City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #21



City of Kingsville
Police Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: John Blair, Chief of Police

DATE: November 15, 2024

SUBJECT: Receipt of the Local Border Security Program Funds for FY2025

Summary:
The police department is requesting approval for acceptance of funds from the Office of the Governor and
a budget amendment to place the funds in Fund 017.

Background:

The Kingsville Police Department (KPD) remains steadfast in its commitment to public safety and border
security. In support of these efforts, KPD applied for the Local Border Security Program (LBSP) grant
offered by the Office of the Governor to support Operation Border Star during the fiscal year 2025.

This program enhances interagency law enforcement operations, leveraging intelligence-based strategies to
deter and interdict criminal activity. The grant funding allows for increased law enforcement patrols,
equipment acquisition, training, and operational support, all aimed at reducing border-related crime,
disrupting gang and cartel operations, and preventing drug trafficking and human smuggling.

As an eligible participant, KPD meets all program-specific requirements, including collaboration with the
Texas Department of Public Safety’s Joint Operations and Intelligence Centers (JOIC), intelligence-
sharing, and conducting enhanced patrol activities. The department will utilize the funding to support
strategic patrols, increase operational capabilities, and address identified threats through intelligence-driven

initiatives.

Financial Impact:
Atotal of $78,000 was received for the purpose of support for the department’s border security initiatives
and related law enforcement operations. This funding is essential to safeguarding the citizens of Kingsville

and strengthening public safety.

Recommendation:
We request that the City Commission authorize the receipt and expenditure of these funds in the manner
for which they were provided by the Office of the Governor.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-_

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND THE LOCAL BORDER SECURITY PROGRAM GRANT AWARD #2994110 FOR
POLICE OVERTIME.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#16

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 017 — PD Border Star Grant ‘ ' ‘ s

Revenues

2100 | Police State Grants 72010 $78,000

Expenditures

2100 | Police Overtime 11201 $64,796

2100 | Police Retirement 11400 $7,237

2100 |-Police FICA 11500 $5,967

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the Local Border
Security Grant Program #2994110. Funding will come from the Grant award for the stated
purpose.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of

1




competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

\VA
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #22



City of Kingsville
Police Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: John Blair, Chief of Police

DATE: November 15, 2024

SUBJECT: Receipt of the Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program Funds for
FY2025

Summary:

The police department is requesting approval for acceptance of funds from the Bureau of Justice Assistance
and a budget amendment to place the funds in Fund 108.

Background:

The Kingsville Police Department (KPD) is dedicated to ensuring the safety and protection of its officers as
they serve the community. To support this mission, KPD applied for funding through the Patrick Leahy
Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP), administered by the Bureau of Justice Assistance. This program
reimburses eligible agencies for up to 50% of the cost of body armor vests purchased for law enforcement
officers.

Body armor is a critical piece of safety equipment that enhances officer protection in the field. The BVP
grant funding will allow KPD to replace outdated vests and provide new officers with state-of-the-art body
armor that meets current safety standards. This initiative supports KPD’s ongoing commitment to officer
safety while ensuring fiscal responsibility.

The department has met all eligibility requirements for the program, and the acceptance of these funds
will alleviate budgetary constraints while enhancing operational readiness.

Financial Impact:
A total of $9,084.26 was received for the purpose of support for the department’s bulletproof vest
program. This grant does have 50% match.

Recommendation:
We respectfully request that the City Commission authorize the receipt and expenditure of these funds in
the manner for which they were provided by the Bureau of Justice Assistance.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND THE PATRICK LEAHY BULLETPROOF VEST GRANT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#17

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Revenues

2100 | Police Federal Grants 72005 $9,084.26

2100 | Police Transfer From GF 001 75001 $9,084.26

Expenditures

2100 | Police Uniforms 21200 $18,168.52

Fund 001 — General Fund ~

6900 | Transfer Transfer To Fund 108 80108 $9,084.26

1030 | City Special | Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $9,084.26

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the Patrick Leahy
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant Program. 50% funding will come from the Grant award for
the stated purpose. The other 50% will come from the General Fund Budget Amendment
Reserve line item. There is currently $125,125.00 available for budget amendments.]

The General Fund has budgeted $300,000 for FY 24-25 budget amendments. The following
budget amendments have been previously submitted:
e BA#1—-PW Parking Lot - $74,060
BA #4 — City Hall A/C - $65,100
BA #10 — Fire Station #2 Plumbing Repairs - $12,800
BA #11 — Bureau Veritas Inspection Services - $6,179.08
BA #12 — Planning IBC Books - $1,242.79

1



e BA#13 - Cash Match on BW Camera Grant - $15,493.13
e Total Previously Submitted BA’s - $174,875.00

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V. ‘
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #23



City of Kingsville
Police Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: John Blair, Chief of Police

DATE: November 15, 2024

SUBJECT: Receipt of the Operation Lone Star Grant Program Funds for FY2025
Summary:

The police department is requesting approval for acceptance of funds from the Office of the Governor
and a budget amendment to place the funds in Fund 208.

Background:
The Police Department is committed to ensuring public safety and addressing border-related criminal

activity through proactive and collaborative law enforcement efforts. In support of these objectives, KPD
applied for the Operation Lone Star Grant offered by the Office of the Governor. This grant provides
funding to eligible agencies to enhance law enforcement operations directly impacted by border
security and related criminal activities.

The grant supports initiatives such as increased patrols, specialized training, equipment procurement,
and enhanced operational capabilities. These resources enable law enforcement agencies to address
human trafficking, drug smuggling, and other criminal activities that pose a threat to community safety.
KPD has fulfilled all eligibility requirements, including the establishment of operational plans and
accountability measures to ensure effective use of the grant funds. By leveraging this funding, KPD will
bolster its ability to protect the Kingsville community and support regional efforts to combat border-
related crime.

Financial Impact:
A total of $484,401.45 was received for the purpose of support for the department’s border security
initiatives and related law enforcement operations. This funding is essential to safeguarding the citizens
of Kingsville and strengthening public safety. The Budget Categories:
e Personnel - $191,272.07
Contractual - $2,500.00
Travel and Training - $78,490.00
Equipment - $205,631.38
Supplies and Direct Operating Expenses - $6,508.00




City of Kingsville
Police Department

Recommendation: , _
We request that the City Commission authorize the receipt and expenditure of these funds in the manner
for which they were provided by the Office of the Governor.




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND THE OPERATION LONE STAR GRANT PROGRAM AWARD #4385703 FOR

'VARIOUS POLICE DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
. funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#15

Dept | Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 208 — Operation Lone Star Grant o ‘ e '

Revenues

2100 | Police State Grants 72010 $484,401.45

Expenditures

2100 | Police Salaries & Wages 11100 $146,433.07

2100 | Police Overtime 11200 $12,460.00

2100 | Police Retirement 11400 $17,746.00

2100 | Police FICA 15000 $14,633.00

2100 | Police Animal Care 21900 $3,808.00

2100 | Police Training & Travel 31600 $78,490.00

2100 | Police Machinery & Equipment 71200 $205,631.38

2100 | Police Vehicle Maintenance 41100 $5,200.00

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 24-25 budget to accept and expend the Operation Lone
Star Grant Program #4385703. Funding will come from the Grant award for the stated

purpose.]




THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

R\
THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 25th day of November 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 9th day of December 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #24



SILY OF KINGSVILLE

P.0. BOX 1458 — KINGSVILLE, TEXAS 78364

Date: October 30, 2024
To: City Commission via City Manager Mark McLaughlin
CC: Courtmey Alvarez, City Attorney; Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary;

From: Janine Reyes, Director of Tourism Services

Summary: Tourism is in need of a parking lot overlay at the Visitors Center off the highway
and would like to complete the job prior to the opening of the adjoining Fuel America and
the centennial celebrations at Texas A&M University-Kingsville in order to improve the
aesthetics for visitors arriving in town.

Additonally, in order to salvage two mature trees on site and make use of adjoining space
between Fuel America and Tourism facilities, we would like to install a small dog park to
draw visitors to our space to market upcoming events and our community.

Tourism would like to request a budget amendment to cover these costs and has
earmarked both ARPA funds and recommends the use of Fund Balance to pay for this
project. Design and quotes attached.

Financial Impact: Total request is $94,126.06. The breakdown is as follows:

14 loads of Hot Mix from Corpus Christi to Kingsville at $250 per load: $3,500.00
280 tons HMAC from Bay Plant total: $26,292.00

Labor for Overlay from Sanford and Sons: $46,304.00

Dog Park Fencing from S & J Fence Co. Materials: $5,004.56

Dog Park Fencing Installation from S & J Fence Co.: $5,837.50

7 piece Best In Show Kit from The park and Facilities: $7,188.00

Staff recommends $28,067.72 be funded from Tourism ARPA funds. This would exhaust
Tourism’s ARPA funds and completely cover the cost of HMAC from Bay Plant, leaving a
balance of $1,775.72 to be applied towards the 14 loads of HOT Mix from Corpus Christi
to Kingsville.

Staff additionally recommends utilizing $66,058.34 from Fund Balance to cover the
remaining expenses for this project.

Recommendation: Staff recommends that Commission approve a budget amendment in
the amount of $66,058.34 to be funded from Tourism’s Fund Balance to cover the cost of
the parking lot overlay and dog park installation. Staff also recommends.using Tourism
ARP funds to cover $28,067.72 of the project expenses as outlined in this memo.




CITY OF KINGSVILLE 5
2024 i
TOURISM - VISITORS CENTER/ DOG PARK mm mmMm
— b
N g Lz oy
[ = 114 N_ R
Ry Z _N_T % A
i = N H /
i hd g 1
= M Bl |
WSy === : 8l
P . =1 - T PROJECT LOCATION mww 2
LN E : NN R Halils
1 |
W T~
b= C
5 SHEET INDEX X
1" _ - : 1] SHEET __TITLE &
u ; 1 COVER SiEET _— [N
[~ 2 m ; : g A entoas g
] ; H 4 ensmevsm RS 3 . [
H .
i x_mw jV =
N » A 1 L = | g
o M S 7= 5|
A ] &
/ \/__l(a %\‘N_ d m N
=1 / ( m 8
MAYOQOR | —1 i W
SAM FUGATE — _”// i ER e . M.
CITY MANAGER N-LE S m
MARK MCLAUGHLIN /H.r\!!\\% L\ f N ﬁ.ﬁmﬂn =
T ) SR
CITY_COMMISSIONERS 1 \ ; ./..../u \\m..,.%ﬁss.“.. m
HECTOR M. HINOJOSA L a AR
NORMA NELDA ALVAREZ \
LEO ALARCON e
EDNA LOPEZ LOCATION MAP _
NOT TOSCALE R RILO P, MORA R, PE. HO. 111382
SEPTEMBER 2024 . SHEET
1




N

HES111 0% Td W vOn d

ECVAR

NVd 21IS 107 ONDIYV ¥3LN3D SHOLISIA ONILSIXT W

(24

Y3IINID '}
SYOLISIA &

TOURISM - VISITORS CENTER/ DOG PARK

EXISTING VISITORS CENTER PARKING LOT SITE PLAN

Checked by: R. MORA

Job;

Scale: AS NOTED

.CITY OF KINGSVILLE
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

Fax 361.598.8035




V| &
NOTES:
& 1. AL STRIPING SHALL BE 4° WIDE. m
. “ﬁﬁﬁﬁvﬁﬁg ©® %% ERek PR o 1 m m M mm
VRS m\ 7 —g” 3 x 2 c 2 3 M.ﬂw.
I 2 S @w%%ﬁ O 3|58
3 SR == 3 |
= % gy ——] \h—/@ \@ = >
%»w.\ 3?-7\ @ 4 mm ADA RANP <SR ﬁm
g O = £
\ D
I OB b 1]
3w GaV. 5 I\m H - 2 e
s - = |ho EEIHEERE
ser— = + |32
l— ¥
WOODEN —cy . /@ * m
= ® s
N = 0 ” &
T —— K o
—— . 180" _ R [~}
o) S =
Bl % S w
S g
=1 a
| Bl s
8 &y Q
™y W =3
- . | 2 B e o o P P o | 8
k& B R SYMBOLS ON A BLUE BACKGROUND. 9°=0' 9'-0' =0 -0
oo B FROMOED DRECTLY ’ " j ’ M s
o, e £ 1"\ ADA PARKING SIGN DETAIL (72" STRIPING DETAIL S| 8
EXISTING VISITORS CENTER PARKING LOT E nys. //u\ NTS. 2 M
( A"\ DEMO PLAN & REPAIRS | 8
\3/ sonenrs. ok oo S8
N P e gy e = | 8
TO REMAIN ] P m m
LEGEND SRU, Q=
<z @ 3 m Pl O I
§ WNMMKM %gﬂ TYPE D. - MFMI_ 2 m i!.c_u.n,u .MM» .slm m
I EXCAVATE EXISTING GRASS AND SRR AT S &.&.&..#Nﬂ-mﬁ & m
[ AR ERR - ASPHALT DEPRESSION & ADA PARKING e 2o
@  TENOW & mERTAL EXSTING WHeEL S0P, /"3 "\ POTHOLE REPAIR DETAIL /"4 "\ ASPHALT OVERLAY DETAIL {5\ SYMBOL DETAIL B
(NO SEPARATE PAY TTEM). E SOALE NTS Q NTS. ’/u\\ SCALE: NIS. SHEET
L @ NEW WHEEL STOP TO BE INSTALLED. 3




Z._‘_.: 1 WELCOME TO YOUR DOG PARK!
T YO D00 000 WAt s 0 L s

Sv 1430 EXCAVATE EXISTING GRASS T Covenes o WE FORTD ox
S AL PAVEMENT REPAIRS INCLUDING COMPACTED LIMESTONE BASE vent g out e s 0 s e
SY {3,230 | 2" HOT MIX_ASPHALT TYPE D OVERLAY AND PRIME COAT FROED BY bty
s |1 PAVEMENT MARKINGS INCLUDING ADA SYMBOL e K5 ST B4 156 41086 07 K2 DR VE PG
EA S NEW CONCRETE WHEEL STOPS CONTRACTOR. borovilfarseandirdy ey
iF | 325 5 HIGH CHAIN LINK FENCE INCLUDING GATES INSTALLED % e TENIECRT
s |1 DOG_PARK FEATURES, SIGNS, ETC. INSTALLED NN 1P R0 O 0 A, RGNS G HE
EA 11 ADA PARKING SION & HARDWARE INSTALLED

REEE AL AY HILS YOR 006 OGS MEVRY.

AL 0005 AT HAE LP 10 DOE WOHRIDE FRAT T0 BHEFRD € 005 v
OGS MET I 3 VE IR S0 SAERENG BER D00 A AL MES.

AL GRIRN UER 15 MES I ATOSSNED B¢ A ALLE ND NG &7 0 RE.
10 ST 1O O GUGS (THMNERS NLOMD I B ARG

0008 AT ARE 1N HEN, JOCFOTRE. CR K AFE HOT RLOND

KR ot AR FOR X5 ONY. HE ERENE.

B EE PRC AT YOUR O 3¢ ONHERS ME 1EY LWRE JOR € A0S OF THER [0
O AX FRORDS TO HE WRK MAGR

DOG PARK RULES
/ 1\ SIGN DETAIL (2" DOG PARK RULES

E NTS. E NTS.

W00

-0
or=y
20'~0"

Wy
oy

L] b 2

'\\“

SNy
-4
¢
g
L)

&
H
&
&

2} 2
s, be:u»m,, &F
Ny

3- RE_9/1/ 202]

RUTLO P. UGRA SR, PE KD. 113523

@ (A \ EXISTING VISITORS CENTER PROPOSED DOG PARK

E NTS.

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
Kingavillo, ‘Texas 7RIS}
Offico J61.598.8007

Fax 361.595.8038

@] 400 Went King

B

N

oy g 27 ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
2
J'h

g |2
HEHHRE
HEERE
HEEWE
HHHEE
5|5
= o
A
|8
218
K
£ls
S| K
S| B
2B
S d
Sle
(7]
g ¢
. [ 2]
= | =
172 1L
2|8
S| E
& | 8
SHEET




Janine Reyes

From: Charlie Sosa <CSosa@Ccityofkingsville.com>

Sent: Monday, October 28, 2024 1:43 PM

To: Janine Reyes

Subject: RE: Dog Park and Driveway

Attachments: SJ Fence Co. Proposal for City of Kingsville_1501 North US 77_Kingsville TX_102824

_BlackVinyl.pdf; The Park.pdf

Janine,

Please see attached Quotes on the fence and the obstacle course for dogs.

The amount for the parking lot: L .
14 loads Hot mix from Corpus to Kingsville @ $250.00 / load Total: $3500.00

-280 tons HMAC from Bay Plant Total: $26,292.00
Labor Sanford and Son Total: $46,304.00

From: Janine Reyes <jreyes@cityofkingsville.com>
Sent: Monday, October 28, 2024 12:54 PM

To: Charlie Sosa <CSosa@cityofkingsville.com>
Subject: Dog Park and Driveway

Charlie,

Did you end up calling the dog park component vendor and did you have those figures yet for the dog park and
driveway here at tourism?

Thanks,



S & J FENCE CO.

361-885-0503
www.sjfenceco.com

1825 North Padre Island Drive
Corpus Christi, TX 78408

BID PROPOSAL
City of Kingsville October 28, 2024
Attn: Charlie Sosa Estimator: Adrian Elwin
1501 North US 77 Contact: 361-442-3518

Kingsville, TX
361-455-7746

Description: Install 340’ of new 4' tall black vinyl-coated light-commercial grade chain link fence. Fence to
include (2) 4' wide single swing gates set on 2 7/8" OD x SS40 posts. Gate frames to be 1'5/8" OD x .065", gates
to be equipped with (2) 90-degree hinges (non-self closing), and (1) pad-lockable fork per gate. All gate and
terminal posts to be set in minimum 36" concrete footings and all line posts to be set in minimum 30" concrete
footings with a max spacing of 10'. Client to clear all fence lines of all vegetation, trees, and objects prior to
S&J start of project. This bid is good for 30 days unless otherwise specified in writing by S&J Fence Co.

Materials furnished by S&J: $5,004.56
2 7/8"-OD vinyl coated terminal & gate posts - SS40
1 7/8" OD vinyl coated line posts ~ .065"
1 5/8" OD vinyl coated top rail - .065"
13 gauge vinyl coated chain link fabric, 9 ga. Finish, 2" mesh
9 gauge vinyl coated bottom tension wire
(2) 4' wide vinyl coated single swing gates, with hardware
All necessary concrete

Labor furnished by S&J: $5,837.50
Sales Tax @ 8.25% {Materials Only): $0.00
TOTAL CHARGES: ‘ $10,842.06

Terms: Signed contract or Hardcopy PO to schedule; invoiced at completion (net 30).
This price includes a discount for payment by cash or check; add 2% if paying by credit/debit card.

Thank you for the opportunity to bid on your fence project. You will find that S&J will deliver
exceptional service and a quality product. We look forward to your business!

To accept this bid, please sign below and email to aelwin@sjfenceco.com or mail to the address above.

Signed - Owner or Agent Date

| have read and agree to S&J Fence Co. Terms and Conditions.
Initial {www.sjfenceco.com/termsandconditions)

Employer Tax |.D. #27-0587418




theparkemems

CATALOG

Quote#104258 -

Sales Rep: Carrie Georgopouloé
Email: Carrie@theparkcatalog.com
Phone: 888-447-2401 Ext 60307

BIII to-

: joseph Ramirez
- City.of: ngswlle

Apris, 2024 - May12,2024 (29days)

Highland Products Group/The Park Catalog
931 Village Blvd Ste 905-354

West Palm Beach, FL 33409

Phone : 561-620-7878

Email : sales@theparkcatalog.com

- P.0.Box 1458 o400, gAve;:
-~ Kingsville,: Texas, 78363 ;ngsville, Texas 78636
“:Uhited States” - . ‘United States” '

“gT 361-595-8007 TR T:361-595- soo7

7 Piece Best In Show Kit
Color: Playful- Red and Blue

Quote Notes:

NOTIFY BEFORE DELIVERY INCL IN FREIGHT

This quote comes with our BEST PRICE GUARANTEE! If we are not your

439-1035-2547844

1 $7,897.00 $7,188.00  $709.00 $7,188.00

Total Discount  -$709.00
Subtotal $7,188.00
Shipping & Handling  $0.00
Tax $0.00

Grand Total $7,188.00

lowest delivered quote for equivalent product, we will BEAT it! (Exclusions : PAY NOW

may apply)

Any questions contact us at 888-447-2401 or Carrie@theparkcatalog.com

WITH A CREDIT CARD

Quote Expiration Date: May 12, 2024

{F YOUR QUOTE HAS EXPIRED, PLEASE CONTACT
YOUR SALES REP BEFORE SUBMITTING PAYMENT




TERMS & CONDITIONS

SHIPPING:
Deliveries are made during normal business hours, 8am - 5pm Monday - Friday. Unless otherwise noted, shipping charges include standard delivery only, Standard delivery charges are for Tailgate delivery to any commercial
location on 3 commercial truck route; the truck driver will not offload the delivery. it is C to provide andfor equil to unload the shipment from the truck when it arrives. The

truck driver is under no obligation to help you unload. If you require anything other than standard delivery, we have the following additional services available for purchase at time of order placement:

Additional Delivery Services

« Residential Delivery: If the ship to address is not a commercial location, on a commercial truck route oris in a residential area, you must order "Residential Delivery Service* at an additional charge.
« Limited Access Delivery: This is common LTL delivery for small businesses, restaurants, schools, churches, concert venues, theaters, or other lacations that do not have a loading dock.

« Lifgate Service: This service includes the driver utilizing a lift gate on the rear of the truck, The driver is responsible for lowering your shipment to the ground only. Once delivery is at ground level it is your responsibility
to move the shipment from the delivery paint te its destination

» Notify Before Delivery: Notify before delivery indicates that the receiver needs to be called before arrival. The carrier will call 24-48 hours prior to make 2 delivery appointment. If the receiver cannot be reached, these
shipments can result in significant delays or additlonal redelivery fees.

= Inside Delivery: If this service s required, please reach out to one of our Sales Representative as we cannot be respansible for online quotes with this service, This service requires specifics that must be communicated to
the carrier prior to getting a shipping quote.

= Redelivery Fee: This charge will occur when a delivery is unsuccessful on the first try and the carrier must try to defiver the 3 second time. iveries occur within the carrier's available timeframa,

» Construction Slte Delivery: This charge is for any destination that is under construction and requires an LTL truck to navigate a construction site,

hipping Service Discr ies - If there {5 a di y in the services requested and the minimum services required to deliver the product, the Customer agrees to pay and The Park Catalog reserves the right to charge
the customer for any necessary additional services provnded at the time of delivery,

Shipment Inspection Required - [t is the customer’s ibility to inspect all deliveries for possible damage, correct quantities and to note any discrepancies on the freight bill PRIOR to signing the delivery receipt
provided by the driver. All damage claims MUST be recorded on the delivary receipt and reported within 48 hours of delivery, The Park Catalog does NOT GUARANTEE replacements parts or products FREE of charge due to
concealed or unreported damages.

Assembly May Be Required:

Most of our product’s ship Knocked down and on commercial pallets to minimize freight damages and reduce freight cost.

CANCELLATIONS:

No order can be lled unless first ized and confirmed in writing by The Park Catalog Team. Made-to-Order items already in production may not be cancelled. If a cancellation is authorized, charges may apply based
on the stage the arder is in. :

RETURNS:

We will accept returns of unopened/unused products, up to 30 days from the shipping date, subject to ALL the following terms and conditions:

= Approval: Written approval and instructions must be issued by our Customer Service Department before any merchandise can be returaced,
- Shipping Returns: All merchandise must be returned in its original packaging, freight Prepaid. No Collect shipments are accepted.

« Re-Stocking & Shipplng Fees: The customer is responsible for a minimum 25% re-stocking fee and all related shipping charges on product returned for reasons other than damage or defect. Original shipping charges will
not be refunded.

= Online Orders: For online orders, The Park Catalog s not responsible if the customer orders incorrect praduct or colors. All return and restock fees apply.
» Personalized - These items are NOT eligible for return unless a defect in manufacturing is prasented to us with pictures prior to return.

» Refunds: refunds will be issued on returned merchandise AFTER shipment is received and inspected at our warehouse and the goods are deemead to be resaleable and free of damages.

Payment options:

Credit Card: To maintain a safe environment for credit card transactions, we utilize a credit card processing company that partners with companies who transmit or progess card infarmation in a secure environment which
comglies with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS). In compliance with the payment card industry data security standards, The Park Catalog cannot accept credit card payment information via
Emall/Fax/fus Mail/Telephone/Voice Mail, A secure payment link will be sent via email to allow your transaction to be completed.

Check: Payable to Highland Products Group or The Park Catalog. 931 Village Blvd Ste 905-354, West Palm Beach, FL 33409

ACH: You will find ACH/Wire information on the pages following your proposal

Purchase Order: We accept purchase orders from Government/Municipal entities, Public Schools, non-private Colleges, and Universities to name a few, All other customer types must speak with a sales representative for
qualifications to utilize a purchase order.

Force Majeure:

No Party to this Agreement shall bie responsible for any delays or failure to perform any obligation under this agreement due to acts of God, epidemic demic or the sp g of disease or contagion strikes or
other disturbances, including, without limitation, war, insurrection, embargoes, governmental restrictions, acts of governments or governmental authormes and any other cause beycnd the control of such party. During an

event of force majeure, the Parties' duty to perform obligations shall be suspended,

To accept this proposal:

Sign Here: Date:




PlAYCORE

Building communitles through ploy & recreation™

To Whom It May Concern:

This is in response to your request for a W-9 from a single member LLC, disregarded
for income tax purposes. All receipts and federal taxes for this entity are reported on
a consolidated tax return under Playcore Group, Inc & Subsidiaries, federal
identification number (FEIN) 82-2297804, and as such, we will not require a 1099
issued since we are a U. S. corporation.

Please find the following enclosed documents:

s A W-9 for Playcore Group, Inc & Subsidiaries with FEIN 82-2297804. Lines 5,
6, and 7 all list the business address, name, and FEIN of the disregarded LLC
entity.

Aside from making a 1099 determination for federal income tax, the LLC’s
name and address should be used for all other business purposes including,
but not limited to: invoicing, licensing, signing / executing contracts, creating
customer / vendor accounts, etc.

Should you have any questions regarding the attached, please do not hesitate to

reach out to our department at fax@playcore.com.

Sincerely,

Scott Hooker

Senlor Tax Accountant
shooker@playcore.com

PlAYCORE

Bury toOUOLSINS sanh O3y

544 Chestnut Street Chattanooga, TN 37402 1-877-762-7563 www.playcore.com



Calculated ARPA Beginning Balance

Wayfinding Signs
Wayfinding Signs
Wayfinding Signs Part 2
WOST Air Show

WOST Air Show reversal
Train Depot Painting
Tourism Couch Set
Tourism Couch Set Freight
Promotional Photo Frames
DI Conceptual Design

LED Sign Deposit

LED Sign Final Payment

Total Remaining

Anticipated Projects

Parking Lot Overlay Bay.Plant Material
14 Loads of Hot Mix Transport (partial)

Total if approved

-5173,544.00

$10,000.00 Design/Deposit
$19,128.00 Fabrication
$20,330.00
$25,000.00
-$25,000.00
$12,500.00
$8,100.00
$675.00
$9,383.28
$46,390.00
$9,485.00
$9,485.00

-$28,067.72

$26,292.00 EST
$1,775.72 EST

$0.00

Date Paid

Jan-23
Nov-23
Oct-24
Mar-21
Mar-21

Jul-22
Jun-22
Oct-22
Mar-23
Aug-23

Jul-23

Fall 2023




AGENDA ITEM #25



Planning and Development Services ' E
410 W King CITY ST

Kingsville, TX 78363 ﬂle
PH: 361-595-8055 : g/_rz

MEMO

Date: November 15%, 2024

To: Mark McLaughlin (City Manager)

From: Erik Spitzer (Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: The City of Kingsville Planning and Development Services Department is seeking approval from

the City Commissioners and Mayor to approve the sale of a city parcel of land located at 811 E Vela

Summary: It was determined in 2024 that the current resident/owner of 813 E Vela (Ms Anna Luisa Espinosa) was
encroaching on adjacent city property by erecting and using several structures on city owned land, without permission
(see attached photo). When notified of the situation, she indicated she was interested in purchasing that adjacent parcel of
land. A Fair Market Value of $5,000.00 was determined on 14 November 2024 using a local realtor and considering the
parcel of land is in the flood plain and has a city owned 20ft utility easement running through the property (see attached
documents).

Background: For years, the owner of the residence at 813 E Vella erected and used non-permitted, non-approved
structures on an adjacent city parcel of land, under the impression that parcel belonged to her. The Planning Department
was notified of the situation and contacted the owner on July 17%, 2024 to ascertain if she was interested in purchasing
this parcel of land from the City of Kingsville; she indicated she was interested and, in fact, contacted the City Attorney
the week of November 4% to inquire about the current status.

The department recommends approval of selling this parcel of land to Ms Espinosa at Fair Market Value.

Erik Spitzer
Director of Planning and Development Services



g

sanjeA Aladold

‘aUIUO UMOYS a1e suonduiexs [[e Jou suosess Aoenyd Jo4
, - AXCXT :suondwexg

%0001 :dIysIBUMO %

8G¥1L-¥9€8L X1 “m._._,_>moz_v_ . -

851 X0d Od :ssa.ppy Buljieny
| S R

m44_>woz.x uo ALID | &Emz

) | ovmof :al hm:;o
aumQ
:pooyloqybiaN |

G99S

(LAdW3IX3A)‘sH/LSBPES ‘et 10T Y M0019 ‘2 SIS

"oownms_ ‘

:Bujuoz

261000 +000S99} :al dydeibosn

AN
VIaA3 118

.
68cle

:uoISIAIpANgAoRISaY |

:uonduasaq jebo
:ai depy
1$SaIppy SnNIS

uoneso

:os) Auadoad |

:adA)L

:al Auedoad

JUNo22Y

s|lea Auadoud i

jue|q:noqe

juejg:jnoge

WV ¥¥8 ‘VeivLitL



S/e

%0°00} :diysioumo% JTTASONIM 4O ALID :8uMQO

uoiIpsiing 3uixe| Ajsadoid g

"Aoeinooe 10} uonewlolUl || AJISA 0} 10MISI]

[eseiddy sy} 10elU00 BsBe|d "Sjuawnoop 10 pue asodind [efs| 1o} Buisn o} Joud payusa aq pinoys pue Ajuo asn
1ousiq |esteiddy Joy aie sjunowe abeaioe pue suonduosap rebe- “Ajuo sesodind yosesasai 1oy papiroid uojieunIo|

0%
02L'Y$

() 08
(-) 0%

(=) 02Lv3

() 0$
(=) 02L'v$

A+Vow

WA+vomnva

(+) 0%

)08
(+)o$

yuejq:noge

:anjep asn by |

:anjep possossy

O iajeasg UNoAD

O :sso de) sH H

:anjep pasieiddy

@:SS07 anjep |ein}nouby

:anjeA Joe

:uonenjeA 9yepy jeanynauby
:anje  9)iISOWOH-UON pue-] |
:anjep oHSOWOH puel

:9nje  aliSeWOH-Uop Juswaroidw

:anjeA 9)saWoH uawanoidwiyj

Juefq:jnoqe

WY ¥¥:8 ‘veiviiLL



G/e

¥E¥21$ -suondwoaxz oyl saxe] pajewnsy

00°0$ :suondwax3y Yyum sexey pajewnssy

G96.10°€ -9)ey xel |ejol

w oo.ow‘ 0% :o,mr,.vw _ ._.O_m._.w_n_‘ |_<w_<mn_n_< ALNNOD BHIgI

A oo.oa 0% o 02L'v$ | . ,%._._m_o‘_.,.;_._.:< H3lvm w<xu_,_ :HDOm
oo.ow | 0% o omr.vw - N | ,.n_..w._ m.._.__>w®z_v_

0008 0 021v$ ITUASONDI 40 ALID

ooow | 0% | ,oNF.ve o >._.ZDOO _omm_m_m_._;v_

Xe| pajew}sg anjeA ajqexe) u:.m> 1IN | :o_E_._ommn_

| | | | .v_:,m_nu.:onm, | | o

1SM

Awmuzg

avo

IMS
MO
O

jyuelgInoqe

WY v:8 ‘veivliLL



Sy

0% wo,NN_a o0'se 00se 100°6.8 Wmo.o;; o v0  ¥O
08 osies 000L  00Se  000SLL w00 v
08 091 Woo.oi 10062 00°00S’€ 800 ¥0 o
03 051$ o0Zzk  o0Se  000S0E 00 L)
0$ C oees  o0ts 0008 009 S0 ¥ $0
Wm:=;_w> ._uo‘_m mms_m> uwv.,._mE ,wr_Emn tm_ mEo‘_u_ tm_ ,tcw, ~obealoy :o_ﬂn_‘_ommn, adAyL
| | pueq B(_,mao._n_ M
juejq:jnoge

jue|q:jnoge

WV b¥:8 ‘veiviiLL



S/

, ummmuww<, M sso de)p w:

_uwm_m‘_,mm_(; W :o_amz_m> m<

19)1ely pueT

- sjuswenoduj

| | © ITUASONII 40 ALID NMONSNA YO 10
,._unEq:_zV ,mmmn_ uE:_,o>, | - mem._G | ._o,Em._G,w :o,_i_._ummn“ wn;._ﬂuumn_ umo,n_
- | | >._Bm_I paag ,>tumogn_ M
06548 0% 065°1$ 8; 061§ 0% 9102
0651$ 0% 0651 03 065°+$ 08 0z
06518 0% 0651 08 06°1$ 08 8102
065'1$ 0% 065'1$ 08  065'1$ 0§ 6102
Wo%.a o 06516 08 065°1$ 0% 0202
0651$ 08 065'1S 0% 061§ 8; 1202
065'1$ 0f 0651$ 08 065°1$ 08 220e
oev'es 0% o6r'es 08 06v'c$ 03 €202
zLvs o8 0ZLvs 08 021 0$ a0z

Jeap

AIO3SIH SNjeA (10 Aradod i

yuejgnoge

jue[g:inoqe

WV 18 ‘YLl



]
=

]
>
m
—
—
=




811 E VELA Account: 21389 Owner: CITY OF KINGSVILLE

November 7, 20

Maxar, Microsoft, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife,
© OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, Foursguare,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METIINASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS







'811 E VELA Account: 21389 Owner: CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Trangi,
quit,
AN ®U‘ .

November 7, 2024

Maxar, Microsoft, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife,
© OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, Foursquare,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS




's19)l3uap! Ajuntuwiod ‘ajep uoneso dew
‘s|aqel suoz pooy) ‘A1agew dewaseq

sosodind A103enFas
1o} pasn aq Jouued seale pazjuiepowuun pue paddewun
loj saBew] defy "ajep aAloaya IWYHIJ pue “4aquinu [sued M4

‘leq ajess ‘pusgal

aeadde Jou op suswisle
dew Jugmojjo} alf Jo aJowl Jo auo ay3 Ji ploa s sFew dew syl

"3l 49A0 BJep Mau Aq papasiadns awosaq

10 93ueyo few uoneWION| 9A1309))3 PUB THAN UL "dwit
pue 3jep sy} 0} Jusnbasqns sjusLUpUSWE 10 SOFURYD 1P|
Jou S30p pue Nd 0L 18 $TOZ/PT/TT U0 paLiodxs sem
dew sjy] "viNag Aq papirold soo)Ales gom THAN sAneoyINE
Y} wioly A[10aAIp POASP S| UOEWIOJU PIeZRY POO]s oYL

spiepue)s Aoeinsge
deweseq s,yN34 Yyim sajjdwios umoys dewsseq oy
‘Mojaq paqiasap se ploA Jou s| ) )l sdet pooyy Jeus|p
J0 asn ayy 10} spiepue)s S,yIAIFd YIm saidwos dew siyp

‘uonyedo| Aladoid sanjejuoyine ue
uasaldal Jou ssop pue Jash ayy Aq pajoales Jujod
ajewnxoidde ue s1 dew ayz uo pakerdsip uid ay)

paddewun
s|qejieay eieq [eysig oN

alqeleay eyeq |esig

ainjea] aydesSoIpAH

dujjoseg ajyold

auljaseq 10asuel] [eI1se0)

Aiepunog uonolpsuns

Apnig Jo ywir]

(349) auI] uoneAs|3 poo)y aseg
Pasuel] jeISeod

UopeAs(3 adelng 1s3ep\

SOUBYJ [enuuyY %T YIIM SUOIIIBS SS0I)

l12MPoo]4 10 ‘aMIq ‘eaas
18M3S WI0)S 10 ‘LBAjNY ‘|Buuey)

g auoz prezeH poo[4 PauIIBISpU( JO BaIY

SHINOT 29843
Xauoz plezeH poold |ewuiy Jo ealy

¢ 2u0Z 339A97 0} ANP YSIY POl YIIM ealy
X ouoz *S9JON 998 ‘B9A]

0} 3NpYSiY Poofd PadNpay yim ealy

X suoz plezeH pool4 sauey)

|enuuy %T suoipuo) ainyng

X 9uoz dfjll a1enbs auo uel) ssa| Jo seale
aFeuleip Y3Im 1o 3004 U0 Uey ssa] yidep

aSeIoAR YIIM POOJ 93URYD jBnUUR %T 30
sealy ‘pIezeH pooj4 SdueY) [BNUUY %20

X
|
0

6

STANVd dVIN

S3Unlvad
H3HLO

S3UNLONYLS
RLVEELEDR]

SVIYY Y3HIO0

N33402S ON

L 4
>

M

QYVZVH a0o01d
40 SY3uv yaHlo

66Y A ‘v auoz

~Kempoolq Alojejngay
dy 90 "HY ‘ov ‘av auoz yyda 40 318 UNM.

7 4

S

(348) uogiers]g Pool4 ssed NOUIM -

SY3UV AuvZVH
Q0014 1vI93ds

AN0AYT 1INV WY HO dYIN X3ANI ANV AN393T a3TIVEIA HO4 LHO4TY SId 33

= v:mmop_;

£20¢z dep jeuonen $9sn :03inog Arefewsy dewsseg

Come
bLIEoLL MELISSLE . : .OOO w_‘ 150 FETII— m—

Nu9TE€oLT MUTSTSL6

a)8NY|4 JoAe piezeH pooj4 [euoneN




811 E VELA Account: 21389 Owner: CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Los HEérmanos
Florgg)Rark

November 7, 2024

Maxar, Microsoft, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife,
© OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, Foursquare,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS




RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF THE CITY’S REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 811 EAST VELA STREET, KINGSVILLE, TEXAS, ALSO KNOWN AS
SIMS 2, BLOCK 4, LOT 1-3,S/124& S "4 5.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville owns a small piece of real property located at 811
East Vela Street, Kingsville, Texas also known as Sims 2, Block 4, Lot 1-3,S/24 &S
3;

WHEREAS, the property is oddly shaped, has a sanitary sewer main going across part
of it, and most of the property is located in a floodway which makes it not able to be
developed

WHEREAS, the property is in a residential area on a corner and abuts a single family
home that has encroached on the property;

WHEREAS, the land is undeveloped by the City and the City has no future plans for the
land other than to maintain a utility easement;

WHEREAS, the City believes that placing the land for sale would place the property
back on the tax roll; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code, real property owned by the
City can be sold via public auction, sealed bids, or for home-rule cities through a broker,
unless an exception is met;

WHEREAS, the City finds the property meets an exception to the bidding requirement
as set out in Texas Local Government Code Section 272.001, staff recommends the
property be sold through a negotiated sale with the adjacent property owner for the fair
market value of the property as allowed by Texas Local Government Code Section
272.001(b)(1), (c), and (d) with the property contract coming back before the
Commission for approval of the sale;

WHEREAS, a price has been negotiated for the land and the City Manager now needs
authority from the City Commission to execute a contract for the sale of this real
property and to take any other actions necessary to sell the identified property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

THAT the City Commission of the City of Kingsville authorizes and directs the City
Manager as an act of the City of Kingsville, Texas to take actions necessary to complete
the real property sale in compliance with existing laws for the City’s of real property
located at 811 East Vela Street, Kingsville, Texas also known as Sims 2, Block 4, Lot 1-
3,5/24 & S Y4 5, while maintaining a utility easement on the property.

1



THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are repealed to
the extent of such conflict only.

THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission the 25th day of
November, 2024.

Sam Fugate, Mayor
ATTEST.:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #26



RESOLUTION #2024-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN EPA
COMMUNITY CHANGE GRANT STATUTORY PARTNER AGREEMENT
BETWEEN WATER FINANCE EXCHANGE AND THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE;
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City is currently pursing funding with the Texas Water
Development Board (TWDB) for wastewater treatment plant project funding
through the EPA Community Change Grant;

WHEREAS, Water Finance Exchange (WFX) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit
organization that is eligible under various state and federal funding programs for
moneys to assist communities with their efforts on water and wastewater
infrastructure needs;

WHEREAS, the services of WFX would not cost the City any direct expenses as
WFX only gets paid from grant funds if they successfully obtain funding for the
City;

NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

THAT the Mayor is authorized and directed as an act of the City of Kingsville,
Texas to enter into an EPA Community Change Grant Statutory Partner
Agreement with Water Finance Exchange in accordance with Exhibit A hereto
attached and made a part hereof.

THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

[l.
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
25th day of _ November , 2024.




Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



EPA Community Change Grant
Statutory Partner Agreement

I. _Agreement

The purpose of this Statutory Partner Agreement is to set forth the understandings.and
intentions of the parties. The partners are entering into this Agreement while wishing to
maintain their own separate and unique missions and mandates, and their own accountabilities.
Unless specifically provided otherwise, the cooperation among the parties as outlined in this
Agreement is not to be considered or construed as a partnership or other type of legal entity or
personality. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as superseding or interfering in any
way with other agreements or contracts entered into between two or more of the parties,
either prior to or subsequent to the signing of this Agreement.

THIS AGREEMENT is made on __19th_ day of November, 2024 by and between the CITY OF
KINGSVILLE (the “City”) and the WATER FINANCE EXCHANGE (WFX).

City of Kingsville and the Water Finance Exchange wish to become partners for the primary
purpose and, if awarded, completing an Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Community
Change Grant (CCG).

The terms and conditions will be outlined in this agreement and will only be terminated as
outlined in this agreement.

The Partnership will be governed under the laws of the State of Texas, the proposed project
area in this grant. The Partners shall be responsible for the work of their employees and for
completing their agreed-to roles and responsibilities.

Both City of Kingsville and the Water Finance Exchange recognize that EPA is not a party to this
agreement and any disputes between parties must be resolved under the law applicable to the
Partnership Agreement.

Il. Lead Applicant Role

The City of Kingsville, as part of the EPA Community Change Grant proposal “City of Kingsville
Southside Wastewater Treatment Facility,” will serve as the “Lead Applicant” and is responsible
for the overall management, performance, oversight, and reporting responsibilities under the
grant. The City is responsible for making all sub-awards to Collaborating Entities to the proposal.
As the Lead Applicant, the City is:
¢ Responsible for the receipt of federal funds from EPA and the proper expenditure of these
funds and will bear liability for unallowable costs.
¢ Responsible for ensuring that all sub-awards comply with the subaward requirements in
the grant regulations at 2 CFR 200.311 and in the EPA’s Subaward Policy and related
guidance



& Responsible for compliance and legal issues, and managing risks associated with the
project.

e Responsible for the receipt of federal funds from the EPA and the proper expenditure of
these funds and will bear liability for the unallowable costs.

The City will make a sub-award to WFX in the amount consistent with the final EPA approved
budget. The City will share decision making authority with WFX and other parties as specific in
the Collaborative Governance Structure that is submitted as part of the CCG application.

As part of the proposed project, the City will be responsible for the following project specific
activities if awarded: _
- Leading the design and planning, and construction of the expansion of the Southside
Wastewater Treatment Plant (SWWTP)
- Leading the testing and commissioning of the SWWTP
- Leading staff training on new SWWTP
- Support workforce and community engagement efforts

1. Statutory Partner Role

WFX agrees to serve in the Statutory Partner role. As part of the proposed project, WFX will be
~ responsible for the following project specific activities if awarded:

- Workforce Development

- Community engagement efforts

In the event that WFX requires replacement as a Statutory Partner, the City will ensure that the
replacement has the comparable expertise, experience, knowledge, and qualifications of the
replaced Statutory Partner to ensure successful grant completion within three years. Any
replacement requires prior approval by an authorized EPA official pursuant to 2 CFR
200.306(c)6.

IV. Partnership Timeline

This agreement enters into effect upon the date of execution of the agreement. Unless
overridden by a new written agreement of the Partners, the Partnership shall end in the
following ways:

- When the Water Finance Exchange is replaced under the procedure listed in Section Ili
of this agreement

- When the CCG is completed as determined by the EPA

- When the partnership is informed that their application for a CCG is rejected

The Partners agree to be bound by the terms of this Partnership Agreement and agree that the
Partners have received due consideration for entering into this contract.



V. Compensation and Method of Payment

The City of Kingsville agrees to pay Water Finance Exchange $194,337 over the project period
(564,779) annually. These payments and invoices will be made consistent with EPA sub awardee
guidelines and requirements.

Invoices shall be due and payable within 30 calendar days.

VI. . Miscellaneous Provisions

A. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the
laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are
performable in the location in which Client’s primary office is located.

B. Binding Effect; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, legal representative, successors and permitted assigns. This Agreement
does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies to any person other than
the parties to this Agreement.

C. Severability. In any case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall
for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any reéspect, such
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and
this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision
had never been contained herein.

D. Cooperation/Provision of Information. It is agreed that all information, data, reports and
records and maps as are existing, available and necessary for the carrying out of the
work outlined in this Agreement.

E. Waiver of Consequential Damages. Neither party will be liable to the other party or any
other person or entity for any special, incidental, indirect, consequential, punitive or
exemplary damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement, regardless of the form
of action and whether such party has been informed of or otherwise might have
anticipated the possibility of such damages.

F. Limitation of Liability. Each party agrees that, regardless of the type, nature or number
of causes of action or claims by the Client {including without limitation claims for
indemnity under this Agreement) or any third party claiming by, through or under the
Client, the maximum amount of damages, individually or in the aggregate, that either
party will be liable for or can be required to pay to the other or any other claimant is the
amount of fees to be paid to Water Finance Exchange by the City of Kingsville under this
Agreement. The parties agree that this limitation of damages is reasonable and
acknowledge that but for this limitation, neither party would enter into this Agreement.

G. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the
parties with regard to contemporaneous understandings or written or oral agreements
between the parties respecting the subject matter of this Agreement.

H. Modification. This Agreement may be modified by prior mutual written consent of the
parties.



Ownership of Work and Copyright. The parties agree that the City of Kingsville retains all
ownership rights to forms, reports, and other documents produced in whole or in part
under this Agreement until such documents are completed as contemplated under this
Agreement and placed in the official Contract record or submitted as final documents to
the EPA. Water Finance Exchange shall retain all ownership rights to templates, internal
tracking systems, and other documents produced by Water Finance Exchange that have
a common use applicable and are not produced specifically for the Water Finance
Exchange under this Agreement. No report, maps, or other documents produced in
whole or in part under this Agreement shall be the subject of an application for
copyright by or on behalf of the City of Kingsville.

Remedies, Alternative Dispute Resolution, and Program Non-Compliance. The parties
hereto agree to resolve all disputes arising hereunder in accordance with this section. If
a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement or any alleged breach hereof,
including determination of responsibility for any costs disallowed as a result of non-
compliance with federal, state or other program requirements, the party desiring to
resolve such dispute shall deliver a written notice of the dispute, including the specific
claim in the dispute to the other party. Following the delivery of such notice, the parties
involved in the dispute shall meet at least twice within the thirty (30) day period
commencing with the date of the notice and in good faith shall attempt to resolve such
dispute through negotiation. If any dispute is not resolved or settled by the parties as a
result of such negotiation, the parties in good faith shall submit the dispute to non-
binding mediation before a retired judge of a federal district court or Texas district court
or a similarly qualified, mutually agreeable individual in Corpus Christi, Texas. The parties
shall bear the costs of such mediation equally. If the dispute is not resolved through such
mediation, either party may proceed to file suit.

Force Majeure. A “Force Majeure Event” means any event or cause beyond a party’s
reasonable control {including without limitation, construction delays, fire, flood, rain,
weather, casualty, explosions, damage by third parties whether negligently or
intentionally caused, strikes, work stoppages, picketing, acts of God or other casualties,
or the [aws or actions of any governmental authority), as a result of which at any time a
party is unable to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement. If a Force
Majeure Event occurs during the term of this Agreement that prevents the City of
Kingsville from performing its obligations hereunder, the City of Kingsville and the Water
Finance Exchange will in good faith mutually agree on one of the following alternatives:
1) extend the time for performance, or 2) terminate this Agreement and, as mutually
agreed, cause the payment to Water Finance Exchange of fees not yet paid for services
performed prior to the occurrence of the Force Majeure Event or cause the refund to
City of Kingsville of fees previously paid for services that were not performed prior to the
occurrence of the Force Majeure Event.

Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with or without
cause, by written notice to the other, such termination to become effective 30 days after
receipt of such notice. In the case this agreement is terminated, compensation will be
provided by the City of Kingsville to the Water Finance Exchange for services rendered
up to the termination date on an hourly basis at a rate of $125/hour with an 10%



administrative overhead fee on incurred costs. Payment will be due within 30 days of
termination.

M. Authority. Each signer to this Agreement hereby certifies that each is legally authorized
to bind the respective parties pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

N. Notice. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by mail by on party to the
other party at the address listed below. '

IN WITNESSETH HEREOF, the City of Kingsville and the Water Finance Exchange have executed
this agreement as of the date indicated above.

Water Finance Exchange City of Kingsville
1455 Pennsylvania Ave NW, Suite 400 400 W. King Ave.
Washington, DC 20004 Kingsville, TX 78363
BY: BY:

Hank Tlabicht

Hank Habicht, WFX Managing Co-Founder Sam Fugate, Mayor

Date:__Nov 19t 2024 Date:




